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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

BBBERZAAERAR ([HXF]) GEMZ5He

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive; and (2)
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
Statement herein or in this report misleading.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AR

Founded in July 2000, Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) have established itself as one of the
leading beauty and slimming services providers over the past
years through the introduction of a series of innovative health
and beauty treatment and products as well as the provision of
the most professional and superior beauty and slimming solution
to our customers. The Group was listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 8200) in November
2003 and is the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong
Kong.

The Group currently has five beauty and slimming centres in Hong
Kong. These centers are under two brand names “Sau San Tong”
(original brand of the Group) and “IPRO” (acquired in 2015). All
these centers provide unique all-rounded personalized beauty
and slimming services, health management and anti-ageing
treatment programs etc.. Combining the effective treatments
and comprehensive follow up services, all programmes enable
customers to achieve their desired skin quality, weight and body

shape in the healthiest manner.

The Group has been widely recognized and highly praised for its
outstanding products and services, the Group was honoured to
be the “Caring Company” many years.

To further diversify its businesses, the Group has acquired a
distribution business in Mainland China in 2005, which distributes
P&G’s personal care products in Shanghai, and cosmetic and
skin care products with famous brands like SK-II and Olay in
the eastern and western part of Mainland China. With years of
development, the distribution network is well developed and with
the additions of international famous brands.
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CORPORATE PROFILE
AN

With the existing beauty and slimming business, product
distribution business and franchise co-operation business, the
Group is well-equipped to provide the best-in-class services to
our customers.

In March 2015, the Group commenced a new business segment
of investment in securities, with a view that such business will
diversify the income stream of the Group and broaden its revenue
base. It may also improve the capital usage efficiency and
generate additional investment returns on the idle funds of the
Group.

In May 2016, the Group commenced another new business
segment of provision of money lending services. The Group
provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms ranging
from several months to 3 years. For unsecured loans, the Group’s
targeted corporations and individuals are small to medium
sized corporations which include both listed and non-listed
corporations and businessmen in various industries. The money
lending business will diversify the income stream of the Group
and broaden its revenue base in order to enhance the capital use
of the Group as well as the overall interests of the Company and
its shareholders.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP
AEEMBEERHE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-mE —EC-=HE —E-CF —E-—F —TTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FHET
Revenue W& 1,092,735 1,231,548 1,561,356 1,793,826 1,359,223
Cost of sales HERA (988,167) (1,132,424) (1,424,185) (1,649,340) (1,252,818)
Gross profit EY ] 104,568 99,124 187,171 144,486 106,405
Other revenue and other Hi iz &
gains or losses HEtwhamhEe 9,276 12,423 11,227 10,198 10,184
Selling and distribution costs 5% & 7 $5 A% A (42,853) (45,634) (46,578) (53,908) (57,473)
General and administrative ~ — R RITHH X
expenses (81,220) (72,242) (82,331) (106,279) (94,669)
(Loss)/profit from operations &% (&) /%H (10,229) (6,329) 19,489 (5,503) (35,553)
Finance costs BERKA (809) (426) (441) (893) (1,871)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBA (E#E),/
gl (11,038) (6,755) 19,048 (6,396) (37,424)
Income tax expense FrE8A X (3,353) (7,913) (5,156) (10,189) (9,434)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(BB) BF (14,391) (14,668) 13,892 (16,585) (46,858)
Non-current assets IRBEE 174,779 170,671 135,165 137,367 194,973
Current assets RBEE 668,577 730,673 826,032 845,408 854,060
Current liabilities RBAE (83,248) (125,404) (140,033) (168,192) (220,144)
Net current assets RBEERE 585,329 605,269 685,999 677,216 633,916
Non-current liabilities kRBEE (4,101) (234) (1,154) (6,299) (14,735)
Net assets BEFE 756,007 775,706 820,010 808,284 814,154
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Equity attributable to owners 5B R AL 7]
of the Company A AER 770,034 789,647 807,443 800,276 818,773
Non-controlling interests IR fER (14,027) (13,941) 12,567 8,008 (4,619)
Total equity BnAE 756,007 775,706 820,010 808,284 814,154
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | present the
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2024 (the “Year Under
Review”) to the shareholders of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”).

2024 continued to be a challenging year for the Group and the
entire retail and services industry in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic China (the “PRC” or “China”). The retail industry
normalised after three years of the pandemic. Hong Kong
saw a gradual resurgence in economic and social activities as
COVID-19 was no longer a public health emergency. Despite this
progress, the general operating environment continued to face
uncertainties. Overall productivity levels remained subdued during
the Year Under Review and the local retail sales for the year was
primarily driven by local consumers. The economic activities were
hampered due to uncertain economic environment.

Meanwhile, the global geopolitical tension between different
nations remained high. The trade frictions persist between China
and US. The Russo-Ukrainian War dramatically changed the
financial markets with significant disruptions in trade and food
and fuel, all of which are contributing to the high inflation and
subsequent tightening in global financing conditions. The capital
flows were also restricted due to the Russo-Ukrainian War.

Apart from carrying out its core business in the professional
approach consistently during the Year Under Review, the
Group has also proactively identified different opportunities of
acquisitions and development.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEE®RE

Founded in 2000, Sau San Tong has been established for 24
years. Regardless of the changes in economic and business
environment over the years, the Group has long been upholding
its founding beliefs, dedicated to address customers’ needs in
a sincere, caring, professional and devoted manner, abiding by
industrial ethics and conduct. Along the way, Sau San Tong has
been sharing ups and downs and evolving side by side with its
customers! Establishing the market leading position is a hard-
earned achievement. We will continue to adhere to the Group’s
principles, conduct and service attitude while introducing new
elements by launching innovative treatments and products,
leading Sau San Tong and its customers to continue the legends
of beauty. On top of expanding business, the management team
puts equal emphasis on corporate governance, risk management
and social services. These corporate social responsibilities are of
utmost importance to Sau San Tong’s sustainable development
in the long run. In the effort to build a harmonious society and a
prosperous future, Sau San Tong always proactively demonstrates
its care for the community, supports various welfare activities
and sets up a voluntary team to participate in various voluntary
services. For a number of consecutive years, Sau San Tong has
been awarded the “Caring Company” logo, which exemplifies our
continuous care and support to the society.

In the year of 2024, the world is much challenging than past year.
The economic landscape was challenged by macroeconomic
pressures including rising interest rates and ongoing strain on
Mainland China’s real estate sector. Meanwhile, In Hong Kong,
both the property and stock markets experienced continued
declines in value. The economy still remains uncertain. Looking
ahead into the late 2024, the Group will remain cautious to
the incoming challenges and strive to capture any business
opportunities available. We will continue to examine the situation
carefully and adjust the Group’s development and investment
strategies in the effort of diversifying its business, which in
turn will enable us to respond to the ever-changing market
environment and maximise the interests of the Group and our
shareholders as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEERE

Financial Review

In respect of the financial performance during the Year
Under Review, the Group’s overall revenue decreased from
approximately HK$1,231,548,000 in the previous year to
approximately HK$1,092,735,000 in the Year Under Review,
representing a 11.3% of decrease.

The gross profit for the Year Under Review was approximately
HK$104,568,000, with an increase of approximately HK$5,444,000
as compared with approximately HK$99,124,000 for the same
period last year. The decrease in overall revenue was due to
the decrease in revenue from the distribution sale of cosmetic
and skin care products and the interest income from money
lending. Revenue from distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care
products decreased from approximately HK$1,172,999,000 to
HK$1,015,567,000 of the Year Under Review. Revenue came from
money lending decreased from approximately HK$11,164,000 to
HK$8,094,000 of the Year Under Review.

Although the overall revenue decrease, the provision of beauty
and slimming services, sales of healthy, beauty and related
products and net gain resulting from the investment in securities
recorded a satisfied result. The revenue from provision of
beauty and slimming services increased from approximately
HK$48,939,000 to HK$57,465,000 during the Year Under Review.
The revenue from sales of healthy, beauty and related products
increased from approximately HK$4,562,000 to HK$6,840,000
during the Year Under Review. Net gain of HK$ 4,769,000 results
from the investment in securities during the Year Under Review
compared to net loss of HK$ 6,149,000 last year.

During the Year Under Review, general and administrative
expenses amounted to HK$81,220,000 representing an increase
of approximately 12.4% or HK$8,978,000 from approximately
HK$72,242,000 for the same period last year. The selling and
distribution cost remains similar to last year.

Notwithstanding the improved gross profit and lower levels of
taxation, the elevated general and administrative costs and
dropped revenue, led to an increased loss attributable to the
owners of the Company from approximately HK$13,933,000 to
HK$14,297,000.
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MANAGEMENT’S STATEMENT
BEE®RE

Appreciation

On behalf of the Company, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, my fellow members in the Board
and our hardworking staff, as well as our loyal customers,
business partners and other stakeholders for their valuable
contributions and strong support for the Group. | would also like
to take this opportunity to welcome our new member Mr. Lei
Nelson, an executive director of the Company joining us in the
Year Under Review. In addition, | would like to give my heartfelt
appreciation to our executive director and non-executive director,
Mr. Chan Ka Kin and Mr. Togo Takashi who have resigned, in
the Year Under Review, for their long-standing support and
contribution to the Group. We will continue to provide the
market with high quality service and adopt the most stringent
controls and adaptable strategies to drive the Group’s business
development in the long term. With our persistent dedication
and relentless efforts, | am confident that the Group is able
to overcome any obstacle ahead and adhere to its vision and
mission to bring rewarding returns to all shareholders.

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& DN

Business Review

In 2023, the growth of the global economy was slow. The demand
from different international markets shrank. The global economy
was subject to various challenges such as rapid inflation and
interest rates hikes particularly due to the Russia-Ukraine conflict
and Sino-US relations, whilst consumer demand was lackluster
as overall market recovery was more moderate than expected.

In China, the retail market made twists and turns after the
pandemic. The GDP growth in 2023 was approximately 5.2%,
which was surpassing the official target. However, the economic
recovery was uneven. The retail sales slowed down, consumer
confidence was remained cautious. In Hong Kong, the challenging
external environment, the economic slowdown in China and
tightening monetary policy constrained the economic recovery
in the aftermath of the COVID-19 pandemic. The Group’s
management stayed vigilant and closely monitored changes in
the economic landscape. Well-laid response strategies that fully
leveraged the Group’s strengths were formulated to actively
adjust its business deployment.

For the Year Under Review, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$1,092,735,000, representing a decrease
of 11.3% from approximately HK$1,231,548,000 of last year.
This was mainly attributable to (i) the decrease of revenue
from distribution sales of cosmetic and skin care products by
approximately HK$157,432,000; (ii) the decrease of revenue
from interest income from money lending by approximately
HK$3,070,000; and (i) net gain of approximately HK$4,769,000
resulting from the investment in securities compared to net loss
of approximately HK$6,149,000 last year.

The business of distribution of sales of cosmetic and skin care
products of Shanghai Dong Fang Ri Hua Sales Co. Ltd. (“Dong
Fang”) China suffered from the sluggish economic conditions
which led to a pull back in consumer discretionary spending.
The sales generated by Dong Fang dropped by approximately
HK$157,432,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWN DN

The result of investment in securities was improved. Under the
global geopolitical tension and tightened financial conditions
resulting from the sharp interest rate hikes posed difficulties to
the stock markets all over the world. The Group managed to
maintain a net gain of approximately HK$4,769,000 of investment
in securities in the Year under Review.

Though the pandemic outbreak was over, the weak global
demand remained and the slowdown of retail industry affected
the Group’s provision of beauty and slimming services. The
Group followed its principles by providing good quality products,
professional services and honest operation and empowered the
Group to achieve a remarkable result in the current financial
year with an increase of approximately HK$8,526,000 under this
uncertain environment.

Since last year, the Group launched a new product called iPRO
NMN Deluxe 3 in 1 (the “NMN Deluxe”). NMN Deluxe is an anti-
aging product which could activate the body’s defences against
aging. The Group keeps placing a great effort to promote
the NMN Deluxe through different marketing channels and
cooperated with well established distributor for the customers to
access to our products. The revenue from sales of healthy beauty
and related products were improved remarkably.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& DN

The interest income from money lending business decreased
approximately from HK$11,164,000 to approximately HK$8,094,000
of the Year under Review. The decrease of interest income arose
from a more cautious for the Group in reviewing and approving
the application of the loans with a higher standard on due
diligence and in results, only qualified loans are made. In light of
uncertain market conditions, the Group remained prudent and
cautiously monitored the development of the Group’s money
lending business.

Loss for the year was approximately HK$14,391,000 as
compared with loss for the year of approximately HK$14,668,000
of last year. The reason for the loss is the decrease of overall
revenue together with the increased general and administrative
expenses. For the Year Under Review, the Group recorded
approximately HK$81,220,000 (2023: HK$72,242,000) and
approximately HK$42,853,000 (2023: HK$45,634,000) of general
and administrative expenses and selling and distribution expenses
respectively.

As at 31 March 2024, cash and bank balances was approximately
HK$390,265,000 (2023: approximately HK$416,179,000),
whereas liquidity ratio (represented by a ratio of current assets
over current liabilities) was 8.03 (2023: 5.83), reflecting the
adequacy of financial resources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWN DN

Beauty, Slimming and Spa Centres

During the Year under Review, as economic activities normalised
after three years of the pandemic, global recovery was hindered
by elevated commodity prices, high inflation and disrupted supply
chains impact on consumer confidence. Therefore, the Group
faced various negative factors such as increasing costs of sales,
rising salaries and inflating rentals. The beauty, slimming and spa
business was unavoidably affected to some extent in the Year
Under Review, but the Group backed by the strengths of the
brand and quality service recorded an increase of 17.4% in the
overall revenue of this business segment as compared to last
year.

The Group has a long history in the operation of beauty, slimming
and spa centres in Hong Kong. With extensive experience in the
industry and committed efforts for innovations, the Group has
continuously introduced sophisticated services and products
of the highest quality for its customers, winning the long-term
favour of its customers for its beauty and slimming products
and services while successfully establishing brand advantages
and customer loyalty. To further fortify its leading position in the
industry, the Group has introduced a number of new beauty,
slimming and anti-ageing treatments and machineries during the
Year Under Review.

As the first listed beauty and slimming company in Hong Kong,
the Group has consistently uphold the principles of quality
products, professional services and honest operation. Backed by
the strengths of the brand, the Group has won numerous awards
over the years and enjoys sound reputation in Hong Kong. It was
strongly trusted by its customers. With increasingly intensive
market competition, some industry players have resorted to all
possible means including dishonest sales methods to secure
their market shares. Coupled with various beauty and slimming
incidents during recent years and seriously weak and outdated
government supervision, customer confidence has been impaired.
This, however, has at the same time encouraged the customer
demand for quality beauty and slimming services. In view of this,
the Group will continue to provide quality products and services.
Maintaining the strategy of winning with quality, the Group will
continue to leverage on its professional and outstanding beauty
and slimming technologies, bring its brand visibility to the full
play, and operate with honest and honour, in order to win over the
consumers’ trust, secure a wider business coverage in the high-
end market and thereby realise sustainable growth and return.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Distribution Business in the PRC

Product distribution in the PRC is another core business of the
Group and is carried out by the Group’s subsidiary, Dong Fang.
Dong Fang is one of the top three distributors of P&G in the
greater China in terms of average sales in the PRC, and is the top
distributor in the East China area. It is responsible for the overall
distribution coverage in the Shanghai region and provides supply
and sales services to its customers via various channels, including
online platforms, electrical appliances merchants, department
stores channel, local modernised retail malls, supermarkets,
small-sized supermarkets, convenient stores, maternity stores
and cosmetic stores headquartered or regionally headquartered
in Shanghai. Products involved include OLAY skincare, Head &
Shoulders, Vidal Sassoon, Pantene, Rejoice, Pampers, Crest,
Safeguard, Whisper, Ariel, Oral-B and Gillette. Moreover, the
Company is responsible for the SK-II business in East and West
China areas, covering Shanghai city, Zhejiang Province, Jiangsu
Province, Anhui Province, Henan Province, Shanxi Province,
Sichuan Province and Chongging city (8 provinces and cities
in total). In the Year Under Review, the business of distribution
sales of cosmetic and skin care products of Dong Fang recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$1,015,567,000, representing a
decrease of 13.4% from approximately HK$1,172,999,000 of last
year. The overall economic slowdown in China has dampened
discretionary spending, leading consumers to be more cautious
with their purchases. The retail sales in Dong Fang dropped
accordingly.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENR&R D

Health, Beauty and Related Products

The Group spares no efforts in keeping itself abreast of time and
marching at the forefront of the market. Through heavily investing
in the development and introduction of products embedding
advanced technologies and safe ingredients to enrich its portfolio
of health and beauty products, the Group targets to bring to its
customers a wider array of sophisticated product choices. This
will in turn further enhance the attraction of the brand name “Sau
San Tong” and “IPRO” and ensure the Group’s leading market
position.

During the Year Under Review, the NMN Deluxe, a newly
launched product, was marketed successfully. Going forward, the
Group will continue to launch different safe and effective products
that meet the different needs of its customers, helping them to
achieve beauty in a healthy way. We believe that the segment of
distribution of health and beauty products will continue to make a
stable contribution to the Group’s results in the time ahead.

Franchise Co-operation Business in the PRC

Building on its successful business in Hong Kong and a strong
brand visibility, the Group started venturing into the enormous
market in the PRC back in early 2004. The Group established the
uniqueness of the brand and identified ourselves as a leader in
the slimming and beauty industry. Since the efforts to developing
the franchise cooperation business in full sail since December
2010, we have entered into a number of franchise co-operation
contracts. The existing number of franchise co-operation shops
put our brand on the top position in the beauty and slimming
industry in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& DN

Securities Investments Business

As a move to expand its diversified business, the Group has
commenced the new segment of securities investments business
in March 2015 to put the idle funds of the Company into long-
and short-term investments in listed securities in Hong Kong
and other recognised securities markets in the overseas as well
as wealth management products purchased from banks and
other financial institutions, with a view to generate additional
income outside its retail business, to widen its revenue base
and minimise the risks of the Group on the overall, in order to
enhance the capital use of the Company as well as the overall
interests of the Company and its shareholders. This new segment
of securities investments has good contribution to the revenue
and profit of the Group in the Year Under Review. During the
Year Under Review, the Group has recorded a net gain of
approximately HK$4,769,000 from its investments in the Hong
Kong stock market and unlisted equity fund outside Hong Kong
compared with net loss of approximately HK$6,149,000 last
year. The investment portfolio included investments in a variety
of industries including construction, real estates, internet service,
retailing, food and beverage, finance, industry and education,
with the objective of minimising the risks while maximising the
return. As at 31 March 2024, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss amounted to approximately HK$102,649,000 (2023:
HK$107,098,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENR&R D

Money Lending Business

In addition, the Group engaged in money lending in order to
better utilise the idle funds to generate additional returns. The
Group is a legitimate money lender licenced in Hong Kong
under the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance. The
Group’s targeted corporations, which are small to medium sized
corporations including both listed and non-listed corporations,
and businessmen in various industries mainly acquired through
business referrals and introductions.

Loan applications are reviewed by the Group with a series of
due diligence work to assess the credit worthiness of applicants
and their financial ability for loan repayments. Due diligence
performed by the Group involves know your client (“KYC”)
procedures including obtaining information as to source and
amount of income, proof of other net assets, ID copy, address
proof, etc. The loan terms would be arrived at after considering
a combination of factors including prevalent market rates, the
financial strength of the applicants, the collaterals offered and
past credit history of the applicants with the Group.

Monitoring of loan repayment and recovery are a continuing
task of the Group. The Group has regularly communicated with
borrowers regarding their financial condition and search through
publicly available information to ascertain whether the borrowers
have any difficulty in making repayment on time.

There was a total of 39 (2023: 28) borrowers for the loan
receivables as at 31 March 2024.

The Group provided both secured and unsecured loans with terms
ranging from several months to 3 years. The Group has recorded
revenue of approximately HK$8,094,000 (2023: HK$11,164,000)
for the Year Under Review. As at 31 March 2024, the loans and
interest receivables from money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$69,644,000 (2023: HK$63,156,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Credit Assessment System of the Group

In order to perform credit assessment on the loan applicants of
the Group, the Group conducts a series of due diligence work to
assess (i) the credit worthiness of applicants, and (ii) their financial
ability for loan repayments.

Due diligence performed by the Group involves know your client
(“KYC”) procedures, including but not limited to (i) obtaining
information as to source and amount of income, proof of other
net assets, copy of identity card, address proof, (ii) interviewing
the applicants to understand heir financial needs and repayment
abilities, (iii) inspecting supporting documents to verify the
information submitted by the applicants, and (iv) performing
background research and on-site visit.

Determination of Interest Rate

The interest rate charged on the loan portfolio by the Group was
subject to the macro-economic factors during the time of the loan
granted. The loan terms, including the interest rate, were arrived
at after considering a combination of factors including (i) the
prevalent market rates, (ii) the financial strength of the applicants,
(iii) the collaterals offered, and (iv) the past credit history of the
applicants with the Group.

Determination of interest rate, or the range of interest rate, is
assessed on case-by-case and dynamic basis taking into account
of totality of the circumstances (rather than on a bright-line test
basis) which could be varied over time. Generally, the ranges of
interest rate offered for the loan receivables could be summarised
as below. However, it does not form a bright-line test basis for the
Group to grant loan going forward and all relevant factors should
be considered on case-by-case basis from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWN DN

Interest rates ranged from 6% to 12%

In general, for those loan applicants who could demonstrate
satisfactory creditworthiness and financial ability to make loan
repayment without any material findings by the Group, the Group
would offer interest rate mainly ranging from 8% to 12%, except
individual cases that the loan applicant could demonstrate
exceptionally promising creditworthiness and strong financial
ability, then the Group would offer a lower interest of 6% when
the general market offered very low interest rate.

For this group of loan applicants, satisfactory creditworthiness
was demonstrated by a combination of:

o good repayment record in the past;

° high consistency between the supporting documents
provided and the descriptions and representations made by
the loan applicant;

o sustainable operating history and track record; and/or

° reputable character and/or renowned brand name in their
respective industry.

Further, the loan applicants were able to demonstrate that

they possess the financial ability to make loan repayment by a
combination of:

holding of good quality asset(s);

° relatively low debt to the income ratio of the loan applicant;

o relatively low gearing ratio and solid financial liquidity; and/or

o able to provide, if any, other personal guarantor or high
value collateral as additional proof of financial ability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEN W& DN

Interest rates ranging from 14% to 16%

During the course of conducting due diligence on the loan
applicant by the Group, if it comes to the attention of the Group
that there are any findings potentially raising additional concern
to the Group, regardless of such findings relate to the loan
applicant’s credit worthiness or the financial ability, appropriate
following-up steps will be taken by the Group.

If appropriate reasonable explanation could be provided by the
loan applicant, with the support of sufficient documents to justify
the loan applicant, that the Group could conclude the expectation
of the potential risk is still minimal, the Group would then tend to
charge an interest rate ranging from 14% to 16%, which is slightly
higher than the general range of 8% to 12%.

Interest rates ranging from 24% to 30%

For all findings in the due diligence process, the Group would
take appropriate follow-up steps to assess the impact of such
findings to the loan applicant’s creditworthiness and financial
ability. In the event that the findings causing a potential risk exists
but at an acceptable low level, and the loan applicant’s capability
to meet the financial obligation is considered adequate in the
event of adverse business or economic conditions, the Group
would then tend to charge a high interest rate ranging from 24%
to 30%, which is higher than the general range of 8% to 12% and
the range of 14% to 16%.

Interest rates ranging from 36% to 48%

In the event that, after conducting all reasonable steps to
following up the findings, the Group concludes the findings
could potentially elevated the vulnerability of the loan applicant,
particularly in the event of adverse change in business or
economic conditions, but the business or financial flexibility
available to the loan applicant could still support the serving of its
financial commitment, the Group tends to charge a premium high
interest rate ranging from 36% to 48%, which is notably higher
than the other interest rate ranges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWN DN

Since the potential risk of this group of borrowers are in general
higher than the others, the loan term would generally shorten to
two or three months only. For this type of high risk borrowers, the
Company would put through additional effort to closely monitor
the repayment progress to ensure the collectability. In particular,
the interest would typically be charged and paid on monthly basis
and the Company would closely monitor the borrower’s interest
repayment.

The Benchmark of Borrowers of the Group

The benchmarks that the customer should meet to become the
Company target/potential customers are mainly (i) satisfactory
credit worthiness, and (ii) the financial ability to make loan
repayment, having taken into account of all relevant factors
after performing the respective due diligence by the Group. The
followings are the key factors to be considered in assessing
whether the borrowers meet the above benchmark and up to the
satisfaction of the Group.

Corporate Customers:

To avoid a high level of concentration risk, prospective borrowers
are not restricted to a particular industry and the existing
borrowers are also not from a particular industry.

° The prospective borrowers should have principal business
operation in Hong Kong which could facilitate the Group’s
KYC procedures.

° Minimum amount of revenue/profit in the last 12 months and
minimum amount of total assets/net assets as at a particular
date are to be considered collectively but not in an absolute
benchmark. The value of collateral and the financial position
are also one of the factors to be considered. However, when
there is no guarantee or collateral attached, ratio of loan
amount to profit, ratio of loan amount to revenue and ratio
of loan amount to net assets value are to be considered
collectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

The cash flow information and loan applicant’s budgeting, if
available, are other financial benchmarks acceptable to the
Group. These could solidify the Group’s understandings on
the loan applicant and facilitate the Group to estimate the
recoverability of the loan.

Length of operation history is considered but this is not the
only conclusive factor.

Legal cases and/or public news of the corporation are also
the factors to be considered.

Individual Customers:

No particular age group of prospective borrowers is
targeted.

No particular occupation of prospective borrowers is
targeted.

Minimum asset threshold are not set. However, other types
of asset proof and income proof are one of the key factors
to be considered to assess the financial solvency.

Legal cases and/or public news of the individual are also the
factors to be considered.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWwR D

Overdue Loan and Actions Taken by the BHERRAEBEFERIITE
Group
The following table sets forth the distribution of the balances of T%:Z%WJZK% RZTZMF=A=+—AK
the Group’s outstanding loan exposure to borrowers by size asat —ZE_=F=ZA=+—HERHAREDNERA
31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023: RAERERERN DM
Not yet due with
Overdue for period maturity
BHRHA HRHATMELE R
Gross loans Net loans over
Interest  receivable receivable 1 year
Tenure rates as at as at and
Principal amount RUERKE Number  of the per 31 March Loss 31 March within over  within  within
when the loan granted ke 2} of loan loan  annum 2024 allowance 2024  1year  1year  1year  2years
RZZ-mE RZB-mE
=B=t-H =A=t+-8
HEREH HERER 180 E
EXHE HRE  ERE By FRAR FEOAFNA 1FULE 1EMA 2FMNR
Months % HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A % FEx  FExm fE#z FEx FExr  TEz  TEx
Less than or equal to HRFARZ 5,000,000 2t036 7to48
HK$5 million BT 39 2Z36 T1E48 67,287 (18,022 49,265 17,150 1,492 14,336 16,286
Over HK$5 million but less than  #2185,000,000% 7L 18
or equal to HK$10 million DPRIBER 9to 24
10,000,000 7T 2 9E24 10 13,500 (239) 13,261 - - 5,894 7,367
Over HK$10 million but less 510,000,000 7t (4
than or equal to ek 8% 5:15,000,000
HK$15 million BT 1 36 8 6,024 (130) 5,894 - - - 5,895
Total @it 86,811 (18,391) 68,420 17,150 1,492 20,230 29,548
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENW& N

QOverdue for period Not yet due with maturity
AHEERA HAIEMIHAR B
Gross loans Net loans over over
Interest receivable receivable 1year 2 years
rates as at asat and and
Principal amount RHEHRK Number  Tenure of per 31 March Loss 31 March within over within within within
when the loan granted WA H of loan  the loan annum 2023 allowance 2023 1 year 1 year 1year  2years  3years
RZB-Zf RZZ-=%
=A=+-H =A=t-H
MERER fERER 1F0E 2FNE
ENHE  ERE FAX #E FRER FEOIENA 1FNLE 1FMR 2R SEUA
Months % HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$ 000
A % FET  TEL Fér  FErT  TEL  FEr  FET TEr
Lessthanorequalto  PRIIEER
HK$5 million 5,000,000/ 7T 38 2t036 71048 55,586 (10,346) 45,240 8,245 3267 26,345 4,481 2,902
Over HKS$5 million but 8 85,000,0007% 10
less than or equal to BHRFBER
HK$10 million 10,000,000% 7T 1 24 10 8,000 (24) 7,976 - - - 7,976 -
Over HK$10 million but ~ #8810,000,000% 70
less than or equal to BHRFBER
HK$15 million 15,000,000% 7T 1 36 8 9,886 (30) 9,856 - - - - 9,856
Total @it 73,472 (10,400) 63,072 8,245 3267 26345 12457 12,758
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENR&R D

The Group has taken the following actions in recovering the
overdue loan amounts:

(i) issued demand letters to the borrowers;
(i) made calls to demand full repayment;

(i) enquired the borrowers the expected time to fully repay the
loan;

(iv) considered and continued to evaluate the cost and benefits
to take legal actions against the borrowers (for those
borrowers who could demonstrate that they are fully aware
of their overdue obligation; easily reachable by our Group;
committed to repay as soon as possible and continue to
make timely repayment of interest after the maturity date,
the Group may not take legal actions immediately which
could incur additional legal cost to us); and

(v) consulted external legal advisers and took legal actions
against the borrowers when necessary.

The Group applies general approach in measuring loss allowance
for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on loan receivable in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS”) 9
Details of the ECL model are disclosed in the notes of the
consolidated financial statements.

In assessing default risk of loan receivables, the following factors
have been taken into consideration:

collateral ratio (if any);

- amount of actual shortfall;

- time of delay in payment;

- responsive to the Group’s request in repayment after
maturity of loan; and

- external market indicators that are expected to cause a
significant change in the borrower’s ability to meet its debt
obligation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

In particular, based on the ECL assessment for the Year Under

Review, the Group has made provision for several borrowers,

which are set out in the following tables.

Name of
relevant Client

HEEFER

Relevant Client 1

REEF

Relevant Client 2

REEF2

Relationship
with the Group

BEAKEHE

Independent
third party

Independent
third party

Means of
introduction

Date of

to the Group agreement

RRARH
2B

By referral

-
=

By referral

EEE

18/12/2020

—E-T&

—R ==

+-A+/NR

16/6/2022

Terms of
the loan

ERAR

Note: The amount represents the outstanding principal balance with accrued

interest as at 31 March 2024.

R BEARBFEOHEBEEERTME
AREEHBAERATREE ARERD

TRAR -

Outstanding Interest rate

amount  per annum
AEELH FRR
HK$ 000
FET
(Note)
(H1it)
2,880 12%
2,880 12%
395 10%
395 10%
M

Due diligence
performed
by the Group
REEET
ZEBRBE

Full KYC procedures
including obtaining
information as to source
and amount of income,
ID copy and address
proof

THRERPGHERE BE
EREARARERE
HEHN FHFEIRRM
it 7 B

Full KYC procedures
including obtaining
information as to source
and amount of income,
ID copy and address
proof

TRERPGHZRE BE
EREARARERE
HEHN FHFRIARM
3t A

ZEHEER_ZF_ME=A=+—HZKEE

AR REANENERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWER DM
Name of Outstanding

relevant Client

HEEF&W

Relevant Client 1

HEEF1

Relevant Client 2

HEEF2

amount

REESHE
HK$’000
FET

2,880

2,880

395

395

Amount of
provision
during the
year ended
31 March
2024

BZE
—E-IMEF
=H=+—H
LFEE
ZRBEESHE
HK$'000
FET

2,880

2,880

387

387

Collateral
and/or
guarantee
obtained

sz
7 m
R/ RER

No

No
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Event leading to impairments

HHREZSEH

The loan receivable was reclassified from stage 2
to stage 3. The loan and the interest were past
due. Relevant Client 1 repaid certain amount of
interest and principal after negotiation. However,
the Relevant Client 1 stopped the repayment.
The Group sent the demand letter and initiated
legal actions.

RURERCHEREREFTDBEFRR -ERR
MEXNEBSH - KEEHRZ HEEFP1 EEE
ETHNERAEEE A HEATF1ZILE
B-AEEEELEMGE YREUEETH-

The loan receivable was reclassified from
stage 2 to stage 3. The loan and the interest
not yet past due. Relevant Client 2 repaid
certain amount of interest and principal after
negotiation. However, the Relevant Client 2
stopped the repayment. The Group sent the
demand letter and initiated legal actions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Outlook

The Group’s performance was improved in the Year Under
Review. Yet, the Group will remain cautious to the volatile
business environment and the economy. The Group will continue
to consistently maintain a positive attitude to explore, research
and develop more sophisticated and effective health and beauty
products and professional treatments, in order to meet the
pursuit and demand for beauty and health by the ladies in Hong
Kong and China and in turn achieve stable growth and enhance
the performance of the Group’s core business. Meanwhile, the
Group is also devoted to the training of its people, and has
specifically devised training courses targeted at the employees of
the franchise co-operation shops on the mainland market, with
the aim to ensure the consistence in the quality of operation and
services of the beauty, slimming and spa centres across different
places.

In addition, parallel to its focus on the beauty and slimming
business, the Group will also utilise the abundant funds on hand
to identify new investment opportunities, including appropriate
and timely investments in securities, money lending and
properties, with the objectives of generating additional return,
broadening its revenue base, enhance the efficiency of capital
use and further promote the performance of the Group in different
areas. The Group will meticulously select sound investments with
high return potentials. Moving forward, the Group will concentrate
on bringing its strengths, customer base, reputation and other
advantages into full play in order to actualise stable growth
of its core business. This will be complemented with careful
investments in the effort to bring along more rewarding returns to
our investors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENR&R D

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a leader in the beauty and slimming industry, the Group is
dedicated to leading the way in enhancing the safety level of the
sector. We have always attached great importance to the safety
of our services and products and exercises stringent quality
control on its products. The machines and materials used in our
treatment services have passed vigorous safety tests and attained
international safety standards. Beauty and slimming consultants
and technicians of both the direct operations and franchise co-
operation businesses of the Group all received professional
training to ensure the provision of safe services of high quality.

Awards

Widely recognised and highly praised for its outstanding products
and services, the Group was honoured to be the “Caring
Company” for ten consecutive years.

Charity

Since its establishment, the Group has been actively partaking
in charity affairs and has set up the “Sau San Tong Volunteer
Team” in an effort to support different charity initiatives. During
the Year Under Review, the Group continued to make regular
charity donations in the pursuit for inner beauty, alongside with its
yearning for physical perfection.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEN®RD

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial
Resources

Cash and bank balances as at 31 March 2024 were approximately
HK$390,265,000 compared to approximately HK$416,179,000
as at 31 March 2023. Gearing ratio of the Group was 0.1%
(2023: 0.2%), based on total of loans of HK$1,009,000
(2023: HK$1,356,000) and the net assets of approximately
HK$756,007,000 (2023: approximately HK$775,706,000). As at
31 March 2024, liability of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$87,349,000 (2023: approximately HK$125,638,000), including
trade and other payables of approximately HK$64,301,000
(2023: approximately HK$107,523,000) arising mainly from
the daily operations of our subsidiary, Dong Fang and contract
liabilities of approximately HK$11,628,000 (2023: approximately
HK$10,385,000). The decrease of trade and other payables was
consistent of decrease of revenue. The liability was intended
to be financed by internal resources of the Group. The liquidity
ratio of the Group represented by a ratio of current assets over
current liabilities was 8.03 (2023: 5.83), reflecting the adequacy
of financial resources.

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent approach towards its treasury
policies. The Group evaluates the financial condition of its
customers regularly to mitigate the credit risk. The average
outstanding days of the Group’s trade receivable was maintained
at below 90 days. To manage the liquidity risk, the Group closely
monitors its liquidity position to ensure the liquidity structure of
the Group’s assets, liabilities and commitments and to ensure
the fulfillment of its funding requirements. The Group has no
investments in derivatives, bonds or structured financial products.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

Since the assets, liabilities, revenue and payments of the Group
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi, the
Group considers that there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations.

BEXRB RBESRYBER

RZTEZMF=A=+—AZ2ReRETHE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENR&R D

Use of Proceeds

The Group completed the Rights Issue on 3 March 2017 resulting
in net proceeds of approximately HK$352,000,000. As at 30
November 2023, the Company has unutilised net proceeds from
the Rights Issue (the “Net Proceeds”) of approximately HK$135.8
million. The board of directors (the “Director(s)”) of the Company
(the “Board”) has resolved to change the proposed use of the
unutilised Net Proceeds. The detail of the used of proceed is
as follows. For further details of the change in use of proceeds,
please refer to the announcement on 30 November 2023

Revised
allocation Actual
of unutilised amount
Original Net Proceeds utilised
allocation as at 30 during the
of the Net November year ended 31
Use of Net Proceeds Proceeds 2023  March 2024
RZBZZF Bz
+-B=+R ZE2-@m%
Frigs8 HEBHA =ZA=t-8
Rz FMBREFE LEEZEH
FBREFERRE REAR ZBBI2E REERELE
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
BE¥ET BEET BEET
Acquisition of commercial, industrial and residential 174 58 -
properties situated in the PRC and Hong Kong
(the “Properties Acquisition”)
WRURTEAREE EE TEREENE
(MzKE])
Repayment of the outstanding amount due to Dr. 20 20 -
Cheung Yuk Shan, Shirley under the Convertible
Note
EBRTARZEATRNRERBEL 2 RENHE
Development of the Group’s money lending 40 78 -
business
RRARE HESH
Renovation of offices and shops in the PRC and 60 50 0.6
Hong Kong
BRYEREARAERESR
Development of securities investment business 30 30 -
EREFREER
General working capital of the Group and/or 28 116 13.4
investment opportunities
AEE-REBASR /ARARE
Total 352 352 14.0
Mzt
Note:

The expected timelines for utilising the remaining Net Proceeds is based
on the best estimation of the present and future business market situations
made by the Group. It may be subject to further change based on the future
development of the market conditions.
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Utilised Remaining
amount of the balance of the

Expected timeline
for unutilised

Net Proceeds Net Proceeds  Net Proceeds
as at the date as at the date  as at the date of
of this report  of this report  this report (Note)
REARERS REABREAH RABEAHHRDA
FERERE BTHRE MERERE
ZEBREE FEEE  ZEERBER (W)
HKE million HKS million
BEET EE¥T
21.0 37.6 By 31 December 2025
—E-RE+-A=+—H#
20 - -
78 - -
19.8 29.6 By 31 December 2025
“E-RE+-A=+—HA
30 - -
61.4 54.6 By 31 December 2025
“EC-RFT-A=+-AH
230.2 121.8
EE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENW& N

Net Assets

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s net assets amounted to
approximately HK$756,007,000 compared to approximately
HK$775,706,000 as at 31 March 2023. No bank deposits have
been pledged for certain banking facilities of the Group as at 31
March 2024 and 2023. There are no other charges on the Group’s
assets as at 31 March 2024 and 2023.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had 213 (2023: 229) employees.
During the year, the Group’s total staff costs amounted
to approximately HK$56,617,000 (2023: approximately
HK$57,976,000).

The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated on the basis of
the performance and experience of individual employee and are in
line with practices of local markets in which the Group operates.
In addition to salary, the Group also offers to its employees other
fringe benefits including share option, provident fund and medical
benefits.

Share Option Scheme

The Group has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire shares of the
Company, under the terms and conditions stipulated therein, as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group. During
the year ended 31 March 2024, the aggregate of 5,253,458
outstanding options allow the subscription of 5,253,458 shares
of the Company pursuant to the share option scheme adopted on
24 February 2016.

EEFHE

RZZE-_WMF=A=+—H AEBZEETF
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RZE-_WMF=ZA=+—H AEEEHF213
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENR&R D

Future Plans

The Group will continue to spare no efforts in the development
and introduction of different sophisticated and innovative
treatment, products and machines of supreme quality to nurture
our portfolio of services and products into one that is diversified,
accommodated to market demands and attractive to new
customers. We will however adopt a more careful approach
under the uncertainties in the macroeconomy and operating
environment at present.

Seeing the increasing influence of the social media in Hong Kong,
the Group plans to increase its promotional efforts on different
social media platforms in order to increase the awareness of the
younger generation for our brands name Sau San Tong and IPRO,
and thereby broaden the Group’s customer base.

The Group will also increase the investment of the abundant funds
on hand into securities, money lending, properties and other
opportunities. Apart from the generation of additional investment
return, it can also open up new revenue bases and promote the
efficiency of capital use, and thereby procure more rewarding
return to our shareholders.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

AR E

AEEGHEBEDNIRERSIESREE BIF
ZEBEEFER EmkESs WSHEMAZRBR

mAAE LT BT ISR R LRI A
BE-Am ERNBMZEZBEEERERRED
B AR ERZEE -

BEEBHEIKBIFENARER A&E
AEZMABTRERKER T aEITEEHERE
RUENFRE-—RKEEFE] RTEHN] Mg
BB KMBARNKREZEPER -

A AEEKEZNMIBFLZARES &
ERNEF RERMESAR EELBIN
EEHzl TARENEREER SEXE
REAEMzD ABRRERELBEMDR-



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EENSREEAERE

Directors
Executive Director

Mr. MUI Wai Sum (“Mr. Mui”), aged 36, is an Executive
Director and joined the Group in December 2014. He is also
a member of the Company’s nomination committee. He also
holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company.
On 18 September 2023, Mr. Mui has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive director of Grand Brilliance Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8372), a company listed on
the GEM Board of the stock exchange. Mr. Mui has extensive
experience in corporate finance, corporate restructuring and
securities investment. Mr. Mui currently holds various positions
in public service, and is a vice chairperson of Yan Oi Tong, one
of the largest charity organizations in Hong Kong. Mr. Mui is a
fellow certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree in General Finance and a Master of Arts
degree in Philosophy from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. LEI Nelson (“Mr. Lei”), aged 36, is a certified public
accountant of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and also certified as certified management accountant of the
Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. Lei holds a bachelor
degree of arts in applied mathematics and statistics from
University of California, Berkeley. He also has a master degree
of science in electronic commerce and internet computing
from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lei has over 10 years of
working experience in accounting, risk management and asset
management. Mr. Lei is the Company Secretary of hmvod Limited
(a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 8103).
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Independent Non-executive Director

Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok, Aleen (“Ms. Tsang”), aged 36, joined
the Group in December 2022 as an Independent Non-executive
Director, and also a member of the audit committee and the
nomination committee and the chairman of remuneration
committee of the Company. Ms. Tsang is a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Tsang holds a bachelor degree of Business
administration in information systems from the University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Tsang has over 10 years of working experience in
auditing and accounting profession.

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred (“Mr. Lau”), aged 44, is an
Independent Non-executive Director and joined the Group in
December 2016. He is the chairman of the audit committee,
member of the remuneration committee and the nomination
committee of the Company. He has over 21 years of working
experience in accounting, corporate finance, debt restructuring
and private equity investment. Mr. Lau holds a bachelor
degree of business administration from City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lau is a member of American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and also is a certified public accountant in
Washington State, USA.

Mr. Lau is the Independent Non-executive Director of Xinming
China Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2699) and the Independent
Non-executive Director of Sky Light Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
3882). Mr. Lau has also been an Independent Non-executive
Director of Jianzhi Education Technology Group Company Limited
(a company listed on NASDAQ, stock code: JZ).

Mr. Lau was the Company Secretary and the Executive Director
of Risecomm Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1679) during the
period from 3 July 2020 to 31 July 20283.

Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of C&D Newin
Paper & Pulp Corporation Limited (a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 0731, formally named
as Samson Paper Holdings) from 17 July 2020 to 21 May 2021,
and re-designated as an Executive Director since 21 May 2021.
On 26 January 2022, Mr. Lau resigned as an executive director of
such company.
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Mr. AU Siu Lun (“Mr. Au”), aged 47, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and joined the Group in May 2020. He is the
member of the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee. He graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a degree in finance in 1998, Mr. Au has over 25
years of working experience in finance, information technology
and strategic planning for enterprises. He is the Co-founder and
Chairman of a FinTech company which is the member of the
Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, located in California, US.

Senior Management

Dr. KWAN Fei Ying (“Dr. Kwan”), aged 40, is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Dr. Kwan joined the Company in December
2015 and is responsible for the overall management, business
strategy and development of the Group. She is also involved in
the formulation of various aspects of the Group’s policies. Dr.
Kwan holds an honorary doctorate degree from the International
American University, U.S.A. and has more than 19 years of
experience in the beauty and slimming industry. Dr. Kwan has
served as the management of a beauty and slimming company
in Hong Kong and is the vice president of Hong Kong Beauty
Industry Union.
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Introduction

The Board presents this Corporate Governance Report in this
annual report for the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group. It believes in good corporate governance
practices that strengthen investors’ confidence, facilitate the
development of the Group, and increase transparency in the
operation of the Group, ultimately striving for the long-term
interest of the Group and enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report (the “Code”) contained in Appendix
C1 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March
2024, except for the following deviation:

Code provision C.2 and C.2.7

Code provision C.2 stipulates the role of the chairman of the
Board. The Company does not have the chairman of the Board
and hence does not compiled with code provision. The Company
has two executive directors who have performed part of the
function of the chairman of the Board.

Code provision C.2.7 stipulates that the chairman of the board
of directors should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) without the executive directors’ presence. The
Company does not have the chairman of the Board of directors.
The management of the Company considered that it was
unnecessary as it would be more transparent and efficient to let
the Independent Non-executive Directors express their views to
all Executive Directors in the meetings of the Board. Besides, the
management of the Company always welcomes all Independent
Non-executive Directors to communicate with them directly via
email or phone to discuss any matters of the Company from time
to time.
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Code provision B.2.2

Code provision B.2.2 stipulates all the non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
The term of office for non-executive directors is subject to
retirement from office by rotation and is eligible for re-election
in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws.
At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for
the time being, (or if their number is not a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation. As such, the Company considers that such
provisions are sufficient to meet the underlying objective of this
code provision.

Code provision C.1.6

Code provision C.1.6 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors, as equal board
members, should attend general meetings of the Company and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen, Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred and Mr.
Au Siu Lun being the Independent Non-executive Directors,
attended the annual general meeting of the Company held on 22
September 2023.

Code provision D.1.2

Code provision D.1.2 stipulates that the management shall
provide all members of the board with monthly updates.
Management considers that quarterly updates and periodic
instant updates when developments arising out of the ordinary
business instead of monthly updates are sufficient for the Board
to discharge its duties. Besides, during the Year Under Review,
the Executive Directors have provided, and will continue to
provide, to all Independent Non-executive Directors updates
on any material changes to the position and prospects of the
Company, which are considered to be sufficient to provide
general updates of the Company’s performance, position and
prospects to the Board and allow them to give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the same to serve the purpose
required by the code provision D.1.2.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than
the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year ended 31
March 2024.

Corporate Culture and Strategy

The Board has set the following values to provide guidance
on employees’ conduct and behaviors as well as the business
activities, and to ensure they are embedded throughout the
Company’s vision, mission, policies and business strategies:

Integrity: do the right things;

° Excellence: deliver our products and services excellence;

o Collaboration: work better together;

o Accountability: accountable for our commitments;

o Empathy: care about our stakeholders; and

° Sustainability: commit to a sustainable future.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if necessary,
its business strategies and keep track of the changing market
conditions to ensure prompt and proactive measures will be taken

to respond to the changes and meet the market needs to foster
the sustainability of the Group.
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Board of Directors
Composition

As at 31 March 2024, the Board comprised of five Directors,
including two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The composition of the Board during the year
is set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mui Wai Sum

Mr. Chan Ka Kin (resigned on 3 July 2023)
Mr. Lei Nelson (appointed on 3 July 2023)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo (retired on 22 September 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen

Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Au Siu Lun

The composition of the Board reflects the balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s
business and for the exercise of independent decisions. The
Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors which
is more than half of the Board. They are professionals in different
areas and provide independent opinions based on their expertise.

Biographical details of the current Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profile” on
pages 37 to 39.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board of
Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration Committee
with the reference to their respective duties and responsibility
with the Company, the Company’s performance and current
market situation. Details of emoluments of the Directors for the
Year Under Review are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Functions, Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the
Company, undertaking the responsibility to lead and control
and to promote the success of the Company through providing
direction and supervision. All Directors are bound by their duties
to make objective decisions in the interests of the Company.
The Board is responsible for the major affairs of the Company,
including the approval and supervision of all major policies,
overall strategies, internal control and risk management systems,
material transactions (particularly transactions involving conflict of
interest), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
material financial and operating matters. Major corporate matters
that are specifically delegated by the Board to the management
include the preparation of annual, interim and quarterly accounts
for approval by the Board before publication, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate internal control systems and risk
management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements and rules and regulations.

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their field of
expertise, and have exhibited high standards of personal and
professional ethics and integrity. The Board is of reasonable size
and composition to provide checks and balances that safeguard
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs.

Independence

As at the date of this report, the Company has three Independent
Non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this
report, the Company in its best knowledge considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Each Independent Non-executive Director is required to inform
the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change that
may affect his/her independence.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship) among the members of the
Board.

Board Meetings

The Board regularly meets in person or through other electronic
means of communication at least four times a year to, among
other matters, review past financial and operating performance
and discuss the Group’s direction and strategy. Appropriate
notices of regular Board meetings are given to all Directors,
who are all given an opportunity to attend and include matters
in the agenda for discussion. Senior Management provides to
the Directors information on activities and development of the
business of the Group from time to time. The Company Secretary
takes detailed minutes of the meetings and keeps records of
matters discussed and decisions resolved at the meetings. Both
draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records, and such minutes are open for
inspection with reasonable advance notice.

The Directors can seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense, if necessary.
According to the current Board’s practices, should a potential
conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder or Director
of the Company arise, the matter is discussed in a Board
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest
should be present at meetings dealing with conflict issues. When
the Board considers any proposal or transaction in which a
Director has a conflict of interest, the Director declares his/her
interest and abstains from voting.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter should be dealt with
by a physical Board meeting rather than a written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors who, and whose close
associates, have no material interest in the transaction should be
present at that Board meeting.
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Ten meetings of the Board were held during the year. The
attendance of each Director at the meetings of the Board is set
out below:

ilﬂq %%E /\;“Efj——f—//\ = u °
SERIBEREINOT

Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of Directors EEHS HEBITEBRE &R
Executive Directors BTESE
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEREE 10/10 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin BRREAEE(RZZTE_=F

(resigned on 3 July 2023) +tA=H#T) 3/3 100%
Mr. Lei Nelson (appointed on 3 July 2023) &L (R-TE =4

+tAZHEZT) 7/7 100%

Non-executive Director FHITESE
Mr. Takashi Togo RPETEE(R_T_=F

(retired on 22 September 2023) WA=+ =ZHEMF) 6/6 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITESE
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen BiEmLt 10/10 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2ERTE 10/10 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun = JK fm 5 A 10/10 100%
Appointment and Re-election of Directors FRARERES

The Company uses a formal,
procedure for the appointment of new Directors. The proposed

considered and transparent

appointments will be considered and if thought fit, approved by
the Board after due deliberation and upon recommendation of the
Nomination Committee.

All Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are appointed for a specific term and are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Pursuant to the Code provision B.2.2 of the Code, the non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. The Non-executive Director is not
appointed for a specific term, but he is subject to re-election
at the AGM of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.
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At the forthcoming AGM of the Company, Mr. Mui Wai Sum shall
retire pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association. The
above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. The Board and
the Nomination Committee recommended their reappointment.
The Company’s circular, to be sent to the Shareholders, contains
detailed information of the above Director as required by the GEM
Listing Rules.

Continuing Professional Development

On appointment to the Board, each Director receives a
comprehensive induction package covering policy and procedures
of the Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory
obligations of being a Director to ensure that he/she is sufficiently
aware of his/her responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules
and other relevant regulatory requirements. All Directors shall
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or
updates on the relevant laws, rules and regulations to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Company has been encouraging the Directors and officers to
participate in a wide range of professional development courses
and seminars relating to the GEM Listing Rules, applicable
regulatory requirements and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies and/or independent auditors to
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous
professional development and are committed to participating any
suitable training or seminars and reading relevant materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills.

Directors and Officers Insurance

Appropriate insurance covers on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
have been in force to protect the Directors and officers of the
Group from their risk exposure arising from the business of the
Group.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board, the two
Executive Directors have performed part of the function of the
Chairman of the Board.

The roles of the two Executive Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer are separated and performed by Mr. Mui Wai Sum, Mr. Lei
Nelson and Dr. Kwan Fei Ying, respectively to ensure a balance of
power and authority.

The two Executive Directors provide leadership and are
responsible for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board whereas the Chief Executive Officer focuses on the Group’s
business development and daily management and operation
generally.

Board Committees

The Board has maintained three Board Committees (the “Board
Committee”), namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, throughout the year to
oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Each of these
Committees has specific written terms of reference, which deal
clearly with their authorities and duties.

Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) was
established on 4 November 2003, with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises all Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun
and Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen. The Committee is chaired by Mr.
Lau Wai Leung, Alfred. No member of the Audit Committee is a
member of the former or existing auditor of the Company.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not
limited to, the following: (a) to independent review and supervise
the financial reporting process and internal control systems;
(b) to ensure good communications among Directors and the
Company’s auditor; (c) to recommend the appointment of external
auditor on an annual basis and approval of the audit fees; (d) to
assist the Board in oversight of the independence, qualifications,
performance and compensation of the independent accountant;
(e) to review quarterly, interim and annual results announcements
as well as the financial statements prior to their approval by
the Board; and (f) to provide advice on audit report, accounting
policies and comments to all Directors.

The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and annual
reports before submission to the Board. Senior representatives of
the external auditor, Executive Directors and Senior Management
are invited to attend the meetings, if required.

During the year, the Audit Committee has approved the nature
and scope of the statutory audits, and reviewed the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements of the Group, and was
satisfied that the accounting policies and standards of the
Group complied with the applicable accounting standards and
requirements and that the adequate disclosures have been made.

Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year.
The attendance of each member at the meetings of the Audit
Committee is set out below:
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Number of meetings

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHR HE " BITERIH i FE &
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred (Chairman) RIEREE (£FE) 4/4 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun B IKfm okt 4/4 100%
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen D IEFR 4/4 100%
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 23 June 2006, with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rules 5.34 to 5.36 of the GEM
Listing Rules and the requirements set out under Code Provision.
The terms of reference are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

The Remuneration Committee comprises all Independent
Non-Executive Directors, Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen, Mr. Lau Wai
Leung, Alfred and Mr. Au Siu Lun. The Committee is chaired by
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but
are not limited to, the following: (a) to make recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all
Directors’ and Senior Management remuneration; (b) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors, Non-executive Director and Senior
Management; and (c) to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Executive Directors, the Non-
executive Director and senior management of the Company.

Two meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held during
the year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Remuneration Committee is set out below:
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Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REER HE " BITEBERE i FE &
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen (Chairman) EHEZE (FE) 2/2 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred 2ERSEE 2/2 100%
Mr. Au Siu Lun = JK fm 5E & 2/2 100%
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) was established on 29 March 2012, and the
Company had adopted a terms of reference in compliance with
the Code Provision A.5. The terms of reference are available on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee comprises, all Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Mui Wai Sum and Mr. Lei Nelson and all Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr.
Au Siu Lun and Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Au Siu Lun.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board, and make recommendations to the Board regarding
any proposed changes; and (b) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the
Board composition, the appointment and re-appointment of
Directors and also succession planning for the Board, the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

Two meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the
year. The attendance of each member at the meeting of the
Nomination Committee is set out below:
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Number of meeting

attended/held Attendance rate

Name of members REHH HEBITEBERE HE =
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEREE 2/2 100%
Mr. Chan Ka Kin BRREEE(RZZTEZ=F

(resigned on 3 July 2023) +tA=ZHEMT) 1/1 100%
Mr. Lei Nelson (appointed on 3 July 2023) &KX 4E (R T - =4

+tA=REZMT) 1/1 100%

Independent Non-executive Directors B HITESE
Mr. Au Siu Lun (Chairman) Bk E (£E) 2/2 100%
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred RERRSEE 2/2 100%
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen BiEmLt 2/2 100%
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Corporate Governance Functions

No corporate governance committee of the Company has
been established and the Board as a whole is responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties including: (a) to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; (b) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
Senior Management; (c) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance.

Board Independence Evaluation Mechanism

The Company has adopted the board independence evaluation
mechanism. The details are as follows:

Objective

Continuing improvement and development of the Board and
its committee processes and procedures through Board
independence evaluation provides a powerful and valuable
feedback mechanism for improving Board effectiveness,
maximising strengths, and identifying the areas that need
improvement or further development.

The evaluation process also clarifies what actions of the Company
need to be taken to maintain and improve the Board performance,
for instance, addressing individual training and development
needs of each Director.

This mechanism is designed to ensure a strong independent
element on the Board, which allows the Board to effectively
exercise independent judgment to better safeguard Shareholders’
interests.
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Mechanism

(@)

Nomination Committee is established with clear terms
of reference to identify suitable candidates, including
independent non-executive Directors, for appointment as
Directors.

Nomination policy is in place with details of the process and
criteria of identifying, selecting, recommending, cultivating
and integrating new directorship.

For Independent Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”):

(i) Every INED is required to confirm in writing to
the Company his/her independence upon his/her
appointment as Director with reference to such criteria
as stipulated in the nomination policy as well as the
Listing Rules;

(i)  Each INED has to declare his/her past or present
financial or other interests in the Group’s business as
soon as practicable, or his/her connection with any of
the Company’s connected persons (as defined in the
Listing Rules), if any; and

(i)  Each INED is required to inform the Company as
soon as practicable if there is any change in his/
her own personal particulars that may affect his/her
independence.

The Nomination Committee will assess annually the
independence of all INEDs and to affirm if each of them
still satisfies the criteria of independence as set out in
the Listing Rules and is free from any relationships and
circumstances which are likely to affect, or could appear
to affect, their independent judgement. Every Nomination
Committee member should abstain from assessing his/her
own independence.
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Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an individual
as an INED at the general meeting, it will set out in the
circular to Shareholders the reasons it believes he/she
should be elected and the reasons it considers him/her to
be independent.

A mechanism is in place for Directors to seek independent
professional advice, if necessary, in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense.

Directors are encouraged to access and consult with the
Company’s senior management independently, if necessary.

The Board Independence Evaluation may take in the form
of a questionnaire to all Directors individually and may be
supplemented by individual interview with each Director, if
necessary, and/or in any other manners which the Board
considers fit and necessary.

The Board Independence Evaluation report will be presented
to the Board which will collectively discuss the results and
the action plan for improvement, if appropriate.

The results of the Board Independence Evaluation or
a summary of the findings of the said evaluation will
be disclosed in the CG Report contained in the annual
report of the Company or on the Company’s website for
accountability and transparency purposes.

The aforesaid Board Independence Evaluation will be
regarded as an ongoing exercise of the Company while the
Company may seek assistance from external consultant if
an external evaluation on the same subject is needed.
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During the year ended 31 March 2024 and as at the date of this
report, the Board Independence Evaluation had been conducted
by way of completing a questionnaire by all Directors. The results
of the Board Independence Evaluation are summarised as follows:

1. The Board as a whole possessed the skills and range
of experience needed to adequately fulfill its fiduciary
responsibilities, more reliably hold management to account,
and better safeguard Shareholders’ interests.

2. Board meetings were conducted in a manner that allowed
open communication, meaningful participation (including in
depth discussion and resolutions of issues).

3.  All INEDs brought independent judgement to bear on the
Board’s deliberations.

4. All INEDs have actively participated in all Board meetings
and Board Committees’ meetings; and raised governance
and ethical issues to the Board.

DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the importance of having
a diverse Board, that increasing diversity at the Board level will
support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. Pursuant to the board diversity policy,
the Company seeks to achieve the Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length of service
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant and
applicable from time to time. All Directors appointment will be
based on applicable merits and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee shall
review the Board Diversity Policy and make recommendations
to the Board on amendments to the Board diversity policy (if
any) as appropriate, which will include an assessment of the
implementation and effectiveness of the Board diversity policy on
an annual basis in accordance with code provision B.1.3 of the
CG Code. The Board Diversity Policy is available on the website
of the Company for public information.
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The Board currently has one female Director. We will continue
to strive to enhance female representation and achieve an
appropriate balance of gender diversity with reference to
the Shareholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices. We will also ensure that there is
gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to senior level and
we are committed to providing career development opportunities
for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female senior
management and potential successors to our Board in near
future.

WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY

In compliance with code provision D.2.6 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted a whistle-blowing policy. It provides
employees and the relevant third parties who deal with the
Group (e.g. customers, and suppliers) with guidance and
reporting channels on reporting any suspected improprieties
in any matters related to the Group directly addressed to the
Audit Committee and designated person. An email account
(whistleblowing@sausantong.net) has been set up for this
purpose. All reported matters will be investigated independently
and, in the meantime, all information received from a whistle-
blower and its identity will be kept confidential. The Board and
the Audit Committee will regularly review the whistleblowing policy
and mechanism to improve its effectiveness.

ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION
POLICY

In compliance with the new code provision D.2.7 of the CG Code,
the Board adopted an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy. It
outlines guidelines and the minimum standards of conducts, all
applicable laws and regulations in relation to the anti-corruption
and anti-bribery, the responsibilities of employees to resist fraud,
to help the Group defend against corrupt practices and to report
any reasonably suspected case of fraud and corruption or any
attempts thereof, to the management or through an appropriate
reporting channel. The Group would not tolerate all forms of
fraud and corruption among all employees and those acting in
an agency or fiduciary capacity on behalf of the Group, and in its
business dealing with third parties.
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The Board and the Audit Committee will review the anti-fraud and
anti-corruption policy and mechanism periodically to ensure its
effectiveness and enforce the commitment of the Group to the
prevention, deterrence, detection and investigation of all forms of
fraud and corruption.

Accountability and Audit
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2024, the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance have been complied with. The Directors believe
that they have complied all applicable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group. As
at 31 March 2024, the Directors were not aware of any material
uncertainties or events which may have a significant impact on
the Company’s ability to operate as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis, which contemplates continuity of normal business
activities and the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities
in the ordinary course of business.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, are set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Company reviews the appointment of external auditor on an
annual basis including a review of the audit scope and approval of
the audit fee. During the year, the fee payable to the Company’s
external auditor for audit services amounted to HK$1,300,000
and fee for non-audit related activities amounted to HK$373,000.
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Company Secretary

The primary duties of the Company Secretary include, but are
not limited to, the following: (a) to ensure the Board procedures
are followed and that the activities of the Board are carried out
efficiently and effectively; (b) to assists the Chairman to prepare
agendas and Board papers for meetings and disseminates
such documents to the Directors and Board Committees in a
timely manner; (c) to timely dissemination of announcements
and information relating to the Group to the market; and (d) to
maintain formal minutes of the Board meetings and other Board
Committee meetings.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”) has been appointed as the
Company Secretary in 2020. Mr. Chan is an employee of the
Company and confirmed that he has complied with all the
qualifications, experience and training requirements as required by
the Listing Rules. Pursuant to the Listing Rules and in the opinion
of the Board, Mr. Chan possesses the necessary qualification and
experience, and is capable of performing of the functions of the
Company Secretary.

Mr. Chan has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training during the Reporting Period.

Shareholders’ Rights
Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any one or more shareholders holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition.

Right to direct enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary by
addressing them to the principal place of business of Company
in Hong Kong at: Room 2303, 23rd Floor, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.
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Right to put forward proposals at a general meeting

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to
the operations, strategy and/or management of the Group.
Shareholders are request to follow Article 58 of the Company’s
Articles of Association for including a resolution at an EGM. The
requirement and procedures are set out in paragraph headed

“Right to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”)
above.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board is committed to maintaining an ongoing and
transparent communication with all shareholders. The Company
has provided clear and full performance information of the Group
to shareholders in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
through various communication channels, including AGM and
EGM, quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars. Additional information of the Group is also
available to shareholders on the Company’s website at
http://www.sst-holding.com.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM for which
not less than 21 clear days’ notice is given. The Chairman and
Directors are available to answer questions on the Group’s
business at the meeting.

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its effort
to promote transparency and foster investor relationships.
Comments and suggestions are always welcomed.

Corporate Governance Enhancement

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter of
applying and complying with the Corporate Governance Code of
the Stock Exchange but also about promoting and developing an
ethical and healthy corporate culture. We will continue to review
and, where appropriate, improve our current practices on the
basis of our experience, regulatory changes and developments.
Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

During the Year, the Board complied with the code provisions
on risk management and internal control as set out in the CG
Code. The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take
in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems for the Group. The systems are designed to manage
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management of the Company has established a set of
comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in areas of
operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding assets
against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial
information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance against
the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The Board has overseen the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis. A year end review
of the effectiveness of the Company’s and its subsidiaries risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually and the systems are considered to be effective and
adequate. Self-assessment and comprehensive risk assessment
surveys have been conducted during the review. The Company
also has an internal audit function to carry out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the systems, and has procedures in place to keep information
confidential and manage actual or potential conflicts of interest.
Stringent internal structures have been designed to prevent the
misuse of inside information and avoid conflicts of interest.

All Directors and those employees who could have access to, and
monitor, the information of the Group are responsible for making
appropriate precautions to prevent abuse or misuse of such
information. Employees of the Group are prohibited from using
inside information for their own benefit.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to
the Shareholders and the public any inside information in the form
of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing
Rules.
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024.

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Cayman lIslands on 21 May 2002 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19 November 2003.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and particulars of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 35 of the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of beauty and
slimming services from slimming centres, distribution sales of
cosmetic and skin care products, sale of other health and beauty
products, investments in securities and money lending business.
The slimming centres, which are operated under the “Sau San
Tong” and “IPRO" brand names, provide services such as whole
and partial body slimming, weight management, body treatment
services and facial treatment services to its customers.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Management’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 8
to 36 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this
directors’ report.

Financial Statements
The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2024, and

the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date, are set out in the
financial statements on pages 126 to 256.
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Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023: Nil).

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 6. The summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 11 of the financial statements on page
179.

Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28(a) of the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme
Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to
eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in
the sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the Company
and/or such subsidiaries.
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Share options are granted to the eligible participants at a
consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be determined by
the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been granted.
No option may be granted more than 10 years after the date of
approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option plans of the Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option plans of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to the date of grant
in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue as at the date
of grant, are subject to the Company issuing a circular and the
approval from the Company’s shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme (which shall be payable
upon exercise of the option) shall be such price as the Board
in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price
will not be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business day;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.
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Details of the share options movements during the year ended 31
March 2024 under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

BE_T_MF=-A=+—"HALFEEBERZE
FEIATZEREZESFBNT

At At
Subscription 1 April Granted Cancelled 31 March
price per 2023 during during 2024
Date of grant Exercisable period share R-B-=§ the period the period RZZE-M#%E
R A8 TS SRABE mA-H BrRi BRE#E =A=t-A
HK$
BT
Directors 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
9 February 2026
5% ZZZ-%-A+A ZZT--F-ATHZ
“ZCoREZANRA
Chief Executive Officer 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 - - 750,494
9 February 2026
THEH “Z--f-ZA+R ZE=-%=ZA+HZ
ZZ-REZANR
Employees 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 750,494 = = 750,494
9 February 2026
EE8 ZZ--%-A+R ZZ--%-ATHZ
ZZZRFZANA
Other participant 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - 0.87 3,001,976 - - 3,001,976
9 February 2026
HpouE ZZZ-%ZA+H ZEZ-#¥-At+HZE
ZZZREZANA
5,253,458 = - 5253458
Weighted average exercise price HK$0.87 HK$0.87
AT 0.87H# T 0.8748TT
Weighted average of remaining contractual life 2.87 years 1.87 years
METHFSHAOFH 2.87F 1.87%
Equity-Linked Agreement % 8 17 R
Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed [k EX [BEREE ] — S MIRE 2 AN Gl
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity AR #EEHEI4N - REFE R F VME% LR SR
linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed ZH#H a1 -

during the Year.
Distributable Reserves

Pursuant to the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, share premium
and contributed surplus of the Company are distributable
to the shareholders. As at 31 March 2024, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$481,999,000 (2023:
HK$482,017,000).
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Segment Information

The segment information of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2024 is set out in note 10 of the consolidated financial
statements.

Connected Transaction

The “Other related party transactions” as disclosed in the note
33(b) to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024 do not constitute a connected transaction or a
continuing connected transaction under the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mui Wai Sum

Mr. Chan Ka Kin (resigned on 3 July 2023)
Mr. Lei Nelson (appointed on 3 July 2023)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Takashi Togo (retired on 22 September 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. Au Siu Lun

Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Mui Wai Sum will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred, Mr. Au Siu Lun and Ms. Tsang
Tsz Nok, Aleen as at the date of this annual report and therefore
still considers them to be independent.

2 EER

ME=A=T—HIEFEZ

AREEHE T =
%) B 5 B R BT FE10 ©

DEWEHENGEA

BEXS

REBEE-_F_MF=_A=+—HLFEZ
EM‘%#E%%M\TE?SS( VT IER Fﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁj\ix
2] AP ERGEMEMRRIA T 2 BER 5
FEHERS

EE

REARBEAFHRAY EEEFEBEAT
At

BITES

BEBRTE
RREEE(R_FT_=FLtA=AHT)
ERELEE(R-_T-=FLtA=-HEZT)

FHITES
B EZ4 L4 (R
R)

A—_B_=HNAHA-+T=H

BAFHTES
FERELE
B Kt
BIEHR L

BEARREGERMAUES7R BEKRELE
RREERRBFASRELSEBEESE-

RAFHRA ARAFCEEREREE &
KEEERSIEHLXTREBIHEH  FE
ﬁEE a&fﬁumﬁfﬁ—rﬂﬁ%ﬁi}\i"

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

65



66

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Directors’ and Senior Management’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this annual report are
set out on pages 37 to 39.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Executive Director is entitled to a basic salary and a
discretionary bonus provided that the aggregate amount of
the bonuses payable to all the Executive Directors for any
financial year of the Company may not exceed 10% of the
audited consolidated net profit of the Group (after taxation and
non-controlling interests but before extraordinary and exceptional
items of the Group) in respect of the financial year.

Save for a total fee of HK$360,000 for all of them for the year
ended 31 March 2024, the Independent Non-Executive Directors
are not entitled to any other remuneration.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors and Senior Management of
the Group are determined by the Remuneration Committee with
reference to their relevant qualifications, experience, competence
and the prevailing market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 June 2006,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as of
30 December 2022 in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules and
the requirements set out under Code Provision. Details of the role
and work performed by the committee are set out in “Corporate
Governance Report” in this annual report.
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Remuneration by Bands

The remuneration paid or payable to the Directors and senior
management during the year were fell within the following bands:

7 ke

FR ENIENEERSREEA B K
ERTHEHE :

Number of Number of senior
Directors management

ExgHE SREEABHE

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000

T8 T %1,000,00078 7T

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

None of the Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance subsisting during or at
the end of the financial year to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Group has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the Year, which provides appropriate cover
for legal actions brought against the Directors. The level of the
coverage is reviewed annually.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2024, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company or their
respective associates in shares and underlying shares (the
“Shares”) of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ”)) which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO, including interests and/or short positions which they
are deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO,
or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were as
follows:

1,000,0017% 7T 2,000,000/ 7T - -
2,000,001;% 7T £3,000,000/% 7T - -
3,000,001 7t £4,000,000/% 7T = 1
4,000,001 7T 5,000,000/ 7T - -
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company:

Share Option Scheme

The interests in the underlying shares of the Company arise from
share options granted to the Directors and senior management of
the Company under the Company’s share option scheme, details

of which are as follows:

RAXREBARG 2FA
BRETE
AR AAR R D 2 #E 2K BRI AN R ) RE AR

AERTARREEREREEABZBEE
HFERBWT:

Approximate

percentage
Aggregate interest in the
long position Company’s
in underlying  issued share
shares of the capital
Name of director/ Subscription Company EARAT
chief executive price ;NN BRITRAE
EE /FETHK Date of grant Exercisable period per share HERGDZ BRZBN
ABHR BHAH TS BRAEE FREH BAW
Mr. Mui Wai Sum 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
9 February 2026 0.87/8 T
BEERLE “E-—-FZ-A+H “E-—-F-RA+HE
—E-RF-ANA
Ms. Kwan Fei Ying 10 February 2021 10 February 2021 - HK$0.87 750,494 1.00%
9 February 2026 0.878 T

BSER L L

Note:

The above interest constitutes a long position of the Director and the Chief

—E-—%=-A+H

ZE-—FZA+HZE
“E-RFZANA

Executive in a physically settled equity derivative for the purpose of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates has any personal, family, corporate or other interests
or short positions in the Shares of the Company or its associated
(within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standard of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 March 2024, so far was known to any Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following interests of which would
fall to be disclosed under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or who were deemed to be directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the issued capital of the Company, or which were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO or have notified to the Company were as
follows:

Long position in Shares:

B EXFEEEN R -NFE=A=+—
H ARRIEE FETHRABXEZTE 28
BATHERAQAIKERAEEIE (X RLE
HFRHEEGAIEXVE) 2RHF - -EBEMR
BRBIEESRAEROIEI2GREFE 2
Zf o AR BEGEM E TR BI55.4625.67
B ARRESHTIR G I REZEANS
RARIRBRRAZBA Rk AR HEMmE
WmOOKBE  MAMEARR A KRBT

FTERRRROD 2R RXR

RZZEZWME=A=+—H REARAEMFE
EREETHRABMA THREBEZFSHFR
HEEMEXVIBFE2RFIDHBAETHE W
RAEEEXBEEEAQR B BITRAS%K
A bz RARERBIRERRIBEEM
FRGEBEFEZEZECMAMEER A
HWT

REfRZEE:

Number of shareholding

BREAR
Substantial shareholder Capacity Share Percentage
FERR g4 IR 17 Aok
Yau Chung Chung Beneficial owner 11,707,000 14.85%

ERR EnEAA

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, no person,
other than the Directors of the Company and the chief executive
of the Group whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Position in Shares”
above, has registered an interest or short position in the share
capital, underlying shares and debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

BREXHBEEN RZTB_WHF=A=+—
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Ba@RNEX[EERETBTRAERKRNO Z
BEFKR] —E)N BBEMALIRAQF
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company
or their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) has any interest in a business which compete or might
compete with the business of the Group.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed
Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued share as required under the GEM
listing rules throughout the Year Under Review and up to the date
of this report.
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Corporate Governance

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report section
set out on pages 40 to 60.

Events after the Reporting Period

The Group does not have significant events after the reporting
period.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 99.6% (2023: 99.9%) of the total purchases for
the year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 98.0% (2023: 99.0%). Sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 13.9% (2023: 12.6%) of the total
sales for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$2,000 (2023: HK$1,035,000).

Pre-emptive Rights
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s

Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 4 November 2003,
and the Company had adopted a revised terms of reference as
of 31 March 2016 in accordance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Details of the role and work performed by the
committee are set out in “Corporate Governance Report” in the
annual report. The audit committee has reviewed the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2024.

Code of Conduct Regarding Securities
Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Director on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited retire and, being eligible offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for re-appointment of
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mui Wai Sum
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (hereafter,
called the “Group”, “we”, or “us”) is committed to promoting
transparency of the Group’s operations and the impact of its
operations on the environment and society in which it operates,
as well as communication with its stakeholders. The results of
the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) review shown
in this report demonstrate the importance of environmental
protection we place on top of our business development target,
and explain how we seek to continually improve our ESG strategy
in line with the global standards. The report also illustrates
our focus of resources utilization for core operations in order
for the Company to become the leading professional slimming
and beauty service provider for creating a highly efficient and
balanced business profile.

Report Profile

This ESG report (“Report”) focuses on the Group’s main
operations in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”), for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 (“Reporting
Period”). It describes the Group’s progress on the way towards
creating sustainable value for its shareholders and other
stakeholders. During the process of preparing this Report, we
have conducted a thorough review and evaluation of the existing
ESG practices of the Group with the aim of achieving better
performance results in the future.

Report Scope and Boundary

This Report contains information that is material for the
stakeholders to understand the Group’s ESG practices and
performance in its daily operations in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Unless otherwise stated, this Report focuses on the Group’s key
operating units in Hong Kong and Shanghai. There is no change
in the reporting scope and boundary covered in this Report from
the previous year.

In addition to the internal factors such as our core values,
strategy, and competency that contribute to our sustainable
development, we have considered the ESG challenges as
reported by other market players and communicated with our
stakeholders as for them to decide and prioritize the material ESG
issues in this Report.
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The material ESG issues are considered as they have or may have
a significant impact on:

° the various branches of the Group in Hong Kong and the
PRC;

o the current and future environment and/or society;
° our financial and/or operational performance; and
° our stakeholders’ assessments, decisions and actions.

This Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) and complies with all provisions of “Mandatory
Disclosure” and “Comply or Explain”, as well as the principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. In preparing
the Report, the Group has adopted the international standards
and emission factors specified in the ESG guidance materials
issued by the Stock Exchange for computing the relevant Key
Performance Indicators (“KPIs”), there is no change from the
previous year in the way the Report has been prepared. The
application of materiality is detailed in the subsection headed
“Materiality Assessment”.

The relevant sections of the ESG Reporting Guide of the Stock
Exchange are provided from pages 73 to 116 of this Report for
cross-referencing purpose.

Information and Feedback

For details in relation to our financial performance and corporate
governance practice during the financial year, please visit our
website: http://www.sst-holding.com and refer to our Annual
Report. Your feedback and comments are our greatest motivation
to improve our ESG performance. Please send us an email to
enquiries@sausantong.net, if you have any queries on this Report
or the Group’s sustainability policies.
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APPROACH

Our operations in Hong Kong are principally engaged in
the provision of beauty and slimming services, whereas our
operations in the PRC are mainly engaged in the distribution of
skincare and cosmetic products.

As a responsible corporate citizen, we acknowledge that prudent
environmental and societal management is of great importance
to sustainable economic growth. We see the integration
of sustainability into our business strategy as well as daily
operations as a must to pursue our business model. To deal with
the ESG issues effectively, understanding of, and interaction with,
our employees, customers and other stakeholders are of the
highest priority.

The Group believes that effective management of ESG issues
is important to our long-term success in a rapidly changing
world. We have established a governance structure to enhance
its management of ESG issues. The Board has an overall
responsibility of overseeing the Group’s ESG-related risks
and opportunities, establishing and adopting the ESG-related
strategies and targets of the Group, reviewing the Group’s
performance annually against the targets, and revising the
strategies as appropriate if significant variance from the target is
identified. In order to exert governance over the ESG issues, we
have set up an ESG Working Group that comprises of members
from middle to senior management, and it serves as a supportive
role to the Board in implementing the ESG-related strategies and
targets, conducting materiality assessments of ESG issues and
prioritize them, reporting regularly to the Board about the relevant
tasks carried out for sustainable development, identifying the
relevant issues that have a significant impact on the operation of
the Group and/or the interests of other important stakeholders,
and promote the implementation of respective measures. Under
the authority of the Board, the ESG Working Group assists in
collecting ESG data from respective functional department,
monitoring the implementation of the measures, and investigating
deviation from the targets and liaises with the respective
functional department to take prompt rectification actions.
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Governance Structure

m
B
£
5

e The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making, oversees the formulation,

administration, and assessment of the ESG system.

EHERER BEERE g RERRSNHE

IR R o

e The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and

monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.

s BE HERERTFERERDEESEXREERERRTE 48

HD

MEREE -

e Functional department is responsible for the execution of implemented measures to

achieve the set strategies and targets.

o BEEHPIBENITE BN - UEBRARENRBERER -

The Board will continue to review the progress based on the
set goals and targets to help building sustainable markets, with
broader benefits for the society. With a thorough understanding
of the ESG risks and opportunities, the Group will be better
positioned in allocating its resources to reduce and recycle
different kinds of waste, and responding to the increasing demand
for higher standards of waste treatment by regulators. In addition,
we believe that our expertise, capabilities, and ownership
model can form part of the solutions to some of the challenges
that organizations around the world are already facing. We are
confident that as part of the business decision-making process,
by involving all relevant stakeholders in the ESG management
process, we will be able to better monitor the ESG issues, and
the long-term success of the Group will be assured.
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Our sustainability strategy in the following aspects applies to all HfIRU TEFEZ O HFEME TR ERNE

the work streams:

1.

To promote environmental sustainability;

To attract, retain and support employees;

To engage with stakeholders;

To sustain local communities;

To strengthen community relations;

To grow suppliers’ commitment.

ESE R

1. HEEREWUHEN:

2. WE -BBERXKEE:

3. BHBHEBR:

4. HERHITHER

5. EEMEEARE:

6. EEHEEAE-
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS EKPzEnE

AEERGSREGEEE ATHRRERMZ
FOERR BARUNERMZERRRS -
BPREFNDEERMZEBHERBKINM
EREEEEAC - TRBEBEFRZLFNE
HRLHEMNS2ET X

The Group is actively looking for every opportunity to understand
and engage our stakeholders to ensure that improvement of our
products and services can be implemented. We strongly believe
that our stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success
of our business. The following table provides an overview of the
core stakeholder groups identified and our engagement methods.

Stakeholders

FoE

Probable points of concern
A REREEEIE

Communication and responses

BEAKDE

HKEX Compliance with GEM listing rules, timely Meetings, training, workshops, programs,
& B P and accurate announcements. website updates and announcements.
B FGEM LT AR A 0 BB AL o ®% - FY - TEY 5B @HEHRAL
Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government
BT prevention of tax evasion, contribution to inspections, tax returns and other
social welfare. information.
BTFEEEER BEREBARRALERE LHRES BNEE BHREREMER-
V5 & B -
Suppliers Payment schedule, stable demand. Site visits.
R NREBR BEFK- S E -
Investors Corporate governance system, business Seminars, interviews, shareholders’
REE strategies and performance, investment meetings, financial reports or operation
returns. reports for investors, media and analysts.
PEERNE EBHRBEKRER REOH BE - HA RRXG RAREE HBESD
AR B EHEERE -
Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental Newsletters on the Company’s website.
HERAR protection, human rights. NRA T Mk 2 BB -
BEES RRFR Ak
Customers Product quality, service delivery schedule, Site visits, after-sales services.
ZFE reasonable prices, service value, personal GH2 8 EERY -
data protection.
EmBEE RERBREXR 2BERL KRB
BE  EHABRRE-
Employees Rights and benefits, employee Union activities, training, interviews with
== compensation, training and development, employees, internal memos, employees’
work hours, working environment, labor suggestion boxes.
protection and work safety. TeEs HF HESEX RFBEM-E
N EEN EEME BIRER IR BERM-
IERR BITRERIELZR
Community Community environment, employment and Community activities, employee voluntary
HE community development, social welfare activities and community welfare subsidies

HERRR EBERAMEBEER HEQHF-
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has identified issues that may have an impact on, or
that may pose a risk, its business in short-, medium- or long-
term. Issues that are important to our stakeholders, including but
not limited to, our customers and employees, as well as non-
governmental organizations (“NGOs”), are also crucial to us. The
Group has identified ESG issues that have potential or actual
impact on its sustainable development from various sources, such
as issues identified in the previous ESG reports, internal policies
industry trends and the Sustainability Accounting Standards
Board’s Materiality Map'. The ESG issues have been analyzed
with reference to an array of factors, including the Group’s overall
strategy, development, goals and targets. We have conducted a
materiality assessment to rate the identified ESG issues that are
pertinent to its business and stakeholders, and their respective
level of impact. The assessment results are shown below:
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Impact on stakeholders
HiIFhENTERE
(5]
(5]

Low

{8

Low Impact on business

{8 ESESVENEZ - 2EIEd

U Sustainability Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map,
https://materiality.sasb.org/
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EH AEECHZBRREEHEASER
RAABGERERFEZRE HELERH
BoPmBERE HERERABREPHEEZ
FE ABER TEBERASEERES
HUNELZEGZEEUTER - HME22E—
ZIRZHRE e hEaHMEETON
BRAKEZEREBRE ERAKLBEMER-
BMPEETEZMENGE AFHCEEREEE
BEBNEEERMABIRE HLEREBMAE
UREBZHERE -FHBRAINMT :

Governance

=)

() Environmental
Hi

@® Social

e

L
@
=

kg

! AREEREFTENZEGCEEZRETRER "
https://materiality.sasb.org/
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Material Topics How we address them in corresponding sections
EZRE KM AEEN S EER
1. GHG Emissions and Energy Consumption Emissions; Use of Resources
1. BERBHEMRAEIRERE R BIRER
2. Packaging Material Packaging Materials
2. B E MK 2ETuES
3. Responsible Procurement Supply Chain Management
3. BEERE HrEEER
4. Non-hazardous Waste Environmental
4. mEBEEY RIE
8. Product Quality and safety Product Responsibility; Quality Assurance
5. EmBEERTR EmART HEREF
6. Talent, recruitment, and retention Employment; Welfare and Benefits
6. AT B KREE EE: BH kA=
7. Water Consumption Use of Resources
7. FEIN BIRGER
8. Changing consumer preferences Social
8. HEE R a3
9. Development and Training Development and Training
9. R RIEII R RIEI
10. Diversity and Equal Opportunity Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination
10. TR TEHRSE FTERE ZTERRER
11. Hazardous Waste Environmental
11. BEREEY IRIE
12. Climate Change Climate Change
12, RixE1{E AR
183. Health and Safety Health and Safety
13. EREZE HEEEZZ
14. Labour Standards Child Labour and Forced Labour
14, BT AR ETIR®GEIST
15. Anti-corruption and Business Ethics Anti-Corruption
15. REFREEmE R&5
16. Community Investment Community Investment
16. HEREE HREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL

Overview

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
relevant environmental laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
the PRC that have a significant impact on us, including but not
limited to, the “Environmental Protection Law of the PRC”, “Law
of Atmospheric Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”,

» o«

“Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Energy
Conservation Law of the PRC” and “Waste Disposal Ordinance”

in Hong Kong.
Emissions

The Group understands that a healthy environment is the
foundation of economic progress and well-being of the society.
Thus, we prioritize environmental protection as our key target and
strive to mitigate any undesirable impact on the environment.

The Group has generated air emissions and greenhouse gases
through our daily business operations, including direct vehicle
emissions and indirect emissions from the consumption of
electricity.

As of 31 March 2024, the Group owns 24 motor vehicles
for delivering goods and transporting our management team
members, guests, and clients, one of which was purchased
during the Reporting Period. To enhance fuel consumption
efficiency, the Group replaces vehicles that are obsolete and
optimize route plans for transportation and product delivery.
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FARKMBARGEBRE) (PEAR
HAMBEKBRPAE) (PEARAMBEE
HBEIRE) RBBZ(EMEERD) -

235 ¢7)

AEERARRRESLERRELEEULZ
ER-Hit ZAMARRERES/STIEZEZ I
BRBREHRBERTMNEAETE-

AEBEZAFXRBEEEEZRFEREAER
B ERAEERNNEAEELS 2HEEHNR -

BE_T_WNE=A=+—HB Kr&EEHEHF24
WAENEERLRHEEREGKE FHELE
FEXBRZEZAE EP—WIINHREHMHE
IR RIESMBERRE NEEZERR
EREREERBRERMNEZRZMRE -
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During the Reporting Period, details of the emissions are shown R4 HIR - HE B &N T RKPI A1.15%
in the following table (KPI A1.1 and KPI A1.2). KPIA1.2) ©

For the For the
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

BE-Z_NFE HE-—T=-=

Emission Indicators =A=+—H =A=+—H
BEHER I E LFE
KPI A1.1
KPI A1.1
Emission Data from Gaseous Fuel Consumption
FERBEENEREE
Unit Units of LPG consumed 146,280.00 MJ 122,820.00 MJ
v AHEHEE KEE KEEF
Emission type (in kg) Nitrogen Oxides 585.12 491.28
HERCE R (A F Rt &) AELD
Sulphur Oxides 2.93 2.46
meafy
Emission Data from Vehicles
RENEREE
Unit Kilometers travelled 406,167.00 km 349,548.00 km
B BEITRAR nE nE
Emission type (in kg) Nitrogen Oxides 337.44 288.70
PR (A FRatE) )
Particulate Matter 32.37 27.69
CER TR
Sulphur Oxides 0.97 0.82
may
Units of fuel consumed Diesel 36,067.82 L 30,706.08 L
BRI e 7 Pan
Petrol 25,751.44 L 22,258.57 L
i 7t 7t
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For the For the

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

BE-ZE-_MNE #BE-T=-Z=

Emission Indicators =HA=t+t—H =H=1+—E

g N3 R
KPI A1.2
KPI A1.2

Total Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

BERBAERE

Scope 1: Director Emissions or Removals from sources

EE1  ERRERE R

Scope 1a - GHG emissions Units of fuel consumed

from stationary combustion

sources

#HE1a — BT RN AERE EBFER R

HERL
LPG 3,180.00 kg 2,670.00 kg
AL AR Fr Fr

Emission type (in kg) Carbon Dioxide 9,594.24 8,055.54

R (A FREE) —aibix

Scope 1b — GHG emissions Units of fuel consumed

from mobile combustion

sources

HE1b —REBRERAAE 2R FRE

R HE
Diesel 36,067.82 L 30,706.08 L
5¢h H It
Petrol 25,751.44 L 22,258.57 L
Faiy= H 7t

Emission type (in kg) Carbon Dioxide 167,825.68 142,318.80

BERUER) (A Tt E)

— &1tk
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Emission Indicators

BERER

Scope 2 - Energy Indirect Emissions

HE2 - EREBEBAEREER

Emission type (in kg)
HERCE R (AT Rt &)

Unit of Electricity Consumed
Carbon Dioxide

— &bk

Scope 3 - Other Indirect Emissions

EE3:HtMEAZREBER

Emission type (in kg)
PERER (A TRETE)

Emission type (in kQg)
HEER (A FREE)

Total Amount of Carbon Dioxide Produced during the Reporting Period

(in kg):

Paper waste disposed at landfills
EEIHERNER

Carbon Dioxide

—&1bhx

Business air travel by employees
Total aircraft fuel burn/journey

18 B T 2 M SN 30 B RO
Carbon Dioxide

—aMbiR

RBEMEMEE — e s (T=)

Carbon emission intensity (metric tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent/

per thousand revenue)
R E (A | bR

i3

B/ 5FHRA)
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For the
Year ended
31 March 2024

BEZE-Z_-_m&F
=A=+—H
IEFE

119,848 kWh
TR B
71,057.76

501 kg
Tr
2,404.80

530,568.60

5,697.2

256,479.69

0.23

For the

Year ended

31 March 2023
BE-Z—=

=H=t+—H

LEFE

148,320 kWh
TR
92,367.17

431 kg
T
2,066.64

1565,127.90

1,985.60

246,743.75

0.20
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The carbon emission intensity has slightly increased due to the
decrease in revenue during the Reporting Period. Nonetheless,
the Group has achieved the target for the Reporting Period of
maintaining the carbon emission intensity at/below 0.2 metric
tonnes per thousand revenue. To uphold the principles of
sustainable development, the Group is committed to reduce
the impact of its operation on carbon footprints, and aims to
maintain or reduce the GHG emissions intensity between 95%
to 120% for the next reporting period, against the baseline
year ended 31 March 2022. To reduce the emissions generated
by the Group, we have adopted several measures for the
management of vehicles, including but not limited to, reasonable
use of vehicles, prohibition of private use and strict approval
for long-distance travel arrangements to reduce unnecessary
travel. Mitigating measures for reducing indirect emission from
electricity consumption and paper waste are detailed in the
below subsection headed “Environmental — Energy and Water
Consumption” and “Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes”
respectively. We monitor and report Scope 3 emissions to
enhance our carbon reduction efforts by identifying large emission
sources along our value chain. We acknowledge our business
air travel as a significant contributor to our carbon footprint
and understand the importance of addressing its environmental
impact through mitigation measures. We strive to reduce the
frequency of flights and associated emissions by encouraging
remote communication. We remain committed to addressing this
issue and taking proactive measures to improve our performance.

B 7 e H A AR A - TR B R R T R
EmeBEML  AKRECERBEHMHEER
RIRBEEERFES TUWAOC2RMBESIAT »
REFBUFKBEZRF AEERNRNBDE
RETHHRMEHOZE W HRET —ER
EHAKERERBHEREEEBEE_FT——
FZA=Z+—BLEEEFERLRFTEDRE
120% AT - RIBD RSB EENBER - A
RRZHEWMERRER BRETRRAEE
AE®H ZLABEERBERREHTREE
AR A N B AT < A F 7 0H R S R AT
BERREY AR B 1A 5 0 RIS N 3 IRIR — BEUR Bk
HREIRBERBEEREREY] D& FL -3,
EAYTHREHE —HNE BBAETEERL
BB ABERUR SR DR FORSE T 1F - RAIRED
RELIN DB TIERBARETNEERZ
HRRBAEREREREAREZENERE
BB EERBE SR RITEEIRIEH
BER-BPSEEINNERE-HE LK
BERE MmN E R PINRER -
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Hazardous and Non-hazardous Wastes

Due to the nature of operation, the Group does not generate
hazardous waste from its operations in the PRC. Hazardous
wastes are generated during our daily operations in Hong Kong,
which are mainly clinical wastes from the provision of beauty
and slimming treatments, such as syringes, needles and medical
dressings. Non-hazardous wastes are mainly office-use paper in
the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on us, including but not limited to “Waste
Disposal Ordinance” in Hong Kong. The Group exercises special
caution when handling clinical wastes, which are segregated
from municipal solid wastes and other waste streams. Moreover,
qualified third-party waste recycling companies are engaged for
clinical waste disposals. Despite the fact that the generation of
clinical waste is inevitable in our ordinary course of business, we
strive to mitigate the generation of it, our employees are educated
on proper clinical waste disposal and are constantly reminded
to avoid using excessive materials during daily operations and
treatments.

To minimize the adverse environmental impact caused by the
disposal of paper, the Group uses environmentally friendly paper
and promotes the use of double-sided printing. For any double-
sided printing, the relevant paper should be reused under the
circumstances that no confidential information was printed on
one side of the paper. Moreover, ink cartridges are recycled upon
full usage to avoid the generation of non-hazardous wastes. The
Group aspires to move towards paperless operations through
the implementation of electronic administrative platforms and
communication channels. The wastes produced during the
Reporting Period are detailed in the following table (KPI A1.3 and
KPI A1.4).

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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BEREZERY

HREBHE AKRERTECEETEES
EERRY AEERYRBEAERHZATEE
ERFEL TEREUXAMBBEREMES
ZEBEREY Pl HERE R
BEETREVNEIZRTBERBFERAEAR

AEBEETHAHRMBERREZHARX
BEER BRETRREEZ(EDVRER
)y - AEBEREZEEREMEER/OER
I 5 H BT B RS BE ) R EL A BE Y 0 B = L b
BMEREERE=7TEEYLBRRAFRER
BEZRY SERMANBEEHERETATE SR
WELBRERY BRMABNRIEELE
HEREIMEEBFERY Y IHRER
ENEFEENFERETRBEEAME -

RERERREEZTNREZERERE
A& B IR AR AR OR N e RS2 T ED R o e (£
EEOMARLEHERZEN ARERSA
AR - E2HATZR22E @MU L
BRELTBEERD AKEERERETT
BHYPaRBARE REEREREE-NK
EHHEEZBEMR TRF (KPI A1.3K
KPI A1.4) °
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Waste Indicators

BEYERZ

KPI A1.3

KPI A1.3

Total hazardous waste produced

FFEEEEBREYEE
Syringe
VT 5T 28
Glass Tube
BEE
Contaminated Cotton
B3 2R 1E
Gloves
FE

Hazardous wastes produced per treatment provided

BARBRELECHEERREY

Syringe

T 5T 28

Glass Tube

BEE

Contaminated Cotton
B3 2R E

Gloves

FE

KPI A1.4
KPI A1.4
Non-hazardous wastes produced per capita

AYFRELEBRERRY

Paper

i
Total non-hazardous wastes produced
FEEREREYHAE

Paper

i

For the
Year ended
31 March 2024

For the
Year ended
31 March 2023

BE-Z_MF HBFE-FT-=

=ZA=+-H
IEFE

=ZA=+-H
IEFE

(in kg)
(U F=FE)
0.0550 0.0600
0.0750 0.0750
0.0370 0.0400
0.6670 0.5740

(in kg per treatment provided)

(ABRBEETRTH)
0.0000 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
0.0000 0.0000
0.0001 0.0001

(in kg per capita)

(UMAHYTFTRHE)
2.2267 1.8967
(in kg)
(AFREH)
501.00 430.55
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Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&



88

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HEgRERBRE

The Group is not aware of any material cases of non-compliance
with laws and regulations relating to generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes during the Reporting Period. The Group
has achieved the target of maintaining the intensity of hazardous
wastes and non-hazardous wastes produced below 0.001 kg
per treatment provided and 2.8 kg per capita respectively in
the Reporting Period. The Group will make continuous efforts in
maintaining or reducing the intensity of total hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes produced between 95% to 120% for the next
reporting period, against the baseline year ended 31 March 2022.

Use of Resources

The Group believes that environmental sustainability is the key to
its long-term development. The management of waste and water
resources are priorities under our strategy. We always aspire to
promote sustainability and strive to cease resources wastage.

Energy and Water Consumption

During the Reporting Period, 119,848.00 kWh (2022/23:
148,320.00 kWh) of electricity, 2,437 (2022/23: 2,223) cubic
metres of water and 146,280 MJ of LPG (2022/23: 122,820 MJ)
were consumed. The electricity, water and LPG consumption
intensities are detailed in the following table (KPlI A2.1 and KPI
A2.2).

Source

Energy and Water Indicators

BEEREKEE HRIR

KPI A2.1 & 2.2

KPI A2.1 & 2.2

Consumption per capita

AGHEE
Electricity
%E‘
Water
K
LPG
AR
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AEBITTABERFEPHAELETMNEEEE
EERBEBRENIEBRERZERTAR
EH-RREPE ALECERBHELAS
EEREYREEEEMEE D BZEH1£0.001
FEUATREAH2STRATZERE - AEE K
BENKET —EAREHNBEMEEEERE
EEEYREREE_E-_—_F=A=+—H
I EEFEAEERIBEISNE120% AT ©

BRER

AEEHEEREVHEUERERMBR 2B -
EHMNKES HREZVIKERNERE
REAEFR - BMARTHDAUFEER IR
N TBREER-

REIR R K H

RipEEE BEE119,848.00F L (=&
— =)/ =ZFE:148,320.00T B ) E
2437(ZF - = /=& :2223) 3 7KK
EN146,280 kK EE(ZE=-= /==&
122,820k EH) A MR -FEEE - FEXKERA
HREEZEN TR (KPI A2.1EKPI A2.2) &
e
For the For the
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
BE-FT-_NFE BE-T-=
=A=+-—~H =ZA=+-H
IEFEE ILtFEE

315.81 kWh per 406.90 kWh per

capita capita

AT R AT R
10.83 cubic 9.79 cubic
metres per capita metres per capita
ALK AT TR
650.13 MJ per 541.06 MJ per
capita capita
ABKEFH AEIKEH
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The electricity intensity of this year was slightly decreased by
22%, showing our commitment to sustainability and energy
saving. The water intensity and LPG intensity increased by 11%
and 20% respectively, compared with the year 2022/23. We
will continue our efforts to explore all feasible ways to achieve
targets of reduction. Due to the business nature of the Group, the
consumption of water, electricity and LPG is relatively minimal.
The Group will strive towards the target of maintaining or reducing
the electricity and LPG consumption intensity between 95% to
120% for the next reporting period, against the baseline year
ended 31 March 2022. The Group has implemented mitigating
measures to reduce its usage of energy, which include, but not
limited to, the following:

° Keep indoor temperature at 24 degrees Celsius or above;
° Switch off electrical appliances when they are not in use;
° Enable energy-saving mode of printers;

° Use energy-efficient light bulbs, such as LED lamps;

° Display eco-friendly reminders to raise employees’
awareness of energy saving;

The Group does not have any issue in sourcing water, and the
existing supply of water meets our daily operational needs. Water
consumption of the Group mainly serves the purpose of cleaning
and sanitation. In addition, shower rooms are available at our
beauty centres for clients to take showers after body treatments.
We offer showers instead of baths, which significantly reduced
water consumption. Moreover, water conservation notices are
displayed in prominent areas in the office and the beauty centres.
The Group has achieved its target of maintaining the intensity of
water consumption at/below 12 cubic metres per capita in the
Reporting Period. The Group strives to reduce water usage and
increase overall water usage efficiency. We will make continuous
efforts in working towards the target of maintaining or reducing
the intensity of total water consumption between 95% to 120%
for the next reporting period, against the baseline year ended 31
March 2022.

AFEEMNREEREEMBL22% BT TH
P IFE R KRR R A B E A 7 o 1
T/ FEMAE BKEBEERAEHBER
HETEDRIEIN11%K20% © 915 B
W EmK— A EBURBEE ST A A B
RAEBZEBHEEFER K- BEREBRAZ
HEREBL AEBBEHARKEEEERA M
REEFEEEE _ZET-_—_F=A=+—H01
HEEFEHELRFBAEISHEI120%THIA T - KE
ECERERERARDEERER  BIEE
AR ATEIE:

s ENREHEFNBER24FHIAL:

s B TERZESR:

o FARKENRIME Z BT BEHE R

o ([FRERMEZER  HIMLEDE

e RUBRRRT URSEEREZEH:

& B 2 oK I A A RE N 3R B K BE 4
EHEMzAREETE - ASENBEKEIEAR
RBERRBE WIN BPIZERRLRMD
EHEBRTETEBERERED HMEMH
WA SR MM FEVAGT - ] KIB IR A FEKE o i obh -
BKBEERRURHEERERFROLZER
B - AEBECZAREHAMERBEEKEER
BEAHI2Y A ASIATZERZ - REBHRA
WA RKRIEMBEAKKER NEEGEE
NRKET—EREHARNBHEKBEREHEE
ZE - ZF =A==+ —HLEEFERLRE
HI5%E120% AT »
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Packaging Materials

Packaging materials consumed by the Group mainly included
polystyrene boxes, paper boxes, filler, straps and stretch film.
During the Reporting Period, 24.60 tonnes of (2022/23: 36.30
tonnes) of polystyrene boxes and paper boxes, 0.18 tonnes
(2022/23: 0.19 tonnes) of filler, 1.13 tonnes (2022/23: 1.26
tonnes) of straps and 3.92 tonnes (2022/23: 3.36 tonnes) of
stretch film were consumed. The intensities of the packaging
materials used are as follows.

Packaging Material Indicators Source

BENRIER
KPI A2.5
KPI A2.5
Packaging material per unit produced
BENELEZBEMH
Polystyrene Box and Paper Box
BABaNER
Filler
B
Strap
R
Stretch Film
BeR

The Group will strive to source responsibly. We will continue to
work with our supplier to continually improve in seeking greener
alternatives and minimize the use of packaging, where practicable
or suitable options exist.
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BEMH

AEERAZEEMHIZERAREE

B ERY EFEREERE-RBEHM[ B
FER24.600 (=T == /= =4/Z : 36.30M)
BHABERKE 018 (- /—=%
fE:019MB)EFEY 118 (T - ==
FEE 1260 R R3Q2HE(—E -~/ —=
FE 306 EHRE-BEFERAREMHEEREN
To

For the
Year ended
31 March 2023

For the
Year ended
31 March 2024

BE-T-mE BE-T=-=F

=ZA=+-*H
IEFE

=A=+—H
IEEE

(in kg)
(LT =atE)
0.088 0.171
0.001 0.001
0.006 0.006
0.016 0.016

AEBEBEHaETHRBE - RMABEESRR
PEHEE A THEESKERRNER
o WEATHEENEEFENRATERE
B REER -
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Climate Change

As a part of the Group’s ESG strategies formulation, the Board
has an overall responsibility for overseeing the Group’s climate-
related risks and opportunities. Our ESG Working Group regularly
review and identify climate-related issues that may pose risks to
the Group in the short, medium and long term. The Group has
considered the potential climate-related risks in respect of the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures. The potential physical risks and transition risks from
climate change, which may pose adverse financial impacts on the

RIRE

Group’s businesses, and its corresponding mitigation strategies
are shown as follows.

EAAREEIIRE e RERRBE TN —I
2l E%@%EE%%%$%@E’J%@*E%§H
B - BFMARE L2 kEARIIEARE
BB R # AR A
& EBE B

ERASEEBEES  PHR

CHRIREREE - ARE D ZBRIR
MRS BB IT’EJ\%HE’J% EREERK
HERER - RIRE
MY BFENBEERR RSB
B8 4% AR SRS 40 T FATUR ©

BRI ARBEREXT

B B e B AR

potential disruption to operations caused
by new climate-related regulations, such
as restriction on electricity consumption
level.

BERER

MR EABERENEBRANEE

(BHE DREBEEKT

Short-term
(This Reporting
Potential Financial Impact Period) Medium-term Long-term
Risk Type BEMBHE T (RgE (1-3 years) (4-10 years) Mitigation Strategy
Bk ER Lowff Medium® [ High® ) T (1-3%F) | R (4-10%F) RERE
Transition Risks | Policy and Legal
BERR Increased compliance costs and

Regularly monitor the regulatory
environment and strictly adhere to the
Group’s emission-reduction measures to
maintain a low emission level.
EREANEERRLBRRETREEN
WHHE R AR EHBURT

Technology

Transition costs to more energy-efficient
treatment machines and technologies,
which include costs to adopt and deploy
new processes, capital investment,
research and development expenditures
and write-offs or early retirement of
existing assets.

ﬂ&
BEZBEROBRERERRMAMA
PREEBLBEBMARE BEREE HE
FXARRBEENMERRABEN

3%

Continue to keep abreast of the latest
development in slimming and beauty
technologies and energy-efficient
equipment.
FERB AR AR A
BHER-

REN

Physical Risks
BERRR

Acute

Extreme weather conditions such as
flooding and storms that lead to supply
chain disruption, disruption to daily
operation and loss of property and
revenue.

=

BH AR (K RER) SR e
Bl BEEETE AR E RE
Bx-

Chronic

Increased operating costs related to
increased need for cooling and heating
due to changing temperatures.

-4

BRFREILEHER REABIEM:
B E R AL

Maintain a large supplier base and set
up safety measures and contingency
plans in regards to extreme climate
events.

BREANHEERHRAR 1ot EnR R
SHRUTPRIEREE S

Strengthen the environmental awareness
of employees to ensure that they

strictly adhere to the Group’s energy
conservation measures.
MERENRRED BRESERE
FAEEME IR
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It is expected that the transition and physical risks do not have
any material impact on the Group’s operations. Nevertheless,
the Group will continue to monitor the climate-related risks
and implemented relevant measures to minimise the potential
transition and physical risks.

SOCIAL

Overview

The Group strongly believes that the key to our success is our
strong team of qualified and experienced talents. We focus on
building a pleasant working environment for all employees and
providing various training opportunities to our employees so as to
attract, motivate and retain talents.

Compliance and Grievance

As a responsible employer, the Group has complied with all
relevant employment laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on us, including but not limited to “Employment
Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Minimum Wage Ordinance” in Hong
Kong, “Sex Discrimination Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Employees’
Compensation Ordinance” in Hong Kong, and the “Labour Law
of the PRC”, the “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”, the “Law of
the PRC on Work Safety”, the “Social Insurance Law of the PRC”,
the “Law of the PRC on the Protection of Rights and Interests of
Women” and the “Law of the PRC on the Protection of Disabled
Persons”.

Employment

The Group has established internal policies in accordance with
the relevant labour laws and regulations related to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
holidays, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare. Our internal policies are to be reviewed by
the Human Resources Department on a regular basis to ensure
that they are kept in line with the latest applicable laws and
regulations.

To ensure that our key policies are clearly and consistently
communicated to our employees, the Group has established
an “Employees’ Handbook”, which details the rights of our
employees, such as working hours, leave entitlements and other
benefits and welfare. Each employee is provided with a copy of
the “Employees’ Handbook” when he/she joins the Group.
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Our Team A 2 BB

The Group believes that a team with diversified background and ZAEEEE EEZTE SR FS#E 2 EK
equal opportunities is indispensable to the success of our REFMEBFKII ARz LiFeo ﬁiﬂﬁﬂ:ﬁﬁ@

business. We strive to ensure that our recruitment process is fair REEBAREQAFER T EEB[ -HE - T _UF
and without any discrimination. As of 31 March 2024, the Group =A=+—8 ' KA&EBHA £225( _f::/
had a total of 225 (2022/23: 227) employees?. The breakdowns of Z— =4[ :227)&E B2 - KRR FH#4HE

our workforce by gender, age group, region and employment type Bl i@ M EEBEA £ 5 2 & TRRME 0T -
are as follows.

For the
Year ended
Breakdown of Workforce 31 March 2024
BE-Z_NF
=A=t—HLt
2T EHHA FE
By Gender
28|
Male 86
S
Female 139
egi
By Age
RER
Below 25 &)
255 AN
25-29 14
30-39 70
40-49 90
Above 50 48
50%% A £
By Region
2 ith &
PRC 140
+
HK 85
B
By Employment Type
REEER
Full-time 218
£
Part-time 7
B
2 The scope of this ESG report only covers the operations of provision of 2 RER HERELBENBEEERENTEIR
beauty and slimming services in Hong Kong and distribution of skincare M%/\&i@fﬁ BRBUARANBRESHEE Rt E

and cosmetic products in the PRC. mER -
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY GENDER
IN 2023/2024
R-Bo= /—MEERMFIES 2EEHA

Female B Male

oy St

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES BY AGE GROUP
IN 2023/2024
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During the Reporting Period, 39 employees left the key operating
units of the Group in Hong Kong and Shanghai, with a total
employee voluntary turnover rate of 17%, down from 20% in the
year 2022/23. The breakdowns of employee turnover rate of the
Group by gender, age group, and region are as follows.

Percentage of Employee Turnover Rate

BEERKE

By Gender
1 Bl

Male
S
Female
Eeglid
By Age
BER

Below 25
255 AT
25-29
30-39
40-49
Above 50
507K LA £

By Region
B E

PRC
FE
HK

BB

RBEEHE AEBUREEREBZEES
BB AL EERMT BEEAXIBRAEXAR
17% BR-TB—— /~“=FFH20% BT &
AEEKZRER  FikER kR E D> ZEER
KEBFMEFIAT -

For the

Year ended

31 March 2024
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FE

15%

19%

67%
50%
24%

8%
13%

10%

29%
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Welfare and Benefits

The Group has established a fair and reasonable remuneration
policy with the principles of fairness, incentive and legality.
For effective personnel management, we offer rewards (e.g.
promotion) and inflict punishments (e.g. warning and dismissal)

according to the employees’ performance and conduct.

Employees are entitled to all statutory holidays, leave and welfare
as stipulated in the national and local laws and regulations,
including but not limited to, paid maternity leave, marriage leave,
compassionate leave, compensation leave and annual leave. In
addition, we offer staff discounts and medical insurance to our
employees.

Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group does not tolerate the recruitment of child labour and the
use of forced labour, and ensures that the labour contracts signed
with its employees are on a fair, equal, voluntary, and mutually
agreed basis. Our recruitment is subject to a stringent internal
review process that includes verifying the personal information of
applicants. For instance, the staff member who is responsible for
recruitment collects the identity proof from candidates to ensure
that the age of candidates fulfills the requirements as stipulated
by the law. Any use of false documents will be deemed as
fraudulent and any related signed labour contract will be deemed
invalid by the Group.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with
relevant employment laws and regulations, including but not
limited to the “Law of the Protection of Minors in the PRC”, the
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” in the PRC.
All our employees were over the age 18, and had been properly
employed in accordance with the requirements of all applicable
laws and regulations. The Group does not use any unlawful or
unfair means to restrict the employee benefits and rights enjoyed
by its employees. No non-compliance incidents or grievances
were noted by the Group during the Reporting Period.
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Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group always endeavors to provide a fair and impartial
working environment where the employees are treated equally
and paid due respect. For the recruitment and promotion
process, all employees and candidates are assessed based on
their competence, performance, qualification and contribution
irrespective of their nationality, race, gender, age, religion,
physical ability, sexual orientation, skin colour, marital status
or family status. The Group has enforced policies that prohibit
discrimination and harassment. The Group strives to create a
workplace free of bullying, belittling or sexual harassment.

Health and Safety

The Group is dedicated to providing a safe working environment
for all our employees. Occupational health and safety of our
employees are always our top priority and we make every effort to
minimize potential occupational hazards.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the
“Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong
and the “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases”.

To protect our employees from all kinds of workplace hazards, a
comprehensive set of policies has been established in regard to
occupational health and safety management. Stringent control
measures are in place during our daily operations to ensure
that a high standard of hygiene is maintained throughout the
treatment process. For instance, cosmetologists are required to
put on personal protective equipment, such as surgical masks,
protective goggles and gloves, when performing medical and
beauty treatments.

Moreover, the Group has established “Safety Management
Guidelines” for the use of special equipment and tools, such as
needles, laser machine, forklift and slimming machine. The Group
ensures that its employees are certified before assigning them
to operate special equipment. The certificates of the employees
are properly retained during the service period of the respective
employees. The Human Resources Department closely monitors
the validity of these certificates.
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In order to raise the awareness of health and safety at the
workplace, the Group provides regular safety training to
employees who are responsible for operating forklifts. In case
of any work-related injuries, the Group will take all necessary
measures to make sure that proper medical care is offered to
the relevant employee. During the Reporting Period, we have
organized training sessions in respect of forklift operations for all
relevant employees, covering safety measures in operations and
maintenance of forklifts.

Furthermore, the Group has developed an emergency plan in
regard to fire accidents. We have equipped our office and stores
with sufficient fire equipment, such as fire extinguishers and fire
hydrants. The equipment is under regular checks to confirm they
are in good condition. Fire and emergency drill are organized on
a regular basis to familiarize our employees with the protocols for
emergency situations.

In the past three years including this Reporting Period, there were
two cases of work-related injuries, resulting in a total of 183 lost
days as we have pledged to provide sufficient days of sick leave
for our employees to compensate for their injuries. During the
Reporting Period, no case of reported work injuries and no lost
day due to work injuries was recorded by the Group. Due to the
dedicated efforts was made, there has been zero work related
fatalities for the past three years.

Occupational health and safety statistics

BERERZ2HAG
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Work-related injuries
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Development and Training

The Group regards employees as our most valuable assets.
Thus, we place great emphasis on personal development of our
employees. A wide range of training programmes are provided
to our employees every year to enhance their knowledge and
capabilities. Orientation training sessions are provided to newly
recruited employees by their department supervisors. The
orientation training covers an introduction of our Group, corporate
culture, code of conduct and safety regulations.

Moreover, regular training on technical skills and customer
services are provided to our employees to make sure that all
employees have sufficient knowledge and skills to provide
quality services to our customers. Upon the completion of the
aforementioned training, our staff members are equipped with
professional knowledge for performing treatments and handling
customers’ demands.

In addition, employees are encouraged to attend external training
courses and seminars that help them strengthen their knowledge
and expertise at work. Fees incurred for the courses or seminars
are sponsored by the Group upon management’s approval.
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During the Reporting Period, 67.6% of our total employees have ¥R & B > H {8 B 88 267.6%01 5 A1
completed training. The Group has conducted 861 hours of 3l NREBEDETA K861/ Z1EZI| MER
training in total, while the average training hour completed per EE XK Tl z FHIK #H A3.83/  NF- DT
employee was 3.83 hours. The breakdown of employees who EilZE B REHEE 2 T EIR R
took part in training and average number of training hours per N {EBHERIZID ZHMMT

employee by gender and employment category are as follows:

For the
Year ended
Average training hours completed per employee 31 March 2024
BEEz_F_NF
=Z=BR=t+-—H
BEREETHZIZ B ILFE
By Gender
&1 5B
Male 2.15
S
Female 4.83
e
By Employment Category
BRERER
Entry Level 4.24
R
Middle Level 2.69
R
Management Level 1.69
E1E &R

Percentage of total employees trained
EEZEIEER S

By Gender

14 5B

Male 28.3%
B

Female 71.7%
egid

By Employment Category

BRERER

Entry Level 82.9%
IES

Middle Level 13.2%
H &

Management Level 3.9%
EERA
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Supply Chain Management

The Group recognizes the importance of supply chain
management on its sustainable development. We are committed
to establishing long-term and harmonious relationships with all
our suppliers. Hence, the Group cooperates and communicates
with our suppliers closely to maintain the high quality of products
and services provided to our customers.

The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the principles of
integrity and pragmatism, and provide products and services
in strict compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.
During the selection of potential suppliers, the Group conducts
background screening to understand the potential supplier’s
scale, professional qualification, speed of response, quality of
products and services, as well as reputation in the industry. The
Group also considers environmental protection, occupational
health and safety, labour rights and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations when selecting potential suppliers, with an
aim of bringing positive impacts to the entire supply chain. Only
suppliers who have passed the background screening and met
our products and services quality requirements were added to our
list of qualified suppliers.

Approved suppliers of the Group are evaluated at least once
annually to ensure the quality of products and services acquired
are up to standard. The Group also continuously monitor and
evaluate suppliers for their record of handling environmental and
social issues. Suppliers who fail in our supplier assessment for a
prolonged period of time are to be disqualified by the Group.

During the Reporting Period, we had 8 suppliers in total, including
5 suppliers in Hong Kong, 1 in PRC and 2 in the United States.
The Group will continue to work closely with our suppliers and
strive to optimize our supply chain capabilities in order to fulfill
our responsibilities in social and environmental protection.
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Product Responsibility

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and regulations
relating to product responsibility that have a significant impact
on us, including but not limited to, the “PRC Product Quality
Law”, “Law of the PRC on Protection of the Rights and Interest of
Consumers”, the “Tort Law of the PRC”, the “Trade Descriptions”

in Hong Kong and “Sale of Goods Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations related
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to the products and services provided by us.

Quality Assurance

The Group aspires to continuously improve our brand reputation
by ensuring the quality of our products and services.

Sound customer service is essential in maintaining long-term
relationship with our customers. Our management closely
monitors the quality of our services through feedback of our
‘mystery customers’.

To ensure that our staff members performing treatments possess
adequate knowledge and skills, they are required to hold
relevant certifications and qualifications. These certifications
and qualifications include, but not limited to, CICA diploma
in International professional beautician, International Therapy
Examination Council (“ITEC”) Diploma for Beauty Specialists, ITEC
Diploma in Facial Electrical Treatments and ITEC Diploma in Laser
and Intense Pulsed Light Treatments.

Moreover, standard operating procedures manuals are affixed to
the machines to ensure work consistency. Regular inspections
and maintenance work are performed to ensure that all our
machines are well-functioning. Shop managers are required to
immediately report any machinery malfunctions and defects to the
head office for repair and maintenance.
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The Group offers high quality products, and we strive to minimize
our product liability risk. Before launching any new products,
we request samples from the suppliers or factories and engage
a third-party professional to perform quality control inspections
on the samples. Products are only launched if they comply with
Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) Guidelines. During the
Reporting Period, no products sold or shipped were subject to
recalls for safety or health reasons.

Complaints Handling Procedures

Customers’ opinions and feedback help to drive our continuous
improvement and are vital to our pursuit of excellence. The Group
has established various communication channels (e.g. website,
customer service hotline and Customer Service Department),
aiming to better address customers’ concerns.

The Group makes every effort to promptly investigate and
resolves all disputes and complaints lodged by the customers.
All complaints received are referred to and handled by the
Sales Team. Upon the receipt of a compliant, the responsible
personnel will investigate into the matter and take appropriate
action accordingly. If a reported complaint on product quality is
confirmed and is found to be caused by the supplier/factory, the
Group will terminate the agreement with the relevant supplier or
factory and may take appropriate legal actions, if necessary.

To ensure customers’ satisfaction, we proactively seek feedback
from our customers. If our customers are not satisfied with a
particular package that they have purchased from us, we will
reach the relevant customer to offer an exchange of another
package. In the last resort, we may offer refund to our customers
upon the approval of Department Head of Sales and Operations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received no material
complaint relating to product and service quality.
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Personal Data Privacy

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
“Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance” in Hong Kong, “Personal
Information Protection Law of the PRC” and the “Cybersecurity
Law of the PRC” in collecting, processing and using the
customers’ personal data. In order to build customer trust and
loyalty, the Group has established measures to reduce the risk
of employees leaking confidential information. Our customer
information is properly stored in our secured information
technology system with access restrictions and in a locked
cabinet for those in hardcopy.

The Group strictly prohibits the use of customers’ private data for
any purposes other than what has been stated in the customer
contracts. Disciplinary action is to be taken against the employee
who has been discovered of misappropriating customers’ private
data.

In order to raise employees’ awareness of customer data
protection, we conduct regular training to provide clear guidance
on proper handling of customers’ personal data.

Intellectual Property Rights

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with laws
and regulations regarding intellectual property rights in Hong
Kong and the PRC that have a significant impact on us, including,
but not limited to, the “Copyright Ordinance” in Hong Kong,
“Trademark Law of the PRC”, “Civil Code of the PRC” and the
“Copyright Law of the PRC”.

Currently, the Group has a number of trademarks registered in
Hong Kong and the PRC. A Trademark Register is maintained
by the Chief Operating Officer to monitor the validity of the
Group’s intellectual property concerned. The Trademark Register
includes information such as trademark logo, trademark number,
registration date, validity period, and registration status, etc.

Moreover, the Group acts proactively to enforce intellectual
property rights against third-party infringers. The Chief Operating
Officer is responsible for identifying any unauthorized use of the
trademarks by third-party. Legal actions are taken in due course
upon identification of any trademark infringements.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

BAERLE

REEHRE AEEERE BERERERP
BAEHBEETEBEZ(EAAER (FLE)
FHD)ARPENCPFEARKLMBEBEAER
REZE) RKPEARAMBBESR L EE) -
REVEPEERAH AKEEHTEE
HERBBHEBEEENZER TPREMER
MzRLEAHMEEGZSHET LREFIR
R MAERER ZHRIXANBEFEER LHH
YIET

BREPAMNIBZABIN AEEBRESEP
ZEAMLEREEMAE - HEREETEF
REPZBEALRE RAKEZA2EEHELL
RED

v aF
%
v
ﬁ
o
ﬁt
i

A ERREZZHZ RMAEH
ﬁﬁiJlﬁ@E?ﬁgﬁﬂAﬁﬂkh%W

HBERE

RBEHE AEECETHRMBEEATE
ERANBERBRARTEAZREAR B
BARREBZ CREGD) AR FEZ(H
EARAMBEEHRE (PEARKMER
EHRY R(REARLMBEZERER) -

AEBEBBEEZERNTERTRELZER
BERZLZENTERTFRASEMAL M NER
$Elm@ﬂﬁ3%2ﬁﬁﬁw%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
HANBREES ARRB BELAH X
HRELMNEFER -

o AEBEBEHE =TT REERBBITH
HEEEN BREEERNTEREMMNETME
EHERERETEABER  HEARNTAEEF
B BHARNEERHERRIUERTH -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HEREARS

Anti-Corruption

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations relating to prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering, including but not limited
to, the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” in Hong Kong, the
“Criminal Law of the PRC”, the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of
the PRC” and the “Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC”.

The Group prohibits any acts of corruption and bribery committed
by our employees. Our “Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy”
clearly sets out guidelines for the acceptance of gifts. Under
the policy, all employees are required to exercise caution and
judgment when accepting gifts. Gifts should not be accepted if
they are in value higher than HK$200.

Moreover, our whistle-blowing policy clearly sets out the
procedures and channels for reporting corruption and fraud
cases. As stipulated in the policy, all employees should
immediately report any suspected corruptions or fraud cases to
the Group. After a potential case has been reported, investigation
will be conducted with due care. For any proven corruptions
or fraud cases, management will take appropriate action
immediately.

In case of conflicts of interest, our employees must declare their
personal interests and report the matters to management of the
Group. Employees are strictly prohibited to abuse their power
and/or take advantage of their position for personal gain.

Since the Group’s business is not highly exposed to the risk of
corruption, no training of such area was held during the Reporting
Period. All directors received training on corporate governance
prior to the Group’s listing or at the time of joining the Group, so
that they are aware of their duties and responsibilities on integrity.
The Group is planning to provide and subsidize training of
anti-corruption to its employees and director in the next reporting
year. During the Reporting Period, the Group was not aware of
any violations related to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering.
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Community Investment

The Group understands the importance of giving back to the
society and our social responsibilities. The Group focuses its area
of contribution in education and health of the community. We are
committed to building a better community and encouraging our
employees to take part in community services so as to contribute
to a more sustainable and harmonious society.

The Group has established a Volunteer Team since 2005.
Voluntary services are organized by the Team on a regular basis,
with an aim of showing love and care for the community, as well
as understanding the needs of the community in which the Group
operates. During the Reporting Period, the Group was awarded
“Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for over 15 consecutive years.

The Groups understands that financial support would greatly
benefit people in need. During the Reporting Period, the Group
made donations to various charitable organisations in Hong Kong
and the PRC to provide financial aid to people with financial
difficulties.

Resources that we have contributed to the community during the
Reporting Period are detailed in the following table (KPI B8.2).

Community Indicators

HEER

KPI B8.2
KPI B8.2

HERE

AEBERALOBEHEREEREETZEEL -
SEZHEITERMBB AT RS KR KM
BHEVERHHR YHERERESELRR
B NBRABEZMELE -

AEEE _TTAFERIETEK ZEK
THENETIRY TREIR ZEHE
VEBAEEREMAELRZFRZ -NREH
B AEECBBEETAFEESELERE
e R [ REREE] -

BB YBRXEBEAEFTEALAK
TRBEWRHE AEEBRTFEERTHE
HARZHES RAVERRENATRERE

o

mE % KE Bt
EZE%%W

RMEBE BT EERZ2BERR TREF
5I(KPI B8.2)

For the

Year ended

31 March 2024
BE-ZT_-_MfF
=H=t+—H
hEE

Resources contributed to education, environmental concerns, labour needs, health, culture,

sport (Amount in HK$)
THE -BER-
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GEM LISTING RULES - APPENDIX

C2: ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORTING GUIDE

Part A: Environmental

ESG Aspects

BRE -HERERER

A1. Emissions

Al. B

Information on the policies and compliance

with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air
and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.
FRAERIMBERBYN  MKR TS
EEREEREVNELESHBER RETHE
TABEAZENHBEERROINER -

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective
emission data.

B4R 4B RUBIRAT 1 BERR Y 18 28 I A8 B R PR -
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emission in total (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BAREDIEIEAI2AERBABINRE (ABEGE)
NR(m@ER)®nE (WMASESEN SERKRME

= o
Ft

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, Intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BREVIERAIIMEEEEEEMRE (VAN
AER(MER)EE (WAEBEEEN BR
RpEtE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced
(in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
FREBIERMATEEESREEYRE (AN
AEI)R(MER)BE (WASESEN 88
REtE)

GEMLETWR Al —[fféEC2 - BIBF - HE
RERBERSI

Related Section Remarks

HEEH L

Environmental — Overview, Emissions,
Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes, Use of
Resources

RE-BE Y BEREZEEY BER
i35

Emissions

73,8

Emissions

3¢

Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes

Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes
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ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set Emissions

and steps take to achieve them.

B B2 4R R IR A SR LRV E BRI E /9 FE e SR P 713587

SRR -

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Wastes
non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a

description of reduction target(s) set and steps

taken to achieve them.

BREEFRAHEIEEAEREETER BENBEEZERED
WA RERAEI VA REEERAETEL

B RPN 2P BR

A2. Use of Resources
A2. EREHA

Policies on the efficient use of resources, Energy and Water Consumption
including energy, water and other raw materials.

ERERER (BIEER KEREMEME)H BEIR IR KB 7%

SR o

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Energy and Water Consumption
consumption by type. (e.g. electricity, gas or oil)

in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit

of production volume, per facility).

BREBERAARERESHNEER &M BE IR K KOH 7

EeeR (NE - -mion) @EE (U TFETF R

BIREE(MABEESEM BHERMETHE) -

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and Energy and Water Consumption
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

BREBIERA2EFRKERTE (MASEE RRAKER

B -ZERMEFE) -

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Energy and Water Consumption
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

78§ 48 BUIE 1R A2. 3% L P 7T 32 RO sE IR B AR BE IR K KOH #E
EERREINESELARARRNTRE-
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ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE -HERERER HEEH L

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any Energy and Water Consumption
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,

water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to

achieve them.

B4R 4B B IRA2. 448 i SREVE KR SR B BETR R IKH R
mEE AR VHAKREERRRESSE

Lt BRI 8K -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for Packaging Materials
finished products (in tonnes) and, if applicable,

with reference to per unit produced.
BREMIERASHKmATABREMBNES BEM
(AMEEtE) R (@R BEEEMGSE -

A3. The Environmental and Natural Resources
A3. REBERRXRER

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant Emissions, Hazardous and Non-Hazardous
impact on the environment and natural Wastes, Use of Resources

resources.

WEETAHRRERNRABERERKEATEDN BnYy EERBEEEREY BREM
K o

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts Emissions, Hazardous and Non-Hazardous
of activities on the environment and natural Wastes, Use of Resources

resources and the actions taken to manage

them.

BREMEEASAERESEIHWBERRAR HRY BEREZHEEY BRER
BRONBEAZENREERDNEEREULENTE -
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ESG Aspects

BRE -HERERER

Remarks

B

Related Section
HHEEE

A4. Climate Change
A4, RIRE

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
BRIREHERRAREHBETAEETEN
BARBHEBEENEE-

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those
which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.
BRBEZIERAIBAE R R AT HETA
EEXENERARGEBEEREHTH-

Part B: Social

ESG Aspects

BRE -HERERER

B1. Employment
B1. B

Information on the policies and compliance

with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

ERFM AR E BERES TIERE - RH-
FE#E Lt RIEBEAREMFEREF
WBERRETHETABERZENEAZERR
Bl ey & K} o

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region.
BRERIREBI R MR BEEE  FiAR
K@ E o HEE B

KPI B1.2 Employment turnover rate by gender,
age group and geographical region.
FRAEBUIEIEB.2R MR - FRR AR KRR E 5
BB MALLE-

Climate Change

TR

Climate Change

TIREI

ZE e

Remarks

Lk

Related Section
rHEEE

Compliance and Grievance

SRR

Our Team

P9z B Fx

Our Team

19 2 B Bx
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ESG Aspects

RE - HEREREE

B2. Health and Safety
B2. @RERE

Information on the policies and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
FRARKZE2IERREAREES#RBET
EENBRRRETHETABEAZENEHA
ERRBOIEHR -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related
fatalities occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year.
HREVEEB2ABE=F (B RERFE)E
FRAITHHAB KX

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
BRERIEEB22A T SEHEATER &

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health
and safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

B3 B BB IRB2 S T IR A Y B R R R B %
B AREBRITRERE T L.

Related Section Remarks

HEEH B

Health and Safety

e fE B 22 &

Health and Safety

e f B 22 &

Health and Safety
BEREZE
Health and Safety
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ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

B3. Development and training
B3. /R K IE I

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge Development and Training
and skills for discharging duties at work.

Description of training activities.
FARAREBITIERENMERKENEK BEREI

Ko MR DR E -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training
by gender and employee category (e.g. senior

management, middle management).
BREMEEBI IR REERR (MeRE FEREI

BEE HREBEES)I/SNIIEEB L -

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed  Development and Training
per employee by gender and employee category.
BREMIEEB 2R REEERE S BE  EHREKE
EBEEAXINNFHRE-

B4. Labour standards
B4. & T %8|

Information on the policies and compliance Child Labour and Forced Labour
with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to

preventing child and forced labour.

FBHLEISAWNS ITHBRRRETHET EIRBRHIST
ABBERTENERERRROINEHR -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Child Labour and Forced Labour
employment practices to avoid child and forced

labour.

BREBIEREBA AR BB NERIA  EIRBHST
BRETINEHST -

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate  Child Labour and Forced Labour
such practices when discovered.

FRERIEEB4 2 E R R ERBERRER BIR®BGIST
BRIBRPTEREE) 2 5R
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ESG Aspects

RE - HEREREE

B5. Supply chain management
B5. ftiEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
ERHEENRE R ERMRBUR -

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region.

MR ENIEEBS AR R E DM EREE -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to
engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where
the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

BB RIEEBs 2 B IS e 18 Bl
MENTEEENHERRE  ANAEED
BITRERA A

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to
identify environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

79 52 45 SR 1R B5 . 31 ML A B 5 Bl L FE 38 B E IR
FERE N GRERAED - AREBRITRE
BAE.

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to
promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

R ERIEEB A EREHREARRES
ARRERERENEL - ARMEERTRESR
JTEe

Related Section
HEER

Supply Chain Management

HEEEIR
Supply Chain Management

HEHER
Supply Chain Management

HpEgEE

Supply Chain Management

HERER

Supply Chain Management

HrEEE e

Remarks

B
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ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

B6. Product responsibility
B6. EmEE

Information on the policies and compliance Product Responsibility
with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health

and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services

provided and method of redress.
ERAMREERNBRBORERZE BES B E
BERALBEE AR AN B R8T
TABEAXENHBERZLROINEFR -

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Quality Assurance
shipped subject to recalls for safety and health

So
il
[=aY

reasons.
BB ENIEEBIEEREEXEMBHR TR B ER3
T EEFEAMADKN AL -

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service- Complaints Handling Procedures

i

related complaints received and how they are

dealt with.

B EMIEIEBe.2E BN E m KRB B R RIFBERF
HEUREHTE-

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to Intellectual Property Rights
observing and protecting intellectual property

rights.

7 32 48 AU 1R B6. 3 it Bl 4 7 RIS AN B E R G EE
BB -

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance Quality Assurance

process and recall procedures.

FREMIEEBe A EERTEREREME B 2R3
WARFF

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data Personal Data Privacy
protection and privacy policies, how they are

3

koj

implemented and monitored.
7 52 45 AU 1286 .51 MU B & B BHRIE R AL (EPNCEEY N
BER  ARBERTRERT A
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ESG Aspects

RE - HEREREE

B7. Anti-corruption
B7. RE’5

Information on the policies and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations that have

a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
FBEHLHR PR HFERLBENBRRKLE
THETAGEAZENEBEZZRRIINE
*to

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
BRERIEREBT AN EHHEHHTAIHE
BREVTEFENE SHLRMOEE RFH
#ERo

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures
and whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

8§ 48 U 1RB7 .2 i [ # 45 b M B IAR 0 A
NABERITRERA A

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training
provided to directors and staff.
BRERERB7T IR NEERETRHENR
5

Related Section
HEER

Anti-Corruption

Anti-Corruption

Anti-Corruption

RE&EF

Anti-Corruption

k&5

Remarks

B
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ESG Aspects Related Section Remarks

RE HEREREM HEEH B

B8. Community investment

B8. HERE

Policies on community engagement to Community Investment
understand the needs of the communities

where the issuer operates and to ensure

that its activities take into consideration the

communities’ interests.

FANHEBE2ERTHREERMELET EMNE HERE
REEKEHGERELEMNSHAIBE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. Community Investment
education, environmental concerns, labour

needs, health, culture, sport).
BRESEEBIETIERMEE (IHME RE HERE
EE-BIFRK BE X -8BF)-

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or ~ Community Investment
time) to the focus area.

R ERIEIEB8 2H )X BRI BRI M EIR HEREE

(e EelfE) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

@ pakertilly
R Hi ] PR

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Sau San Tong Holdings Limited
BEHEEZRERDA

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sau
San Tong Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 126 to 256, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting
policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2024 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BEEEEZRARATZBERR
ZBURBEMKRE

(REEHEZMALZ ERAF)
ER

Az (A TEHEBIRMIEERFE126E
FEEMBEFERRERAAREME A
Al(HEIERE] ) 2EaMBERER RS
BBREREBER _ZFE_NF=A=1+—BZ%
BMBRAR BEZBLFEz2HaBRR
FeBEBRAMEARER SARAEHR
EiFARERERANGAMBHRRME B
TEREANSTRRER-

BHMRAB SEAVBRERREBETESAMA
S([BEEGRMAS] ) EHZEAVBRE
B ([EAMBRESERNEERAFHR
R BEEER_T_WNE=ZA=t—HZ&EAE
MBERR URBEZRALEFEZGEVBER
AREaBReRE Y ERBBRAKE 2
BERTEZRHRmE -
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R R IR

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements” section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENRE

The Key Audit Matter
REELEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMELKBNMEEEER

Key judgements relating to impairment testing of goodwill

FHEBERERNA @R

Refer to notes 2(e), 2(k)(ii) and 15 to the audited consolidated financial statements

R R E A S IREN F2(e)  2(k)(i)) R 16

As at 31 March 2024, the carrying amount of the
Group’s goodwill was mainly allocated to a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) in relation to the provision
of beauty and slimming business in Hong Kong
amounting to HK$14,138,000.
RZZE_WFE=A=+—H' BXKEFEZK
HEXF2NEE —MBAMREBREXT RME
¥R eELBEU([ReELEML]) 2
14,138,000/ JT °

0}
Shavah
g

af B

RN

The assessment of the recoverable amount of
goodwill is based on the future business prospect
and forecast performance of the business. Due
to its inherent uncertainty involved in forecasting
and discounting future cash flows, which are
the basis of the assessment of the recoverable
amount of this CGU, impairment review of
goodwill is one of the key judgemental areas that
our audit focused on. There is a risk that the key
assumptions, estimates and judgements on which
the calculations are based upon are inappropriate
and that goodwill is overstated as a result.

ez E g BRERREBARERFRER
i‘ﬁ AELRFE - AR R EL B 2 AT S

8

H%mﬁ%%&%&*Xﬁiﬁ RE LB R
T%%I% B E 2R ER S SERMERAEE
Z o — {E B 5 1 B %6 05 mu&mﬁ%ﬁm%z
Eﬁ?“’ﬁ%&%%ﬂ Y AEE S BRERE

Our audit procedures in this area included:
BZMR LT A BZEFEE:

evaluating and challenging the reasonableness on
the key assumptions and methodologies used by the
management with reference to relevant historical/market
information, in particular those relating to the sales
growth rate and the Group’s pre-tax discount rate;
K2ZREREY /M5ERE FEREAETEEM®
ReBRBREERATEAZAEN LERFHHEEERE
N BEBEZHATRE X

assessing and challenging the cash flow projections
prepared by the management, including assessing
historical accuracy of management’s estimates and
comparing historic actual results to those budgeted to
assess the quality of management’s forecasting;
AERERNEREMRR R RERA BREFEE
BEBAMS LR UREBBEERXARES -
N EREEACEER:

assessing the robustness of the forecasts to changes
in assumptions, including operation growth beyond
the 2025 detailed forecast, long-term growth rates
and discount rates used in the model to assess
appropriateness of the carrying amount of the goodwill;
and
AEEANRREHC REL BE _ S _RFHFARE
BIAGNZ ZIFRE  REBERR RIRAPTAREA R UGF
ERHECEREHESSHEE K

assessing the adequacy of the disclosures relating
to those assumptions to which the outcome of the
impairment test is the most sensitive, that is, those that
have the most significant effect on determination of the
recoverable amount of goodwill.

AEBERARENAERERBRBIAERZIIKRERST
EE‘%%%E%%TW@iﬁ%ﬁEEﬁw§ZE&o
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B ZBENRE

The Key Audit Matter
HAREZEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMELBNMEEEER

Valuatlon and existence of loans and interest receivables

BREREFMNEZEEREE

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(m), 19 and 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements

BRI EFE A A FEFREZ N ZF2(k)0) - 2(m) ~ 19529(a)

The Group recognised loans and interest
receivables initially at fair value and subsequently
at amortised cost in the consolidated statement
of financial position. As at 31 March 2024, the
carrying amount (net of loss allowance) of the
loans receivable and interest receivables were
HK$68,420,000 and HK$1,224, OOO respectively.
a%lm*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁwﬁwﬁ &ﬂg ﬁﬁ&
M%#ﬁ%&%%ﬁ$ﬁ PR E R R F
—E_WE=A=+—8" E%%ﬁﬁﬁw
7l 8 Z%Eﬁ(ﬁ%%%%ﬁ)
% 5T 11,224,000 7 ©

> Bl A68,420,000

The measurement of expected credit losses
(“ECL”) requires the application of significant
judgements which include the identification of
exposures with a significant deterioration in credit
quality, and assumptions used in the ECL model
such as the probabilities of default, loss given
default, expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.

BHEEBRE ([EREEER] ) ZFAEBAELE
AHAE BRBNEEEEABEE AR k&
HEEEREXAMERZMBR WELH Z AL
;\_Z’j}%?@? FEHARKRB 2 RE RATEZBEER

Due to the significance of loans and interest
receivables (representing approximately 8% of
total assets) and inherent uncertainty in such
estimates, we considered this as a key audit

matter.

HRBEREREFBERK ((REEBELNS% )R
ZEMFRANE L FEIEERAR  WERMEZSE
BERAREZER-
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Our audit prooedures in this area included:
BRI T AR EZEFEE:

obtaining and reviewing the sample of loan agreements
(including supplemental agreements and loan extension
agreements, if any) and agreeing the principal amounts,
interest rates, maturity dates and other information to
the Group S aooountlng records;

REREHNERBE BN (BEMETHERERLEH
%m(mﬁﬂ IHE E%E@%EﬁZK%%%
MEFERREAMER

testing of controls designed and applied in the process
of approving and granting loans, subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan extensmns
Wﬁ&&#ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ¢% TR ER 2 EHIETAE
HBERERMRRREMERER:

assessing the effectiveness of key controls over
the application of the impairment methodology, the
governance for the ECL models, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the ECL;
SEERAREE BRE EREEFERERZE
B BEREERAEEHCEBERERAAZHBARER
BREZ BRI

assessing the reasonableness of the Group’s ECL
models and the Group’s criteria for assessing if there
has been a significant increase in credit risk, default or
credit-impaired, and so allowances for financial assets
should be measured on a lifetime ECL basis and the
qualitative assessment;

HE EEEEREEREBREAN EREFBEER
REGBEEM: L%&E%iZT/T CBESREE

BB R E KA TA NS B B IR B B N I A R

WZéﬁﬁ:

+

recalculation of loan interest income recognised on a
sample basis;

EFTE MR ZERFBWA

obtaining direct confirmation of loan balances from the
borrowers on a sample basis; and

MERSERARERERIEZERER K

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
corroborating enquiries with the management about
the reasons for not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balances.
EHNHREECHE YA EBESAUNZETZRHME
A K (BB P A B R M R R B 2 B o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBENRE

The Key Audit Matter
REELEE

Impairment of trade and other receivables

BHEWE 5 A K H At W IR 2 BE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMELKBNMEEEER

Refer to notes 2(k)(i), 2(n), 18 and 29(a) to the audited consolidated financial statements
B2 E R SR EIRERZE2(K)() - 2(n) - 18K29(a)

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s trade and other
receivables (net of loss allowance) amounted to
HK$56,200,000 and HK$65,655,000 respectively.

M-F—pu&E=A _—i— = a%@ZF&‘HﬂZf’f
SHREREMEBRRE (NBBEREE) SR A

56,200,0007% 7T &65,655,000}% R

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables
are based on management’s estimate of the
lifetime ECL and 12-month ECL to be incurred
respectively, which are estimated by taking into
account the credit loss experience, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, debtors’ repayment
history and debtors’ financial ability and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions, all of which involve
a significant degree of management judgement.

FEWE 5 RIA N H b UK IE 2 BHEBETIRE
BREDMEEESE 2 KATAEEEEE R1218 A
BEEEFRAZ T (EREREEBRELR B
HEKE S HIE KRR EHEARRELREBA
B ae WE b at) RETE Al RFEAI BB E BRI
gﬁ&ZWﬁuiﬁﬁﬁl%ﬁﬁhE/ REERE

) e -

PH

We identified assessing the recoverability of
trade and other receivables as a key audit matter
because the assessment and recognition of
loss allowance are inherently subjective and
requires significant management judgement,
which increases the risk of error or potential
management bias.

o AP9 58k 51| 5T 1t 1 W B 5 R IE I H b fE W k1B 2 AT
et —BRRES SR RE BN ERERE
BREFEEANIEM YARE @Fﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ
%’ﬁﬁ%M§%ﬁ%E%@FﬁﬁZH

Our audit prooedures in this area included:
BZMRE T A EBZEFEE:

evaluating the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness for key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and estimate of expected
credit losses;

H SRR A WEEBRAGENEEEE M
BAIIES 2 RET BT REERBE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables ageing report were classified within
the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual
items in the ageing report with the relevant sales
invoices;
%ﬂmiﬁ%ﬁ% I B e 5 < B 5l 18 B B AR R 8H &
BR MR ERRAE AR RSO REA ARR
L)

assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss
allowance estimates by examining the information
used by management to form such judgements,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and
examining the actual losses recorded during the current
financial year and assessing whether there was an
indication of management bias when recognising loss
allowance; and
BEBED S B AL %% T
ﬁLE#K%ﬁZ&ﬁE ”1@EEA
RBEBRARABEEENERERE RESH
BISCEREE URTHREREE
%Eﬁgzm%>&ﬁ%@g%¢zg
ZAN E ;

reviewing subsequent settlement records and
challenging management regarding their reasons for not
considering a provision against any unsettled past-due
balances.
%ﬁﬁé%i@ﬁ‘lﬂ%ﬁFEﬂﬁ¥T%ﬁMEﬁ
NERBHERTREREZRRA

o) my W FPI
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
R R IR

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN B EN R

Responsibilities of directors and those
charged with governance for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

ESENERERGEMBHRRAEE
ZEfE

EXZARERBEAGHMAGEM BT LY
Bk E 2R KB E R AHED] 2 B AR TE R
BHMBHRE NSHRAMBERRELEEMA
FZRB WEEBERBRHEEEMBREM
VEZEHEANNEE WEGEEHMBERRTE
FEHNRFFRERMEB 2 BAFRRAL -

REREAVMEREAEF EFAANE BS
BiSELE 2 YRBERIBEN T3 EER
BREEMER URERHERLLE RS
HEWE-BRIFEEEEER SHEEBRAIEFELE
B YR EEMERZERTSR

BB RHBIE-

BB RBERGRS M BBREAEEZ
BfE

BMZEEARERRANBREAREIFE
HARBGFRERMER T EAERBIMBEE
BEX TELPERMER 2 REMBE-
BREZEBEBRI AREAERNZEBRER
EORBEAN ARRETTRAEEMMAR &
MBETRAREZ ATHIMAEMATERS
AERF-

FHEFBRKFCEEFE BYFRIFLREB
BREAMET  ERBRERX —BAER
Rt 2 77 - $A RRER L 7] o KRR SR EERR M oI B
fief 7] B & I T8 HA ] 5l X 0 48 AR 2R 2 8 AR BRO %
FERSTHAVBRREBERBEBY B REK
PIT1E 2 SR TE - BIBAR EEE KRS8 AR Rt
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

S Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BN 3R S

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Leung Yun Wa.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 June 2024

Leung Yun Wa
Practising certificate number PO8096
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

|=| \/
l|/j_\ é%

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_WE=A=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETZ73)

Revenue

— Distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products

— Provision of beauty and slimming
services

— Provision of franchise services

— Sale of health, beauty and related
products

— Results from investments in securities

— Interest income from money lending

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains or losses

Selling and distribution costs
General and administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year
Attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic

Diluted

The notes on pages 134 to 256 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

Note
Viokz3
Wﬁ 3
D EL i R EEE S
—REZAREERY

— RN E A 1ERT
—HERR XBAREBESR

—BHREXRS
—EZFE KA

& AN

ER

Ho Al U & 4
H b e as BT R 4
HE Mo AR

—RRITHRAX

gepE
= J2RN 5(a)

R B AT A5 1R 9
PR3 XX 6

R IR
BER

ARAEEAA
FEIE IR s

BRER 9
=N

#g

— 85
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2024 2023
—E-EF —ET-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT
1,015,567 1,172,999
57,465 48,939
- 33
6,840 4,562
4,769 (6,149)
8,094 11,164
1,092,735 1,231,548
(988,167) (1,132,424)
104,568 99,124
8,163 7,538
1,113 4,885
(42,853) (45,634)
(81,220) (72,242)
(10,229) (6,329)
(809) (426)
(11,038) (6,755)
(3,353) (7,913)
(14,391) (14,668)
(14,297) (13,933)
(94) (735)
(14,391) (14,668)
HK cents HK cents
B JENY
(18.13) (17.99)
(18.13) (17.99)
EMBHREZ

FE134Z F2568 2 M sE B K



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= N7 YA
meEmkHEMEEEE
For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_Z-_WE=A=+—RHLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETE7)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive loss

for the year, net of nil tax

ltems that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

— Exchange difference on translation
of financial statements of foreign
operations

— Cumulative exchange gain
reclassified to profit or loss upon
deregistration of a subsidiary

FABE

FREMZEBE"
BB FHE
HETREFTHIBERSEZ
5 B :
—HMEBIINEB 2 BEHEK
FREEAZER ZH

——MBRREHEREN
DEANBmZ RFTER
Y &8

Other comprehensive loss for the year F A E b 2 H &1

Total comprehensive loss for the year SR ZHEEAHE

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 134 to 256 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

BER
RARAREAAN
FEiE AR

2024 2023

—E-mF —E-=4F

Note HK$°000 HK$ 000
oka FE T FETT
(14,391) (14,668)

(5,308) (9,300)

4 - (423)
(5,308) (9,723)

(19,699) (24,391)

(19,613) (21,968)

(86) (2,423)

(19,699) (24,391)

—#5 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

= N
e AR R
As at 31 March 2024
R-E-_WE=A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment property
Intangible asset

Goodwill

Loans and interest receivables

Current assets

Inventories

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Amount due from a related party

Current tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Contract liabilities

Trade payables

Other payables and accrued charges
Lease liabilities

Interest-bearing borrowings

Current tax payable

Defined benefit plan obligations

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE
ER - Er Y E
EREEE
BEME
BVEE

B

FEU & R B

REBEE
Ea
BAFEFABZZEREE

e W & 5 7R
BRI e R E AR
IR

FE U & R B

FEl — 2 BRE AL FR

A Y [ E B IR
RekReEEY

REBAE

BHAE

FE 8 5 5KR

Hi R RIBLEFER
HEARE

M BEE

FEff & HITH R
RERNF AL

RBEEFH

EERBERRBDEE
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Note
ok3

11
12
13
14
15
19

16

17
18

18

19

20
25(a)

21
22

23
24
25(a)
26

2024 2023
—EWF —E-=4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
91,849 95,079
8,241 3,786
15,500 15,500
14,871 14,871
14,770 16,220
29,548 25,215
174,779 170,671
5,419 7,382
102,649 107,098
56,200 67,121
73,416 94,013
40,096 37,941

3 3

529 936
390,265 416,179
668,577 730,673
11,628 10,385

= 898

64,301 106,625
5,215 3,851
1,009 1,356
1,089 2,289

6 _

83,248 125,404
585,329 605,269
760,108 775,940




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a B IR &

As at 31 March 2024
RZZ_NMF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)
2024 2023
—E-MMEF ZET=F
Note HK$’000 HK$ 000
k23 FET FET
Non-current liabilities kERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 23 3,301 234
Defined benefit plan obligations ATERAFEEME 26 800 =
4,101 234
NET ASSETS EEFH 756,007 775,706
Capital and reserves BEXR#E 28
Share capital fig A& 788 788
Reserves i 769,246 788,859
Total equity attributable to owners of FEBRAATHEEAEZLEHE
the Company 770,034 789,647
Non-controlling interests FE 128 i 7R (14,027) (13,941)
TOTAL EQUITY R 756,007 775,706

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EEER T _INF XA -+ BIbERRE

26 June 2024, FIZ o
Mui Wai Sum Lei Nelson
BERR THRE
Director Director
EZE EE

The notes on pages 134 to 256 form part of the consolidated 21342 2568 2 M X B G AWM B HRE 2
financial statements. — &5 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GAERBBR

w3

For the year ended 31 March 2024

B=E

—E-FE=

A=+—H1tFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AET25)

At 1 April 2022

Changes in equity for
2023

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive
loss for the year

Total comprehensive
loss for the year
Issue of shares
(note 28(a)(ii)
Dividends paid to non-
controlling interests

At 31 March 2023

At 1 April 2023

Changes in equity for
2024

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive
loss for the year

Total comprehensive
loss for the year

At 31 March 2024

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERREALNTREEA
Share-  The PRC
based  statutory Non-
Share Share Merger Exchange  payment surplus Revaluation Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
REAHK  PEEE FER
BA  BROBE AHEE EXRE RE BBEE EM4EE HtHEE 2HER ast EE ERAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000 — HKS000  HKS000 — HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FEr FEr FET TET TET FET FET FET FEr FHT TET TET
gk et
A-8 750 787,794 (3,637) 5,297 2,224 24,725 3,574 28,055 (41,339) 807,443 12,567 820,010
SRIZEER
29
ERER = = S S = = = = (13,933 (13,933) (735)  (14,668)
FREMZEEHE
= = = (8,035) = = = = = (8,035  (1,688) (9,723
FNREBEAR
= = = (8,035) = = = = (13,933)  (21968) (2423  (24,391)
BRI
(Bt 2 28(a)(i) ) 38 4134 = = = = = = = 4172 = 4172
BRFEERER 2
) = = = = = = = = = - (24,085 (24,085)
38 4,134 - (8,035) - - - - (13,933)  (17,796)  (26,508)  (44,304)
RZBZZ§
ZH=+-8H 788 791,928 (3637)  (2,738) 2204 24725 35674 28,055 (55,272) 789,647  (13,941) 775,706
RZBZZE
MA-B 788 791,928 (3,637) (2,738) 2,224 24,725 3,574 28,055 (55,272) 789,647 (13,941) 775,706
SECMEER
258
FAEE - - - - - - - - (14,297)  (14,297) (94)  (14,391)
FREMRZERE
- - - (5,316) - - - - - (5,316) 8 (5,308)
FRREBEAE
- - - (5,316) - - - - (14,297)  (19,613) (86)  (19,699)
R-B-m&E
ZA=t-H 788 791,928 (3,637) (8,054) 2,224 24,725 3,574 28,055 (69,569) 770,034 (14,027) 756,007
The notes on pages 134 to 256 form part of the consolidated Z5134ZF 2568 2 M B G A M BEHRE 2

financial statements.
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Il/j_\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_Z-_MF=A=+—RHILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)

Operating activities BETEH

Loss before taxation bR 3 A& 18

Adjustments for: BATHE

— Interest income from money lending  —FREE S 2 F.8 U A
business

— Fair value gain on financial assets at —ZAFEHTABHEZ &/l
fair value through profit or loss, net BEZATFEKZEFE

- Bank interest income —RITH EWA

— Other interest income —H At F S U A

— COVID-19-related rent concession -2019EMmEREBEES

R

— Cumulative exchange gain reclassified —— R B A A8 % BERS
from equity to profit or loss upon BN OBEER R
deregistration of a subsidiary R

- Dividend income from listed equity —EBRARFESR KRB A
securities

- Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —HEME HERREL
plant and equipment, net B8 (Ks) F58

— Gain on early termination of a lease —HERFRIEZKE

- Finance costs — B & K AR

- Depreciation of property, plant and — M HERRERTE
equipment

— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FAEEENE

— Impairment loss on trade and — U E 5 5RIE K A FE UL
other receivables, net R REEEFE
— Impairment loss/(reversal of - EREFEZRE

impairment loss) on loans and BB CREEERD)
interest receivables, net HEE

— Impairment loss on goodwill —HEZRERBE

— Impairment loss on intangible asset —BIVEEZREEBR

- Write-off of trade receivables — M H R W E 5 R IB

— Write-off of other receivables — i B8 AL fth JE YR IE

— Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss —EX (W), BEFE

Operating profit/(loss) before changes EE&E B F a2 K&
in working capital wmFL(ER)

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT
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Note
k23

5(a)

5(c)
5(c)

5(c)

5(c)
5(c)
5(c)
5(c)
5(c)

2024 2023
—E-mF —EF-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T FETT
(11,038) (6,755)
(8,094) (11,164)
(4,854) (15,951)
(5,645) (2,261)
(1,397) =
= (586)

= (423)

(380) (375)

88 (158)

(27) =

809 426
8,615 8,892
8,204 7,336
3,914 4,048
8,581 (5,384)
1,450 976

= 129

1 —

6,824 496
(15) 615
7,036 (20,139)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

v /j_\ IE; % NILEE ;—%

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_ZT-_WE=A=+—HLFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETZ73)

Decrease in inventories

Decrease in financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Decrease in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in loans and
interest receivables
Increase in contract liabilities
Decrease in trade payables
Decrease in other payables and
accrued charges
Increase in defined benefit plan
obligations

Cash (used in)/generated from
operations

PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded/(paid),

net
Interest received
Dividend received

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Payment for the purchase of an
intangible asset

Net cash used in investing activities

7 &R
BAFEAEZR
BERMD

FEW & 5 5K R
BNRE ZeREMER
KB D (38 h0)
el E R RFE (M),
EEee

e

BHABEM
FE B 5 ER
H & 5RR K e AT B RRL

FERAME 8B L0

(AR) /REKGEXKZ
BE

ENFECEMEH
BRE(ER)EBFEH
F R

BB FE

B E

(AR) /REREETHZ
REF8

REEH
BEME BENRB2HRK
HEME HERRELZ
P& 30IA

BEEREEZMNR

ARREED2REFE
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Note
ok3

2024 2023
=®F-ME —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
1,640 6,798
9,303 6,071
5,496 23,912
3,550 (19,146)
(13,339) 40,656
1,261 7,003

= (110)
(30,732) (11,082)
806 =
(14,979) 33,963
(4,469) (7,714)
409 (886)
13,109 15,390
380 375
(5,550) 41,128
(5,682) (3,032)
43 189

= (15,000)
(5,639) (17,843)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Il/j_\ Iﬁrﬁ/)lbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2024
HE-_Z-_MF=A=+—RHILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AETE7)

Financing activities

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests

Proceed from interest-bearing
borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange
rate change

Cash and cash equivalents at the end RELKZHERBREZEY

of the year

The notes on pages 134 to 256 form part of the consolidated

financial statements.

— 85

2024 2023
—E-E —E =4
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
k23 FET FET
A& T E
BENHEEHS2EAE S 30 (8,201) (6,688)
ENHEERS 2 EEBD 30 (572) (399)
AT IR S 2 IR B
35 - (24,085)
MEEEZFEHRIE
30 929 1,329
HEMEEE
30 (1,329) =
EAFE 30 (184) =
ARBETB RS FE (9,357) (29,843)
ReRESSHEYRD FHE
(20,546) (6,558)
REDAZEERESEEY
416,179 432,054
Exgm oo
(5,368) (9,317)
390,265 416,179
F134EF256BE 2 MEFBRRAETHRERZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTZ25)

Company information

Sau San Tong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 21
May 2002 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 19
November 2003.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Room 23083,
23/F., China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road
Central, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

Material accounting policies
(@) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 March 2024 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). Material
accounting policies adopted by the Group are set out
below.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

DNREH

BEHEERBRAT ([ARAF])RZE
E-FRA-+HRERSHEE22
BERRE(—NAA—F%E0= 8RR
B EREREAMAIAEREER
AR MERNKBE-_ZEE=F+—A+A1
HEREEBEXSMBERAR ([HR
Frl) GEM ke

ARAZAMBPERERFTEL XM E
9 B R Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands& & /& ¥ IR
EEHER141E P REBE ANE23182303

BAETHBE
(a) HpIE

BHE-_Z-_NME=RA=+—HItF
BZHGRAUBRERBEARGRE
WEBAR (KB [AEE]) -

ZEREUBRREBEMEEAR
BEAMBREEL ([EETBRE
A HABREEESHAAE
(BEEeMAg] )EHRZRAEE
FIEREANBREER BEE
PRI ([BHBeER] ) RER)
REABRAGI 2 HBERERR -
REREAUBERENFTEB A
GEM#E# LR A ([GEM LT
Al )2 ER#EBEX - KREEFTEK
MZEBRSTBEHINMOT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 2(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current accounting period
reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements is the historical
cost basis except that the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL”) and investment property
are stated at their fair value (see notes 2(f) and 2(h)).

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 37.

2

B AR (%)

(a)

(b)

BHIRA(E)

EEGMASERMRAEER
SETHIE AR AR A IR R R A
ZETEBWBHRELNET R
MfsE2(c) iRt BB VIR B A % F iR
AEFHREMEARRESH ZE
K AR Z F 4R 6 M |RR TR iR
EREFHHEREEARZEN
R

REMBRRZEREE

REGRATHRREERZTEE
EEFESRAEE HZAFE
ABZ([BRAFEFABRE])Z
CRMEERKREVERNAEATE
HIER ( Rt a2 R2(h)) °

MUNTEBTEMBRELENZES
MHHmRTREEEE L HE &
R Mk FHE - e RERR
SXERRZEAUANREE AfFE-
WARRAXZ2H B - EMHat
LEBABREBREBEEREENR
BRATHEBEEZZHRAMASR
miEh E&ERBREEEINEM
XKRFESBHZEERAGERE
BEEHHE 2 EZE -BR&ERA
HZEMET TR -

et REABRREFERT -HE
SHERTERTER &% R AIRE
I IR R A HEFT R ER
BRBERAR IRETZHER
H1& B HER -

EEERERYHSAVBERRABE
AFEZ BBV EREERNFIEDL
ZHE ARG THAREZZEE
ORI FE375m il ©

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

135



136

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AFT251)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies

(i) New and amended HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued the following new and
amended HKFRSs that are first effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2023
for the preparation of the consolidated financial

statements:

HKFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

Amendments to “Disclosure of Accounting
HKAS 1 and Policies”

HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to “Definition of Accounting
HKAS 8 Estimates”

Amendments to “Deferred Tax related to
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities

arising from a Single
Transaction”
Amendments to “International Tax Reform —
HKAS 12 Pillar Two Model Rules”

Except as described below, the application of
the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

()

New and amended HKFRSs (Continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period (see note 38).

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The amendments require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information and
provide guidance on applying the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosure.
The Group has revisited the accounting policy
information it has been disclosing and considered
it is consistent with the amendments.

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS 8
“Definition of Accounting Estimates”

The amendments provide further guidance on
the distinction between changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates.
The amendments do not have a material impact
on these consolidated financial statements as the
Group’s approach in distinguishing changes in
accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates is consistent with the amendments.

2

BEAEBUR (#)
(c) BEHBMEZBE (&)
() HATREEITEEHNBHE

ER (%)

NEFIL REBEMPRARE T
HART i R A S BT AT E Bl s 22
2 (23 KM538) -

B EE G ERE 1B REE
BB & ER BB F2HE
K[ B R RE ] 2 E

ZEEFBRLERTEERS
AARERER UREEUEHD
ARG BREREERME
Sle AEBEEEHMEREAK
BNEBRER AARE
BZER] — e

B EE &5t ERIESTE (1£5T
) [EFt At aESE] 2 FE

ZEBF e BRRESHESG
FHEET 2B 2 HR AR —
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BREH LG AT EBHNT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

New and amended HKFRSs (Continued)

Impact on application of Amendments to HKAS
12 “Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction”

The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24
of HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

()  the Group has applied the new accounting
policy retrospectively to leasing transactions
that occurred on or after 1 April 2022; and

(i) the Group also, as at 1 April 2022,
recognised a deferred tax asset (to the
extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be
utilised) and a deferred tax liability for all
deductible and taxable temporary difference
associated with right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities.

The application of the amendments has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance, except that the Group discloses
the related deferred tax assets of HK$1,213,000
and deferred tax liabilities of HK$1,213,000 on a
gross basis as at 1 April 2022 in note 25(b) but it
had no impact on the accumulated losses as at
the earliest period presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ETTE5)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(ii)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism

As disclosed in note 26, in June 2022 the Hong
Kong SAR Government (the “Government”)
gazetted the Hong Kong Employment and
Retirement Schemes Legislation (Offsetting
Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance 2022 (the
“Amendment Ordinance”), which will come into
effect from 1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
Once the Amendment Ordinance takes effect, an
employer can no longer use any of the accrued
benefits derived from its mandatory contributions
to mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme
to reduce the long service payment (“LSP”)
in respect of an employee’s service from the
Transition Date (the abolition of the “offsetting
mechanism”). In addition, the LSP in respect
of the service before the Transition Date will be
calculated based on the employee’s monthly
salary immediately before the Transition Date and
the years of service up to that date.

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong” that
provides accounting guidance relating to the
offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the
mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates
that entities may account for the accrued benefits
derived from mandatory MPF contributions that
are expected to be used to reduce the LSP
payable to an employee as deemed contributions
by that employee towards the LSP.

BEARETEHEK 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=Ry e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETE5)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(i)

New HKICPA guidance on the accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP
offsetting mechanism (Continued)

However, applying this approach, upon the
enactment of the Amendment Ordinance in
June 2022, it is no longer permissible to apply
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of
HKAS 19 that previously allowed such deemed
contributions to be recognised as reduction of
service cost (negative service cost) in the period
the contributions were made; instead these
deemed contributions should be attributed to
periods of service in the same manner as the
gross LSP benefit.

To better reflect the substance of the abolition
of the offsetting mechanism, the Group has
changed its accounting policy in connection
with its LSP liability and has applied the above
HKICPA guidance. The cessation of applying
the practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of
HKAS 19 in conjunction with the enactment of
the Amendment Ordinance resulted in a catch-
up profit or loss adjustment in June 2022 for the
service cost up to that date. Since the amount
of the catch-up profit or loss adjustment was
not material, the Group did not restate the
comparative figures in the consolidated financial
statements.

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has

rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The financial statements of

subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial

statements from the date that control commences until

the date that control ceases.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

BAEBR (&)
(c) BHBEZ2® (&)

(d)

(i) BEETNAEREEER
E-REBELHHPEHHET

HERMIIES ()
R RZT = ZF XA

Pl ERiE BRI TTET B
AHFERAEESENF19
SREFENBL)BRHWERER XA
B S5 AT /2 3 B B AR (E (L 3RS 7
R 0 AR 75 B A EILR
(BRBERA) Rz ZFR
1 H R P8 DA B2 48 = B 2 1 A 42
R 77 = 57 B X BR A% HA ] -

B E R EUE R # S
NWEEYE AEBEDZERHE
FEERR:AENGFTHE
WYEEALMRBEBESEHMA
Sl BEEE IR B
RIFERERE S ERFE195%
EORMBEMERERE R E &
BN T _FNREHEEZ
HE RGN ETTE M IE 2
B-HRBPEZAENSHE
TEX RNEBWREINNIGE
MBHMERPOLBRET-

MEARRFERES

MEBARRASEEZER ZEE- 1
AEBEBHUERZ2EMEARS
ERESAZELNK TEBEHE
RBZENMBRENIFEZTERE
AIAEEZEHZER -MBRAMN
MBHmERBESRIG 2B ESZE
BRIz AIEFFABRAMBHRE -

Bk



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any
unrealised income and expenses (except for foreign
currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)).

Goodwill
Goodwill arising on acquisition of businesses is

measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2(k)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVPL are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investment and are initially stated at fair value while
transaction costs are recognised directly in profit or
loss. The explanation of how the Group determines the
fair value of financial assets is set out in note 29(f).

Changes in the fair value of the financial assets at
FVPL are subsequently recognised in profit or loss
if the investments do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (recycling).

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of property, plant and equipment (including
interest in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest
(see note 2(j))) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(Kk)(ii)).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual values, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives, and is generally
recognised in profit or loss. The estimated annual rates
for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Land and buildings Over the unexpired

term of lease
10.0% - 33.3%
10.0% — 33.3%
10.0% - 33.3%

Machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Office and computer
equipment

20.0% or over the
remaining terms of leases
(whichever is shorter)

20.0% - 33.3%

LLeasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
adjusted if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(h)

0]

Investment property

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently at fair value with changes therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted
for as described in note 2(v)(vii).

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. This is the case
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer
has both the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the economic
benefits from that use.

(i) As alessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single
lease component for all leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

N

(ABTZ25)

2

| =7

B

U 75 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

)]

Leased assets (Continued)

(i) As alessee (Continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for leases that have a short lease
term of 12 months or less.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is recognised
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability, and are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A% 251)
2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EBEXRESTEHEm®
() Leased assets (Continued) () HEEBEE(F

(i) EBEHBEA(E)

(i) As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(k)(ii)) except for the right-of-
use assets that meet the definition of investment
property are carried at fair value in accordance
with note 2(h). Depreciation is calculated to
write off the cost of right-of-use assets using the
straight line method over the lease term or where
it was likely the Group would obtain ownership
of the assets, the life of the assets, as set out in
note 2(g).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Group changes its assessment of whether it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or
is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A7 231)
2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EBEXRETEE®
() Leased assets (Continued) () HEBE(£)

(i) As alessee (Continued) (i) ERBERBEA(E)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there WHESNBEEEY AMEE

is a lease modification, which means a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract, if such modification is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case, the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification.
The only exceptions are rent concessions
that occurred as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions set
out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In
such cases, the Group has taken advantage of
the practical expedient not to assess whether
the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit or loss
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting period.

As a lessor

The Group determines at lease inception whether
each lease is a finance lease or an operating
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying
assets to the lessee. Otherwise, the lease is
classified as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECL”s) on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost (including
trade and other receivables, loans and interest
receivables, amount due from a related party and
cash and cash equivalents).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Generally, credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls
between the contractual and expected amounts,
discounted at the original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
which result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of these financial assets.

For all other financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial asset since initial recognition, in
which case the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. The 12-month
ECLs are losses that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the
end of the reporting period or a shorter period if
the expected life of the instrument is less than 12
months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining assessing whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when measuring ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment, that includes forward-
looking information. The Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when the debtor is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held).

ECLs are remeasured at the end of each reporting
period to reflect changes in the financial asset’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in
the ECL amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial assets with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTZ275)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k) Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Credited-impaired financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is credit-
impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
being more than 90 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

- it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for
a security because of financial difficulties of
the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off to the extent that there is no realistic
prospect of recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the debtor
does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial assets
(Continued)

Write-off policy (Continued)

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (other than investment property) to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or cash-generating units (“CGU”s).
Goodwill arising from a business combination is
allocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is
the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal. Value in use based on the
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU,
and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the resulting
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Loans and interest receivables

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers
in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
loans receivable is expected in one year or less, they
are classified as current assets, or if not, they are
presented as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(m) Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans
granted to borrowers in the ordinary course of
business.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for credit losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

EXETBE®

(m EBRERRFE (&)

EURNEANAEEBREPRT
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e E R R ENF AR FERER
H & BB ROL IR 8 R AR
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(n) Trade and other receivables (n) EHREZREBERHMERKE
A receivable is recognised when the Group has an BRFERAEERFWRRKEZ
unconditional right to receive consideration and only EmAAHENRER AN
the passage of time is required before payment of that REFEFTREKER-
consideration is due.
Receivables that do not contain a significant financing TEEERNMEMANKI DB EIK
component are initially measured at their transaction REVFREXGERGTZ A
price and are subsequently stated at amortised cost, % BIE A ERA R EZE KR
including an allowance for ECLs (see note 2(k)(i)). NE(PREHEEEBBERERB)

(RWE2K)3)) °
(0) Cash and cash equivalents (o) BEREEZEY

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECLs (see note

2(K) (@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(p)

(a)

()

(s)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2(v)). A
contract liability is also recognised if the Group
has unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable is
also recognised (see note 2(n)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in profit and
loss, which are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

N

=1

B

W

%5 R 2 M AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(s)

(i)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(i)  Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme in Hong Kong and defined contribution
government pension schemes in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC").

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as

incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the
retirement benefit scheme organised by the
government in the PRC. The Group is required
to contribute, based on a certain percentage of
payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. Contributions to this retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred except to the extent that they are
included in the cost of inventories sold at the end

of the reporting period.

The Group has the defined benefit plans in
relation to LSP under the Hong Kong Employment

Ordinance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A% 251)
2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EBEXRESTEHEm®
(s) Employee benefits (Continued) (s) EERAN(E

(ii) Defined benefit plan obligations (Continued) (i) REEFEFGEEZE (&)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods and discounting that amount. The
estimated amount of future benefit is determined
after deducting the negative service cost
arising from the accrued benefits derived from
the Group’s MPF contributions that have been
vested with employees, which are deemed to be
contributions from the relevant employees.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is
performed by the management. Net interest
expense for the period is determined by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the
reporting period to the then net defined benefit
liability, taking into account any changes in the
net defined benefit liability during the period. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or
loss.

Share-based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-
based payments granted to employees is
measured using the binomial lattice model. The
amount is generally recognised as an expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the vesting period of the awards. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the number of awards for which the related
service conditions are expected to be met, such
that the amount ultimately recognised is based
on the number of awards that meet the related
service conditions at the vesting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

N

2

=1

B

U 75 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

Material accounting policies (Continued)

®)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. It
is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income (“OCI”).

Current tax comprises the estimated tax payable or
receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year
and any adjustments to the tax payable or receivable
in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax
amount expected to be paid or received that reflects
any uncertainty related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Current tax also includes
any tax arising from dividends.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for:

- temporary differences on the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not
a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences;

- temporary differences related to investment
in subsidiaries to the extent that the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that they
will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial
recognition of goodwill

The Group recognised deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities separately in relation to its lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

N
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

®)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined
based on the reversal of relevant taxable temporary
differences. If the amount of taxable temporary
differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred
tax asset in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted
for reversals of existing temporary differences, are
considered, based on the business plans for individual
subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
the related tax benefit will be realised; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of future taxable
profits improves.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with note 2(h), the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at
their carrying value at the end of the reporting period,
unless the property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the property over time, rather than through sale. In all
other cases, the measurement of deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if
certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AN
A

BA RS SRR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods and provision of services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other
income recognition policies are as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions
and recognises revenue on a gross basis, including
the sale of goods that are sourced externally. In
determining whether the Group acts as a principal or
as an agent, it considers whether it obtains control of
the products or services before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the Group’s ability
to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the
remaining benefits from the products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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U e

N

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(v)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product

or a service is transferred to the customer at the

amount of promised consideration to which the Group

is expected to be entitled, excluding those amounts

collected on behalf of third parties such as value

added tax or other sales taxes. Revenue is also after

deduction of any trade discounts.

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from distribution sale of cosmetic and
skin care products and the sale of health, beauty
and related products are recognised at a point in
time when the customer takes possession of and
accepts the products.

Provision of beauty and slimming services

Revenue from provision of beauty and slimming
services is recognised over time when the
services have been rendered to customers.

Prepaid beauty services not yet rendered, which
are non-refundable, are deferred and reported as
contract liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position. Customers who may not
exercise all the contractual rights of the prepaid
packages upon expiry of service period, and such
unutilised portion are fully recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTZ25)

2 Material accounting policies (Continued)

(v) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(iii)  Franchise income

Initial franchise income is recognised over
time upon the grant of rights, completion of
the designated phases of the franchise set-
up and transfer of know-how to the franchisee
in accordance with the terms stated in the
franchise agreement. Recurring franchise income
is recognised on a pre-determined amount in
accordance with the terms as stated in the
franchise agreements.

Revenue from other sources and other income

(iv)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset.

In calculating interest income, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the asset is not
credit-impaired). However, for financial assets
that have become credit-impaired subsequent to
initial recognition, interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset
is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)
2 Material accounting policies (Continued) 2 EBEXRESTEHEm®
(v) Revenue and other income (Continued) (v) WmRHEMYA(E)

Revenue from other sources and other income BMFE RN REMPA (&)

(Continued)

(v)  Dividend income V) REWKA
Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss AR B AP 2N & B I ER 3R I8 2
on the date on which the Group’s right to receive BEFELE BN BRPER -
payment is established.

(vi)  Government grants Vi) BRI B
Government grants are recognised in the BT BN E B RBWEZE
consolidated statement of financial position WP MASEFETZER
initially when there is reasonable assurance that Z M IR R R AR E
they will be received and that the Group will MHERARPER - FHELRSE
comply with the conditions attaching to them. EfEERX cZEMBINE
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses ERYAPEEFEERER
incurred are recognised as other revenue in profit FHERBEMEE HEASE
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods EEEKRA 2 ZEMAIEZ
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that BEZREEEFROR BEER
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset MREZAE 2P E A F R EIR
are deducted from the carrying amount of the MERIX2AARBRFER
asset and consequently are effectively recognised wR e
in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.

(vii) Rental income from operating leases Vi) AEEHEZHZHA
Rental income from operating leases is REKEHREZHESBARME
recognised profit or loss on the straight-line EHRNNERERR BB -
basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives HERBRHEERNEREM
granted are recognised in profit or loss as an SWAH—BrNEBEEF®E
integral part of the total rental income, over the o

term of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

(x)

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the respective functional currencies of group
companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations,
including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
acquisition, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates at the end of the reporting period.
The income and expenses of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates at the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in the exchange reserve, except to
the extent that the translation difference is allocated to
NCI.

Asset acquisition

Group of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
assessed to determine if they are business or asset
acquisitions. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group chooses to apply a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset
or group of similar identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

2

Material accounting policies (Continued)

(x)

(y)

Asset acquisition (Continued)

Where a group of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed do not constitute a business, the overall
acquisition cost is allocated to the individual
identifiable assets and liabilities based on their relative
fair values at the date of acquisition. An exception
is when the sum of the individual fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities differs from the overall
acquisition cost. In such case, any identifiable assets
and liabilities that are initially measured at an amount
other than cost in accordance with the Group’s policies
are measured accordingly, and the residual acquisition
cost is allocated to the remaining identifiable assets
and liabilities based on their relative fair values at the
date of acquisition.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the distribution sale
of cosmetic and skin care products, provision of beauty
and slimming services, provision of franchise services,
sale of health, beauty and related products, investments in
securities and provision of money lending business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

3 Revenue (Continuead)

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods supplied
to customers, net of discounts, returns, value added tax
or other sales taxes; service income from provision of
beauty and slimming services, net of discounts; franchise
income; and interest income earned from the money lending
business. The amount of each significant category of
revenue recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:

Wi (#)

WaEREFPMME®REmBETN R
B HEVNIKEMHEEN 2 EREE KA
REEXBTNEBRE R E T REHK
A INBEAEBRWA AR RE X R
ZHRBWA-FR RNRDERZEEE
W BRI SR

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Revenue within the scope of ERM K REERE155
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts [BEFElWz @#ERZ
with Customers” W &=
Distribution sale of cosmetic and 73 8 38 & b A B 7 55 B oo
skin care products 1,015,567 1,172,999
Provision of beauty and slimming services REER R ERS 57,465 48,939
Provision of franchise services RIEMBEIERD - 33
Sale of health, beauty and related products 5% R & - EA R AR E @ 6,840 4,562
1,079,872 1,226,533
Revenue from other sources H fth 5 F K 2=
Interest income from money lending business J{& % # 2 F B W A 8,094 11,164
Fair value gain on financial assets at FVPL, 22X F{ET ABH 2 £ #t
net BEZATFEVRFAE 3,680 17,031
Realised gain/(loss) on financial assets BAFEFABE SR
at FVPL, net BEZDER K
(E1R) F8E 1,089 (23,180)
12,863 5,015
1,092,735 1,231,548

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
121 of HKFRS 15 to its revenue contracts such that the
above information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it satisfies
the remaining performance obligations under those revenue
contracts that had an original expected duration of one year
or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AAT25)

3 Revenue (Continued) 3 Wz e
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers ERAREFERZHEETMSE S 2R
by the timing of revenue recognition and by geographic F&EHOWESE 25 B R M sE10(a) K% 10(b)
markets is disclosed in notes 10(a) and 10(b) respectively. = o

4 Other revenue and other gains or losses 4 HtamRkHEMWmEE

2024 2023
—E-omE —ZE=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Other revenue H U 28
Bank interest income RITF B U A 5,645 2,261
Other interest income b A 2 A 1,397 -
COVID-19-related rent concession 201973 ik i 5 fm 48 8
HEeR% - 586
Government grants (Note) BT L (fa2) 277 3,661
Dividend income from listed equity securities RN & 5 2 I B WA 380 375
Rental income Ha WA 202 280
Others HAh 262 375
8,163 7,538
Other gains or losses HihW =& 8
Cumulative exchange gain reclassified from  15UsH s it — REIB B A &1 & #%
equity to profit or loss upon deregistration  EZEFHFH HEZEHEZ
of a subsidiary RETIE H W = 423
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets ERAFEFAERZSHM
at FVPL EEZRAFERE
(E518) 1,174 (1,080)
Gain on early termination of a lease REKRTHEEZ WS 27 =
(Loss)/gain disposal of property, plant and ~ HEW¥ - #EELREZ
equipment, net (E518) WS T8 (88) 158
Reversal of impairment loss on loans and W E R & F SR E
interest receivables 518 # Bl - 5,384
1,113 4,885
Note: Wit
Included in the government grants received for both years were funds RZMEFE I BREFEERAEEZEHRR
and subsidies from local government authorities for the Group’s XBERDREZESRHMGTACKIBITHEL-
development and business activities. There are no unfulfilled conditions ﬂé%&%%%ﬁﬂﬁiﬁ?ﬁiW%ﬂigﬁiﬂ%#&fﬁ\fﬁﬁiﬁ$

and other contingencies attached to the receipts of those subsidies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=Ry e

(Expressed in
(AT 25)

Hong Kong dollars)

5 Loss before taxation

Loss before taxation is arrived after charging/(crediting):

5 KRBAIEE

BREABEE R (GFA) THSE

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiET
(a) Finance costs: (a) ®WERZ :
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZHE 572 399
Interest on borrowings BRZFE 237 27
809 426
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ (b) BEINK® (BREEE
remuneration (note 7)): e (HE7))
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e EMREMER 48,009 49,716
Contributions to defined contribution AERFEKRETE 2
retirement plans R 7,802 8,260
Long service payments recognised in A TERAFTEERL
respect of defined benefit plans REIRE & 806 =
56,617 57,976
(c) Other items: (c) HfmEAR:
Cost of inventories sold and services EEFERDRERE
provided* o %N 988,167 1,132,424
Auditors’ remuneration ZE R BN & 1,300 1,300
Depreciation of: E:
— property, plant and equipment — - EEREE 8,615 8,892
— right-of-use assets —FHAREE 8,204 7,336
Impairment losses/(reversal of WEEE CREERE
impairment losses) on: #mE) -
— trade receivables —BWE Z A 1,960 2,103
— other receivables — H i FE Y FR IR 1,954 1,945
— loans and interest receivables, net —EWREFREHE
et 8,581 (5,384)
— goodwill A 1,450 976
- intangible asset —EBREE - 129
Write-off of trade receivables 8 PR ICE 5 5RI8 1 =
Write-off of other receivables 3 H A & W 5K IR 6,824 496
Expenses relating to short-term leases EHEEBAE AX 3,844 3,103
* Cost of inventories sold and services provided includes * BEEGEREREBRBEZEKABIEEBI

HK$122,000 (2023: HK$138,000) relating to depreciation, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately above.

€ 7122,000 7T (=& — =4 : 138,000
BIL)  ZEBEMFA LB HE 2 AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss

REEBERAZMER

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) HEeBmXRAZBE
loss
2024 2023
—E_ME —_E =
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax E#HH1E -&FEF 5B
Provision for the year (note 25(a)) FNEHE (M iF250)) - 188
Under/(over) provision in respect of BEFERERIR,
prior years (HRREE ) 83 (20)
Current tax - PRC Enterprise EHHRE-FECERSH
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 25(a)) FNEHE (M iF250)) 3,270 7,745
Income tax expense FriS B X 3,353 7,918

()

Hong Kong Profits Tax

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made for the year ended 31 March 2024 as the
Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
Hong Kong have either no assessable profits for
the year or have sufficient tax losses brought
forward to set off against current year’s estimated
assessable profits for the year.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the year ended 31 March 2023 was calculated
at 8.25% of the first HK$2,000,000 estimated
assessable profit and 16.5% of the remaining
estimated assessable profit for the relevant years.

(i) BENEH

HE_Z-_NWF=HA=1+—8H
LEFE - WEREEFEHE
REHB DHRARAERRE
MR B A RRER
I R AR B S
BEBAEBEEAFTENMS
JE AR A g ) o

REE-_T-_=F=A=+—
BIEFE &EFNESHEBEED
% M B F € N & 2,000,000
T2 hET FEER Bl s 1 28.25%
R THIATERBEEFN 2
16.5%5T & °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PANE
:%T\D/

6

U 75 ¥R R B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

Income tax in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Continuead)

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are
subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
25% (2023: 25%) for the year.

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
derived since 1 January 2008 is subject to
withholding income tax at rates of 5% or 10%
upon the distribution of such profits to foreign
investors or companies incorporated in Hong
Kong or for other foreign investors, respectively.
Pursuant to the grandfathering arrangements
of the PRC tax law, dividends receivable by the
Group from the PRC subsidiaries in respect
of the undistributed profits derived prior to 31
December 2007 are exempt from the withholding
income tax.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, no deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised in respect
of tax that would be payable on the unremitted
profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the directors of the Company
is in a position to control the dividend policies of
the PRC subsidiaries and no distribution of such
profits is expected to be declared from the PRC
subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions
Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at

the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in
relevant countries.
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Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

6 HEEBRAZAEH @

(a)

HEBmRAZBE (&)
(i) HELEFEH

(iii)

R B MRS B ARZEA
BRAFERBECEMRB mf
05% (ZE -~ =4 :25% )%
i o

BEABRBRE XREEBRF
BzMHERR ([HEKHER
Al)BZZEENF—H—H
BEEZBNERRIINEIZE
HREBBTMA L 2 AFS
E@%I&ﬁ%“ﬁ%%%ﬂ

2 Bl 5% 8510% 81 K 54 41
ﬁm% BoRBHRBEIBE 2
RRFERBH L A& E
F_EELFF+_A=+—H
A EE A 2 R 99 IR i 1) E Y AP
MEARZRERHBEHEF
o

F_NER-_F-_=fF=
T—B ARARAES
ZEHIP BN B AR ZREK
REFERTEMBLRRNAR
HRTEEIREBEMNDIK:
BUERTEMBEARE =T
TENF-A—HRBELZKE
o R A5 2 B TR e R A TR
EHIERE-

T*om %

=g

N

AMBHBEAZEEZEH

BN B R B 2 IR R A
RETZERE MR R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

6 Income tax in the consolidated statement 6

of profit or loss (Continuead)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and (b)

accounting loss at applicable tax rates

Loss before taxation

Notional tax on loss before taxation,
calculated at Hong Kong Profits
Tax rates of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of temporary differences not
recognised

Tax effect of unused tax losses not
recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
previously not recognised

Tax effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries in other jurisdictions

Under/(over) provision in respect of
prior years

Tax concession

Others

Income tax expense

B 3 B B 1R

BREBAEEcEERIE
REBFEHBE16.5%
ZEZ=F 116.5%)
irE
TR 2 RGETE
BARMBAZHIETE
ABREREZHEIHBEEE

AERARPARBABE
MBEE

BRABEARABRINABRZ
MG E

RE A BDERE R RO I 8 2 7
TRBRXZRBEE

BEFERETIR
(EBsEE)

BB ER

H At

P XX
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GEBERRAZIEBH &)

FFefmYXEREARENEZY
TEEZHER
2024 2023
—E-E —FT-=
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FETT
(11,038) (6,755)
(1,821) (1,115)
5,592 4,284
(8,269) (5,666)
523 732
6,561 7,187
(1,961) (1,439)
2,645 4,007
83 (20)
= (12)
= (45)
3,353 7,913
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V=N

e B ERRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

7 Directors’ and chief executive’s 7

remunerations

EEREEITHAR ZFM

(a) Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section (a) WEEABRAGAFEIMN)EK A
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part A (BEEEZEEFMTER) B G FE25
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about NGEM LT R B 58 2 & = H Bl a0
Benefits of Directors) Regulation and the GEM Listing ™
Rules are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and
Directors’ fees benefits in kind Discretionary bonuses  Retirement benefits Total
Eshe Fo RURENNE L BAREA @t
2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023
ZE-ME -“R-=F -“B-NE -R-=F -“B-NE -T--F “B-NE -—E--E “E-ME -Z-o=fF
HKS'000  HK$'000 — HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000 — HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
fEx  FErT  TEx AT TEx  FEr TExn  TET  FEL FEn
Executive directors HiEE
Mr. Mui Wai Sum BEREE - - 360 360 - - 38 18 398 378
Mr. Lei Nelson FRELE
(appointed on 8 July 2023)  (R=F-=%
tA=REE) - - 360 - - - 14 - 374 -
Mr. Chan Ka Kin BEREE
(resigned on 3 July 2023) (R=F==#%
+AZHEE) - - 90 360 - - 4 18 94 378
Non-executive director FHUTES
Mr. Takashi Togo RZTEAE

(retired on 22 September (R=F==F

2023) NAZ+ZHEF) 115 240 - - - - - - 115 240
Independent non-executive BIFH{TEES

directors
Ms. Tsang Tsz Nok, Aleen ~ ElE &+

(appointed on 1 December ~ (R=-ZF-—%

2022) +ZA-REZE) 120 40 - = - = - = 120 40
Mr. Lau Wai Leung, Alfred Bl %4 120 120 - = - = - = 120 120
Mr. Au Siu Lun ks 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
Ms. Chiu Kam Hing, Kathy ~ #& 8%+

(resigned on 1 December (R=F=ZF

2022) t=A—-AEH) - 80 - - - - - - - 80

475 600 810 720 - - 56 36 1,341 1,356

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no NEBE-—_E-—NMER-—_E-_=—F=

directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments. B=+—HBItEERN HESER

No emoluments were paid by the Group to the GHEBEESHREMBMSE - ANEB T

directors and chief operating decision maker as an MEEERTELERE A LAE

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as A - e B0 A B & i A AN &
compensation for loss of office. B> S Rhai BB (e o

(b)  The remuneration of the chief executive officer, Ms. b) TETBABBIEELTZHMRY

Kwan Fei Ying, is disclosed in note 33(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

8 Individuals with highest emoluments 8 BmE¥FAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, none
of the five highest emoluments are directors (2023: none)
whose emolument is disclosed in note 7(a). The aggregate

of the emoluments in respect of these five (2023: five)

individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments
Retirement benefits

The emoluments of the five (2023: five) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

HKS$Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000

HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000

hEs&RFALT BETHALAME
HBERME7@ERENES (T =F:
B) o AZ(ZE-_=ZF HAA)ALZ

B eaEmT

2024 0023

—B-mE  C-Fo=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

Fi# % Fh7

o MEMRE 71095 ers
R s 57
7,320 7709

AEZ(ZE_=ZF AA)&RaHALTZ

B < B8 5 T 51 8 [

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-=F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AZ AZ

Z %7 %1,000,000/%8 7T 3 2
1,000,001 L&

1,500,000/ 7T 1 2
1,500,001 L&

2,000,0007% 7T - -
2,000,001 T2

2,500,0007% 7T - -
2,500,001 TE

3,000,000/% 7T - -
3,000,0018 T &

3,500,0007% 7T - -
3,500,001 8 T &

4,000,0007% 7T 1 1

5 5

During the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the individuals
with highest emoluments of the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss

of office.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AT 25)
9 Loss per share 9 SRE#E
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss BEREREEZFEA EEEE’\\$“ AR
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$14,297,000 ANE 114,297,000 0 (ZE =4
(2023: HK$13,933,000) and the weighted average of 13,933,000/ 70 ) R B BT L @AR s F
78,842,000 ordinary shares (2023: 77,470,000 ordinary 9 8078,842,000 E BB (Z T == F:
shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows: 77,470,000%%@%)%:@@? :
2024 2023
—E-EF —EF-=
‘000 ‘000
Fi Fhg
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of ~ RFEH B 17 L @K
the year 78,842 75,049
Issue of shares (note 28(a)(ii)) TR (B aE28(a)(i)) - 2,421
Weighted average number of ordinary shares % i J& il ¥ 5 & 78,842 77,470
The assumed exercise of the outstanding share options for BEREBEE_T-_NMFR T -_=F=
the years ended 31 March 2024 and 2023 have anti-dilutive RAR=+—BLFETERTEZ ERE
effect and have therefore been excluded from the above BEBREERE ARG A L5t

sty

calculation. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

10 Segment reporting

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by the directors that are used to
make strategic decisions. The directors review the Group’s
financial information mainly from business lines prospective.
Accordingly, the Group’s operating segments are:

()  Distribution sale of cosmetic and skin care products
(i) Provision of beauty and slimming services

(i)  Franchise operations (including sale of health, beauty
and related products to franchised shops)

(iv) Sale of health, beauty and related products
(v) Investments in securities
(vi)  Money lending

The directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of reportable segment
results. This measurement basis excludes certain
other revenue, other gains or losses, finance costs and
unallocated expenses.

Segment assets mainly exclude certain property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment property, current
tax recoverable and other assets that are managed on a
central basis. Segment liabilities mainly exclude current tax
payable and other liabilities that are managed on a central
basis.

10

i)

okk

Bk &

EEECBEBEESENANEL REE
RELBREEELEDHL - EFETENRE
BRAEEMNASEZHBER At
REBZIEEDI A

() EEEMNEEER

(i) REXBTREBRS

(i) MBEEEK (BERMNEEES
HEERE EARBEER)

(iv) #HERRE XBREHEER
v BHERE
(vi) E

EERNE2RDAXEEEEFRLELED
MRE-FEEETBEETHEMEK
moHlamskER BmEXA KRS
P

DHMEETETERBETYE KEER
B ERAREE REVE YA KM
MAREMERERZEE- DR BRET
ETERENERHBAREMEHERE
ZBafE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities

Disaggregated by timing of
revenue recognition

A point in time

Over time

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Impairment losses/(reversal of
impairment losses) on:
- trade receivables, net
- other receivables, net
- loans and interest receivables
- goodwill
Depreciation of:
- property, plant and equipment
- right-of-use assets
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on borrowings
Bank interest income
Other interest income

ERAURHEYD

RE-BREH
BERR

PER: w6

PEX: VEE 3

APERTRX

= OB
D
= B
B S

BRAESR
SRR

FRFE

REBR/ (REFARE)

-EME AR
-EfENFERE
“ERER RS
-HE
nE:
REN EVET
-FRELE
HEABZHE
BEZHE
FAMEMA
b SHA

10 ZHEBERE ()
(@ 2HEE - BEERES
2024
b L2
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services  operations products in securities lending Total
AHHE HERR
fREE REXER nE&%E E3
Efm SRRY % RBER BERE BE At
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE7 FET FE7 FE7 FET FE7 TE7
1,015,567 - - 6,840 1,089 - 1,023,496
- 57,465 - - 3,680 8,094 69,239
1,015,567 57,465 - 6,840 4,769 8,094 1,092,735
10,556 (26,398) 6,960 1,971 7,139 (299) (71)
(10,158)
(10,229)
(809)
(11,038)
(3,353)
(14,391)
1,912 50 - 2 - - 1,960
- 1,752 - - 202 - 1,954
- - - - - 8,581 8,581
- 1,450 - - - - 1,450
949 4,313 - - 5 - 5,267
1,863 6,341 - - - - 8,204
233 339 - - - - 572
- - - - 237 - 237
(903) (28) - 2 (1,712) (3,000) (5,645)
- - - - (1,397) - (1,397)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Disaggregated by timing of
revenue recognition

A point in time

Over time

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment results

Unallocated corporate expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Impairment losses/(reversal of
impairment losses) on:
- trade receivables
- other receivables
-loans and interest receivables,
net
- intangible asset
- goodwill
Depreciation of:
- property, plant and equipment
- right-of-use assets
Interest on lease liabilities
Interest on borrowings
Bank interest income

BRAURREYD

RE-KEE
BEER

BEER
BERL

BRAEE
FERAX

ERER

REBE/ (REERER):

-EREAHTE
-EfhERFE
-~BRERRNSFE

-EWEE
-HE
g
NER 6
~-fEREEE
BEBELFE
BEZHE
FAFBBRA

10 ZEE|E (2
(a PHEBE - BEEREE(F)
2023
—E-=F
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care  and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services operations products  in securities lending Total
AEHE HERE
tHREE REXBR MBRE EINY
Em ERRB % HEER E5RE e @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET T FET FAT TET FET FAT
1,172,999 - - 4,562 (23,180) - 1,154,381
- 48,939 33 - 17,031 11,164 77,167
1,172,999 48,939 33 4,562 (6,149) 11,164 1,231,548
19,129 (22,280) (26) 521 (6,329) 10,926 1,941
(8,270)
(6,329)
(426)
(6,755)
(7,913
(14,668)
1,981 60 - 62 - - 2,103
- 1,945 - - - - 1,945
- - - - - (5,384) (5,384)
- 129 - - - - 129
- 976 - - - - 976
1,572 3,853 - - 30 44 5,499
1,824 5,512 - - - - 7,336
88 31 - - - - 399
- - - - 27 - 27
(1,002 (26) - - (652) (581) (2,261)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

10 Segment reporting (Continued) 10 2B
(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (@) PBEB - BERAEEB(£Z)
2024
“EomE
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money

products services  operations products in securities lending Total
AEHE HERR:
LHRER REXER mAEHE 23R

Em HRRY % HEER BERE nE &5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEx FEx TEx TEx FEx TEx TEx

Segment assets PHEE

- Property, plant and equipment ~ —#1% - & R RE 2,245 7,686 - - - - 9,931

- Right-of-use assets -RREEE 3,686 4,555 - - - - 8,241

- Intangible asset -BVEE - 14,871 - - - - 14,871

- Other assets -EMEE 148,116 71,739 14 2,502 277,287 202,019 707,677
Unallocated corporate assets KRARRAIEE 102,636
Total assets EERT 843,356
Segment liabilities APHAERE (57,155) (21,711) (3,514) (44) (1,570) (1,414) (85,408)
Unallocated corporate liabilitles ~ #AEAFEE (1,941)
Total liabilities RERE (87,349)
Additions to segment AHERBDEERE

non-current assets 325 5,064 - - - - 5,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets
- Property, plant and equipment
- Right-of-use assets
- Intangible asset
- Other assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

Additions to segment
non-current assets

NHEE
-N% BERRE
-EREEE
-BNAE
-EfAE
APERFAE

N
>
Dk

BERDEERE

10 2B EE (%)
(@ oWEE -BEEREME(F)
2023
—E-=E
Distribution Sale of
sale of Provision health,
cosmetic of beauty beauty and
and skin care  and slimming Franchise related  Investments Money
products services operations products i securities lending Total
DEHE HERR:
tHRkEE REXAR nBsfE  FARER
Em LI 2% Em EHRE M @t
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEr TET FET FEr TET FEr
3,070 6,935 - - 5 - 10,010
- 3,786 - - - - 3,786
- 14,871 - - - - 14,871
181,126 100,167 1,781 3,140 306,288 173,654 766,156
106,521
901,344
(88,916) (19,881) (12,786) (14) (1,917) (414) (123,928)
(1,710)
(125,638)
165 16,272 - - - 44 16,481
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

10 Segment reporting (Continued)
(b) Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers

and information regarding non-current assets by
geographical locations are as follows:

(b) b ER

AEEINEEFZ W B BER
BEEZEMBMEMLEDWT

2024
—E-MEF
The PRC Hong Kong Total
H B 5B mat
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Revenue from external SMNEEF 2 Wz
customers 1,015,567 77,168 1,092,735
Non-current assets ERBEE 5,930 139,301 145,231
2023
—E2-=F
The PRC Hong Kong Total
B H5B Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F#ET FET
Revenue from external SMNER&EF 2 Wz
customers 1,173,032 58,516 1,231,548
Non-current assets FEMBEE 3,070 142,386 145,456
() Major customers (c) XEEZEF

During the year ended 31 March 2024, none (2023: Nil)
of the customers contribute over 10% of the Group’s
revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

11 Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 April 2022

Exchange adjustments

Additions

Additions through asset acquisition
(note 36)

Disposals

At 31 March 2023

At 1 April 2023
Exchange adjustments
Additions

Disposals

At 31 March 2024

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2023

At 1 April 2023

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2024

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023

11 ME-BBERKRE

Office and
Land and Furniture computer Leasehold Motor
buildings Machinery  and fixtures equipment improvements vehicles Total
Hih R BAER HENE
TiRET BE BEEE ERE #8 "E o
HK8'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK8'000
FHET FET FET FEx Tz FET FET
2
RZZZZFWA—A 98,677 20,182 3,628 6,434 25,784 18,201 172,906
ERAE - - ) (63) (307) (756) (1,132)
RE = 1,019 8 98 1,774 133 3,032
BREERERE (HiH36)
5,200 - - - - - 5,200
ik - (93) (3,027) (4,641) - (162) (7,923)
RZEZ=§=fA=1-H 103,877 21,108 603 1,828 27,251 17,416 172,083
RZEZ=£MmA-A 103,877 21,108 603 1,828 27,251 17,416 172,083
EHAE - - @ (44) (219) (537) (804)
RE = 1,690 197 233 3,258 304 5,682
e - - (12) (40) (99) (311) (462)
RZZ-ME=A=1+-H 103,877 22,798 784 1,977 30,191 16,872 176,499
2B
R-B--£mA-A 17,313 12,680 3,494 6,092 23,540 13,660 76,779
EHAE - - 6) (50) (295) (424) (775)
FRRE 3,192 2,887 90 125 1,225 1,373 8,892
HERER = (93) (3,027) (4,638) = (134) (7,892)
RZEZ=§=fA=1-H 20,505 15,474 551 1,529 24,470 14,475 77,004
“ZZ-fMA-H 20,505 15,474 551 1,529 24,470 14,475 77,004
Em% - - @ (87) (219) (378) (638)
ERfE 3,244 2,683 66 133 1,573 916 8,615
HERER - - @ (37) (19) (279) (331)
RZZE-ME=A=1+-A 23,749 18,157 611 1,588 25,811 14,734 84,650
iEEfE
RZEZME=A=1—H 80,128 4,641 173 389 4,380 2,138 91,849
ZEZZf=A=1-H 83,372 5,634 52 299 2,781 2,941 95,079
The land and buildings are situated in Hong Kong under T REFUREBLRIEF AL
=)

medium-term leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

12 Right-of-use assets

12 EHAEEE

Cost

At 1 April 2022
Exchange adjustments
Disposals

Lease modification

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023

Exchange adjustments

Additions arising from entering into new lease
Adjustment on early termination of a lease
Lease modification

At 31 March 2024

Accumulated depreciation
At 1 April 2022

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year

Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023
Exchange adjustments

Charge for the year
Adjustment on early termination of a lease

At 31 March 2024

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2024

At 31 March 2023
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2%
RZE-_—_FMHA—AH
HE H A

HE

HEEN

R-TE-_=ZF=ZRF=+—HK
—EZ=FWH—H

ME A B

R HAOMEEZARE
REKRIEHEZAE
HEENR

R-_ZE-_NE=ZA=+—H

25 E
RZEZZFMHA—A
b i P
FANE
i R 7 [

RZEBE-_=F=A=+—HK
—E-=FMA—H

PE 5

FRIE
REKLTHEEZAE

R-ZE-_WF=A=+—H

BREE
R-ZE-_WF=A=+—H

RZZE-_=F=RA=+—8H

Leased
properties
HEWH
HK$'000
FHET

17,918
(576)
(176)

4,923

22,089
(61)
2,958
(2,958)
11,714

33,742

11,576
(433)
7,336
(176)

18,303
(20)
8,204
(986)

25,501

8,241

3,786




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

12 Right-of-use assets (Continued)

The Group has obtained the right to use certain leased
properties as its factory complex and office premises
through tenancy agreements. The leases run for a period of
2 to 3 years (2023: 2 to 4 years), at the end of which period
all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Amounts included in the consolidated statement of
cash flows comprise of cash outflows for leases of
HK$3,844,000 and HK$8,773,000 (2023: HK$3,103,000
and HK$7,087,000) in operating and financing activities
respectively.

13 Investment property

At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023,
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024

12 EREEE &)
AEBMEEBSEREREREERE
FTHEVEAEIMGAAERBAS
Mg - EREAWEIF (B ==

F2BAF) FEBRRRERHRELN

BE ZERETTEAILRENK-.

REAREREREN ZAREBBREL
ZhBmEEH2HAER SR L D 7
3,844,000/ T 8,773,000 7t (= &
— =% 13,103,000/ 7t 7,087,000/
JT) e

13 REWX

R-ZE-_—_FWHA—H"

HK$’000
FET
—E-_=F=ZA=+—H"
—E-=FFNA—HK
15,500

—E-_WNE=A=+—H

The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and are
held under a medium-term lease.

The fair value of the Group’s investment property is
measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into Level 2 fair value measurement within
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13
“Fair Value Measurement”.

REMELRER URBEPHEES
Ao

AEEBREMEZATFERZHRPREZ
KREEEREFE IHBEERBMBRSE
ERFISR R FEAEIMRAEZ=4
NFEBEANZE_RAFEAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTZ25)

13

Investment property (Continued)

Level 2 fair value measurement is those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices within Level 1, or significant
unobservable inputs within Level 3. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available. The fair
value of the Group’s investment property as at 31 March
2024 and 2023 has been arrived at on the basis of valuation
by Vincorn Consulting and Appraisal Limited (2023: CHFT
Advisory and Appraisal Ltd.), an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group, and
its fair value is determined using the market approach by
reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on
a price per square foot basis using market data which is
publicly available.

The Group leases out a property under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 2 years,
with an option to renew the lease after that date at which
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes
variable lease payments.

Minimum undiscounted lease payments under operating
leases in place as at 31 March 2024 and 2023 will be
receivable by the Group in future periods as follows:

15 R
1ERIE2F A

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 2 years
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Qg

REWE &)

FE_RAFEFTEHBABE (F—HA
ZHREBRIIN RBE=ZFAZERTITEHE
BASBBMEL T BREASIEAL
EMSHIBIE2E 2 ALK - AEER
BEMER_S_MER_T=_=F= A
T+—HAZAFEEREREASLE T E
BE B BRI EMER LT
REGEERAR (ZE =4  EHHKH
FEBRAR)FEZHETE MARQ
TEDE2ERAFATSMSEIBERE
NG FHRERERELEZ LB Y R H
HEBREBERAMBEETE -

AEBRBELEMELHE-BEYE VK
HOBER—EMF FIOAEROER
ZHARAEBEHNREY EEHEHNHE
EGR - FEEESERS EHEEN

=+
e

R_E-—_MER-_E-_=—F=A=+—
BRluMmEeHEE T o&ERTER
& 1 3R AT B AN £ B R oK Ak HA R Uk ER 40
T

2024 2023
—E-mF —E-=4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
420 =

245 =

665 =




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)
14 Intangible asset 14
Cost AR 2
At 1 April 2022 R-ZZE-_FIMA—
Additions NE
At 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and RZEZ=F=ZR=
31 March 2024 :E:ZEE)%—
—EZmOFE=HA=
Accumulated impairment ZiHRE
At 1 April 2022 NR-ZE-_—FmMWA—
Impairment loss TEE B
At 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 and RZEZ=F=R=
31 March 2024 :%:Zimﬂ—
ZEME=A=
Carrying amount: FREE:
At 31 March 2024 RZZ_HWHFE=H
At 31 March 2023 R_E_=%=A

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, the
management carried out an assessment of the recoverable
amount of the club membership. Based on their review,
no additional impairment loss (2023: impairment loss of
HK$129,000) was recognised during the year.

In assessing the useful life of club membership, the
management considered the Group has the contractual
right to control over the asset and legal rights with indefinite
period and therefore, the club membership has been
assessed as having an indefinite useful life.

BILEE
Club
membership
28
HK$ 000
FET
E| —
15,000
+—8-
B X
+—H 15,000
E] —
129
+—8-
B &
+—H 129
=+—H 14,871
=+—H 14,871
BHE_Z_MWWF K= =F = A

=t+—HIFE AEEJ"‘;TA & E AT e [l
TRETHE REEEBNIGE RF
NI EERBIBEER (T =5
B (B 85 18129,000/8 7T ) °

Z:Enﬂéimﬁﬁ?%fi/\‘\fﬁél’l—ﬁiﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁj
BEERRASEERENZEENS

WENMEERIDEEEN Hit SE@X

BREeeRRTRRAERACHFY-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

14 Intangible asset (Continuea)

The recoverable amount of the club membership is
estimated by reference to the current open market value
less cost of disposal as of the end of the reporting period.
The fair value measurement is categorised in level 2 fair
value hierarchy.

15 Goodwill

Goodwill is accounted for in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policies as set out in note 2(e). For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the

14

15

BVEE#)

BEXREERNTRELENESE
235 45 B 5K 40 3077 2% B 745 1 1B AL
R BB - AMN AT EHESEA
AT EERE -

=

I

BEERME2e)MBE 2 AEE S HE
AR-BBREANANS BHEEREXD
e T EEAKRBZOCBERSES

o0

Group’s cash-generating units (“CGU”s) identified according BA([HESELSEMN]) SEBI W
to country of operations and business segment as follows: ™~
2024 2023
—E-OF —E=F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHE T
Provision of beauty and slimming services — 1A N 482 AR 7S —
Hong Kong (“Unit A”) B ([BARAL) 14,138 15,588
Money lending business — MIEER —
Hong Kong (“Unit C”) A& (TERC]) 595 595
Multiple units without significant goodwill EEAMEBZEEMN
(“Others”) (TEM]) 37 37
14,770 16,220
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)
15 Goodwill (Continued) 15 @8 »®)
Unit A Unit B Unit C Others Total
BfA BB BHC Hitr @zt
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET FAT
Cost: BA
At 1 April 2022 RZZE-—_FMA—H 16,564 8,883 595 332 26,374
Exchange adjustments R - (650) - - (650)
At 31 March 2023 and RZT_=%F
1 April 2023 ZA=+-Bk
“E-=#WmA—AH 16,564 8,233 595 332 25,724
Exchange adjustments RS - (464) - - (464)
Write-off ki - (7,769) - - (7,769)
At 31 March 2024 RZEZMF
=A=t+—-H 16,564 - 595 332 17,491
Accumulated impairment: R5HE !
At 1 April 2022 RZZE-_—FMA—H S 8,883 - 295 9,178
Exchange adjustments B RE - (650) - = (650)
Impairment loss REEE 976 - - - 976
At 31 March 2023 and I —
1 April 2023 ZA=+-Ak
“E-=FMA—H 976 8,233 - 295 9,504
Exchange adjustments R - (464) - = (464)
Write-off isH - (7,769) - - (7,769)
Impairment loss MEEE 1,450 = = = 1,450
At 31 March 2024 RZEZMF
=A=t+—H 2,426 - - 295 2,721
Carrying amount: REME
At 31 March 2024 RZT_WF
=A=+—H 14,138 - 595 37 14,770
At 31 March 2023 RZE_=%
=A=+—H 15,588 - 595 37 16,220
The directors have reviewed the carrying amount of goodwill EFCREBB S EREIH [EER
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”. Bl ZHEEREME:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

15

16

Goodwill (Continued)
Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated
weighted average growth rate of 1.0% (2023: 2.0%). This
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth
rates for the market in which Unit A operates. The cash
flows are discounted using a discount rate of 16.5% (2023:
16.5%). The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to Unit A. Other key assumption for
the value-in-use calculation relates to the estimation of
cash inflows/outflows which included budgeted sales and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the Unit A’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development including the fluctuation in beauty
and slimming service business in the current economic
environment in Hong Kong.

The impairment testing resulted in an impairment of
HK$1,450,000 (2023: HK$976,000) recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 March 2024. The impairment arose in view of the
deterioration in revenue level and operating results of the
CGU in the current year.

Inventories

Inventories in the consolidated statement of

(a)

financial position comprise:

B4R ah

Merchandise

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

15

16

(%)

EA

BUAZ KRB BEIRFEAEBENE A
BT - WitE8rrKARRBREEED &
B2 AFHYBBREELE 2R RETE
Al AEHLE 2 REREFE A MG MiE
FHEREI.0% (ZTEZ=F:2.0%)H#
B MREVTHBBEMAEENHZ
RETHRERE-BERMEU65% (=
EZ=F:16.5% ) BMBE KRR -FIHA
MR ANMBHRENRRBEEHAENAZ
EBRK - -BEMEAEZZEMEEZRE
HEEREEAHERENERRAZRASRA
TG BREMAEREMABT
XEREEEYHMSERBELE AR
REERENEDRBEBRBES KD
ZTEHRo

AL (E R 38 B1,450,0008 L (ZE =
F 976,000 L) MEERBEZT
—HMF=ZA=+—BHLtFEZHEAER
EPBR - BEVHAFEReELEM
Wam K R4 & R R ALFT B

FE

(a) HEMBRRRAZFERE:

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
5,419 7,382




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

16 Inventories (Continued)
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories

recognised as an expense and included in profit or
loss:

SLAK A

Merchandise

17 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (note a) R & # 2 £ T IR AR E
(Hiita)
Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong REBZIFELTMABRKRES
(note b) (K1itb)
Unlisted equity fund in Hong Kong REBZIELTREAES

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had financial
assets at FVPL representing equity securities listed
in HK$97,560,000 (2023: HK$97,504,000). The fair
values of listed equity securities are determined based
on the quoted market closing price available on the
Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange at the
end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had pledged certain
listed equity securities in Hong Kong with carrying
amount of HK$23,430,000 (2023: HK$10,656,000) to
secure credit facilities granted to the Group (note 24).

16 F& @

(b)

ERIA/FAIAFABEZFES
B

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#E T FHT
961,767 1,111,985

17 BAFEFAESZEMEE

(a)

2024 2023

—E-mE =%

HK$’000 HK$’000

F BT FET

97,560 97,504

= 5,679

5,089 3,915

102,649 107,098
REBZ ELTRARS

RZFE-_WEF=A=+—H X%
EERAFEFABEZECRMEE -
5 AR AN FE £297,560,000/8 7T ( =
T~ = 4:97,504,000 L) - £
BARZESZ XN FETIRERZATER
MGEMR MRz M T EE

Eo

R-E-_WNMF=ZA=+—H &&E
B Bt & T BR M {528,430,0007% 7T
—T - =% 110,656,000 7T) Z
BB LTRABEHEIEER UIEAR
BTASEEERE 2R (K F
24) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=Ry e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LAETE5)

17 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

177 BAVEHABEZSHEE

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued) (@ REBZLTRAEAESR (£)
Details of significant investments are as follows: BREREFHBNOT:
2024
o1 }:3
Percentage
of total Fair value
issued share atthe end Percentage
capital of the tothe  Fair value Dividend
Stock  Name of Number of  owned by reporting Group’s  gain/(loss) Gain/(loss) received for
code investee company Principal activities shares held  the Group Cost period total assets for the year on disposal the year
r5E tA%E FHATE
55 (HBERf RERAX  EELE Wi/ HERE/ ERERE
RORE RREAFDER TEEH RAHE BRAHLAH RE  2AYE ] (E#) (B#) RS
‘000 % HK$'000  HK$'000 % HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
& FET FET FET FET TET
0627 Japan Kyosei Group Engaged in the property 14,200 0.10% 1,825 23,430 2.78% 21,605 - -
Company Limited development and property
investment.
0627 BARAEREERAR RENXBRRNERE
1082 Bradaverse Education Engaged in the provision 14,592 2.45% 14,824 23,347 2.77% (4,978) 1,651 -
(Int’l) Investments of private educational (note) (note)
Group Limited services, investment (Hit) (Ht)
in securities, property
investments and money
lending.
1082 REEAE (AR REEE #HSRELALERE RE
BRAR 5 NERERBE-
1597 China Nature Energy Engaged in the research and 1,000 0.40% 2,025 7,150 0.85% 3,880 - -
Technology Holdings development, integration, (note) (note)
Limited manufacturing and sales (HzE) (Hit)
of pitch control systems
and related components,
wind power generation,
wind farm operation and
maintenance business,
provision of energy
storage management
solutions and provision
of wind energy related
consultancy services in
the PRC.
1597  HEAREFENEER USHRRMAR KA BER
BRAR HERMEHAGREBE
#BHIRE RESEE
REBER RURERRE
EERRAFRRETARY
ERRBNFARS -
8112 Cornerstone Financial Engaged in the businesses 10,512 4.58% 3,995 4,573 0.54% 420 - -
Holdings Limited of financial services and (note) (note)
advertising and media (Hz) 2
services.
8112 ERERERERAR UEERBEBARRERFR
PR %5 o
1406 Clarity Medical Group Engaged in the provision 6,300 1.19% 3,794 4,284 0.51% 490 () -
Holding Limited of private ophthalmic
healthcare services.
1406  FWEREEERERAT HEREDARNBRRS-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTZ275)

17 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

(a) Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continued)

17 BRAVEFABSZEZEHMEE

/435 )
(#&)

() REBZETRAES (&)

2023
Percentage
of total Fair value
issued share attheend  Percentage
capital of the tothe  Fair value Dividend
Stock Name of Number of ~ owned by reporting Group's  gain/(loss) Gain/(loss) on  received for
code investee company Principal activities shares held  the Group Cost period total assets ~ for the year disposal the year
T5E BA%E FAATHE
BE (EREEN RERERX  EELE Wi/ HERE/ FREUR
RIARE #HREATEE TEEH RAHE  RALA KX ZATE id/] (B%8) (BR) RE
‘000 % HK$000  HK$'000 % HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
& T FEr FEr Tz FEr
1082 Bradaverse Education Provision of private educational 18,392 3.08% 18,684 32,186 3.59% 2,464 943 -
(Int'l) Investments Group services, investment (note) (note)
Limited in securities, property (Hit) (W)
investments and money
lending.
1082 REEAE (BR)RESE RELAAGRE REES
BRAR NERERKRE-
1715 \olcano Spring International ~ Engaged in the design, 74,000 4.43% 4,810 10,656 1.19% 5,846 - -
Holdings Limited development and
(Formerly known as Miji manufacture of hobs and
International Holdings stoves.
Limited)
1715 MUEBERERARAT RFREREANRE R
(MEkRERERER  REE-
A#)
1143 Link-Asia International Engaged in the electronic 1,990 1.15% 3,384 4,200 0.47% 816 (439) -
MedTech Group Limited manufacturing services.
1143 RoARERNHAEEER REBTRERE.
A
8112 Cornerstone Financial Engaged in the advertising and 10,512 4.58% 3,995 4,152 0.46% 157 = S
Holdings Limited media businesses.
8112 ERSRBERERAR HEREREEXS
8081 Hang Tai Yue Group Provision of enterprise 38,000 0.71% 3,465 3,724 0.42% 3) - -
Holdings Limited software applications and (note) (note)
platform, as well as mobile (Hi#) (Wit)
internet applications and
platform development
outsourcing services,
mainframe downsizing,
application localisation and
system.
8081 BEFAKEERERAA  RECEANEARTA B
HEERARIMTRRAE
PR AR ML K3,
CREZGER-
Note: Investment costs in these investee companies represented Bat: RZEWHRERBZREKRIEN

the initial acquisition cost for the investee companies. The
investments in these investee companies were made by
the Group in prior years. For that part of investments in
these investee companies which were made in prior years,
it was subject to fair value gain/(loss) and recognised at
the financial year end of the respective years. The fair value
gain/(loss) of these investee companies for the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023 excluded fair value gain/(loss)
being recognised in prior years.

MR ZERIRE AR KA A
SENBEFENZSRIRARQA

{’Etli&ﬁﬁdﬁﬁ’:\i@ffifﬁsxﬁ%&
RERBMEL 2% F Txﬁﬁﬁa

EXBRRA $f§”§lﬁn/ 518) -
YHAEFEMRFEHEER EEE{J
%szﬁ MER_Z_=F=
A=+ —HUIEFE ZERRER
Az FEKE /(EETE B
;ﬁfifﬁrﬁgwu q21§”&ﬁ1/(§5
=

~
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=Ry e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

17 Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong (Continueqd)

Assuming the portfolio of the Group’s equity
investments remained unchanged, the market values
of the Group’s listed equity securities in Hong Kong as
at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements were approximately HK$88,699,000. In
accordance with the respective accounting policy, the
changes in fair value will be recognised in profit or loss
subsequent to the year end.

Unlisted convertible bonds in Hong Kong

On 20 December 2021, the Group subscribed two-
year maturity 15% coupon convertible bonds with
a principal amount of HK$4,700,000 from a private
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“Issuer”).

The Group, as a holder of the convertible bonds had:

()  an option to request the Issuer to redeem the
convertible bonds by the Group at its principal
amount outstanding together with all accrued
and unpaid interest at the date of redemption on
14 December 2023 or the occurrence of other
conditions as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreement; and

(i) an option to convert the convertible bonds into
ordinary shares of the subsidiary of the Issuer at
the conversion price based on certain conditions
on the date of conversion as provided for under
the definitive subscription agreement.

The convertible bonds, together with abovementioned
options, were classified as a financial asset at FVPL
and recognised at fair value up to maturity date. The
balance of HK$4,700,000 was transferred to other
receivables upon its maturity in December 2023.
Subsequent to maturity, the balance was interest-
bearing at 24% per annum.
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17 BRAVEFABSZEZEHMEE

(A5 )

(a)

(b)

REBZETREFS (&)

BREASEZREREEGHETT
BoRzERre B miit gl
REBREBZLETRAZSLST
8 47 A288,699,000/%8 JT ° 18 1% 1A
EHEBER ATFELBENFEL
HHEREBERER

REBPZELETARKRES

RZEBZ—F+ZA=Z+H K&
B —MERBEZESEMKL
WMAARB ([BITA]REMTF
HEB15% 2 A RkESR A& 8
£4,700,00058 T °

REB (ERATBRRESIFEA)E
A :

() AEBERBETAR-FT_=
F+ZRATHOBIHBERHZL
RBMZERE HMIRFEE
B BE A RERESANSREN
KB R RARENS 2 #EE
# R

(i) MWEREERBHEARE -
WRE TR RERBE AN
HREKITRRESER A
TAMBRARA T BER 2EE
B

AMBEESFR EMEIEES B AR
/“WE‘E%ME%Zi@ﬂéEm&

NEERREFHH - 4,700,000
TZBEECR-_E-_=ZF+_-/%
HARF8E A H {th FEUGRIE - B HRTR - 84
BIRFE R ER24EBHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

18 Trade and other receivables

FEWE 5 5KA
W ER R

Trade receivables
Less: loss allowance

Deposits b4l
TEFRIB

H fh pE R IE
W BB

Prepayments
Other receivables
Less: loss allowance

Included in the Group’s other receivables, prepayments
and deposits were rental, utilities and other deposits
amounting to HK$9,174,000 (2023: HK$9,214,000), which
are expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses
after more than one year. All of the other trade and other
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as
expenses within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables were amounts
due from slimming business partners and consultants of
HK$42,302,000 (2023: HK$51,781,000) and advances to
staff of HK$32,000 (2023: HK$183,000).

The other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand, except for the other receivable of
HK$4,700,000 as at 31 March 2024 (2023: HK$Nil) which
bears interest at 24% per annum (2023: Nil).

18 BWEZRIERHMERRIER

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FET
62,865 76,526
(6,665) (9,405)
56,200 67,121
12,486 16,882
7,761 17,543
62,773 67,316
(9,604) (7,728)
73,416 94,013

ETAREE 2 H b fE R GKIE - B RIB
kEerfe AASHEEREMES
9,174,000 7L (=& = =4 : 9,214,000
B EEARBR-FRKE S BERA
FX-FAEMERE S HIE Rt R
HREBHAR —FAREERAEMZ -

FTARE B 2 EhFE W R TE A R AR R
¥ MM 2 3IE42,302,0005 7T

— T - =£:51,781,0008 L) kA B
T8 2 3kIE32,0008 T (ZE=-=4F:
183,000/ 7T) °

Hib BN IBRAEER R ERAREXR
EBEg HER-_T_MNF=ZA=1+—HHH
fth & U X T8 4,700,0008 7T ( — T - =4 :
EETL)EFMNEUEFBE(ZTEZ=
F )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

18 Trade and other receivables (Continuead)

(@) Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Less than 1 month

1 to 2 months

More than 2 months but less than
4 months

More than 4 months but less than
12 months

More than 12 months

Trade receivables are usually due within O to 90 days
from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy are set out in note 29(a).

(42 )
(W=

(a) HREDH

18 BWEZRERHMERKIA

REBHPR BRESHHEA (ERE
SEHRAMREERER) KRR

DM
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FAETT
LA 11{E A 51,048 53,730
1221E A 137 10,497
Z2fE 1B L R 41E A

4,966 2,567

Z4E BB D12(8 A
49 255
1218 A A £ = 72
56,200 67,121

JEWE 5 —RAERE RS
OE0REH -AEBEEHRZE

— HREBE N FE29(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)

19 Loans and interest receivables 19 BWERKEFE
The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the AEBEVREREFEBRBBREE
money lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong RFARR2ENBRRZHREELE
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Group E-AREBBRNBREELEERERRKE
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loans REFBUEZEREEERK -BEEET
and interest receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue HA %5 B a0 B 45

balances are reviewed regularly by management.

2024 2023
—E-MmE ZTZ=HF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total

gnHs MeHs a4 mxEs  Aeds e
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET  FET  FER  TET  TET  FET

Secured loans by mortgage KB EEMEH 8,206 90 8,296 1,926 = 1,926
Personal guaranteed loans BAERER 17,466 252 17,718 26,186 - 26,186
Unsecured loans ERBER 61,139 2,154 63,293 45,360 766 46,126
86,811 2,496 89,307 73,472 766 74,238
Less: loss allowance W EBRRE (18,391) (1,272)  (19,663)  (10,400) (682)  (11,082)
68,420 1,224 69,644 63,072 84 63,156
Less: current portion included  J& : BIEREE D EF A
under current assets HBEE (38,872) (1,224)  (40,096)  (37,857) (84)  (37,941)
Amounts due after 1 year 1FERIREERTA
included under non-current EREBEE
assets 29,548 - 29,548 25215 = 25215
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continuea) 19

The exposure of the Group’s loans and interest receivables
to their contractual maturity dates are as follows:

BWERRFE #)

AEBEZRRABLEASLHEH A ERF
BT

2024 2023
g 13 ZEZ=F
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ExHo HMNEH2 #x  EREs  FMEEH @t

HK$'000  HK$'000

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET FET FHET FHET FHET

Within 1 year 1ER 38,872 1,224 40,096 37,857 84 37,941
More than 1 year but within ~ ZR1EE2ER

2 years 29,548 - 29,548 12,457 - 12,457
More than 2 years but within -~ % R2EB5F R

5 years - - - 12,758 - 12,758

68,420 1,224 69,644 63,072 84 63,156

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from
7% to 48% (2023: 7% to 48%) per annum and repayable on
maturity under the terms of contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continued) 19 BWEREFE &)
(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERDT
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due ERAHINBEZERRTAT
dates:
2024 2023
“E-mE ZTCZHF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
Exds HNEB2 @ax  ERfFs  MEHH @
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
Current BN 53,891 841 54,732 51,853 23 51,876
Less than 1 month past due #1541 > 7 1{E A 4,000 45 4,045 499 17 516
1 to 3 months past due B =3 A 11,042 399 11,441 100 = 100
3 to 6 months past due w3 ZE6ME A - - - 11,023 45 11,068
6to 12 months past due A EI6ZE121E A 3,726 = 3,726 = = =
More than 12 months BEEAE12EA
past due 14,152 1,211 15,363 9,997 681 10,678
Less: Loss allowance W BRRE (18,391) (1,272)  (19,663)  (10,400) (682)  (11,082)
68,420 1,224 69,644 63,072 84 63,156

The credit quality of loans and interest receivables has

been assessed by reference to historical information
about counterparty default rates. Further details on the

Group’s credit policy are set out in note 29(a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

19 Loans and interest receivables (Continuea) 19

(b) Analysed by credit quality

BWERRFE #)

(b) BREEEZSHTWOT

2024 2023
g3 I
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ERHo FMEB2 @i BExds  MEHH @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FHET
Loans receivables that ~ REBEEERHEMN
are not credit-impaired W EH
Current Bl 8 53,496 841 54,337 51,853 23 51,876
Less than 1 month past due #Hi %118 A 4,000 45 4,045 499 17 516
1 to 3 months past due BE1ZE3MEA 11,042 399 11,441 100 = 100
3 to 6 months past due BE3ZE6ME A - - - 11,023 45 11,068
6to 12 months past due B HEI6ZE 128 A 3,726 - 3,726 - - -
More than 12 months BENtER12(8 A
past due 1,524 - 1,524 - - -
Less: Loss allowance BB (5,376) (61) (5,437) (403) (1) (404)
68,412 1,224 69,636 63,072 84 63,156
Loans receivables that  HBEEREMN
are credit-impaired EWER
Current B 85 395 - 395 - - -
Less than 1 month past due # &4 118 A - - - - - -
1 to 3 months past due AE1E3(E A - - - - - -
3 to 6 months past due A EEe(E A - - - - - -
6 to 12 months past due @ H6E12/@A - - - - - -
More than 12 months B EEB12{E A
past due 12,628 1,211 13,839 9,997 681 10,678
Less: Loss allowance W EERE (13,015) (1,211)  (14,226) (9,997 (681)  (10,678)
8 - 8 - - -
68,420 1,224 69,644 63,072 84 63,156
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)
20 Amount due from a related party 20 FEUW—BREEALTFIE
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Amount due from a holder of non-controlling fEW — & IR EREH A A
interest RIA 3 3
The amount due from a related party is unsecured, interest B —ZEEATRELEERR 28K
free and repayable on demand. BIRERKERER-
21 Contract liabilities 21 BHEE
2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Receipts from sales of prepaid beauty KREHERNEREEN
packages WA 11,628 10,385
When the Group receives a deposit before the service REB R RSB ATREIZ 2 F - & 45
commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at MEBEHNEBEEAEZRERG AR
the start of a contract until the revenue recognised when BERANBEBBRZEMNEE AL - AEHEH
services rendered exceeds the amount of the deposits. BERDR—THIENERS  WIEERFES
The Group typically receives a certain deposit, which is AR REETRIEELTFHE -

negotiated on case by case basis with customers, on
acceptance of slimming service contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

21 Contract liabilities (continued)

The movements in contract liabilities are summarised as

follows:

b
i

21 §H8E &

l;

EHERBEZEHHALT

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
At the beginning of the year REH] 10,385 3,412
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FREERREMEE 2
recognising revenue during the year that EHNBEZRITINFEN
was included in the contract liabilities at FAEHNEE
the beginning of the year (10,367) (3,382)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of HEBNEREEZEMELE Y
sales of prepaid beauty packages EHBEEM 58,746 55,942
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FREHERKREMEE 2
recognising revenue during the year that ARBEZRDTIETA
was included in new contract liabilities FATLZFEHNEE
entered during the year (47,118) (45,557)
Exchange adjustments & H A (18) (30)
At the end of the year RE R 11,628 10,385

22 Trade and other payables

22 BNEZRERAMENKIA

2024 2023

=®F-mE —F_=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Trade payables R E 5 5IE - 898
Other payables and accrued charges HEtmENRIERETER 64,301 106,625
64,301 107,523

BB e B 5 3RR e H L FE A SRR TR
BR—FRBENALEREE-

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'.L|
N

(Exp

BB HmRNEE

ressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTZ275)

22

23

24

Trade and other payables (Continuead)

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with
the following ageing analysis, based on the invoice date, as
of the end of the reporting period:

Within 1 month 118 A K
Lease liabilities

As at 31 March 2024, the lease liabilities were repayable as
follows:

Within 1 year 1FER

After 1 year but within 2 years 1F & E2F R
Interest-bearing borrowings

Margin financing REZHBE

As at 31 March 2024, margin financing bear interest at fixed
rates of 12.0% (2023:
demand and is secured by certain equity securities held in a

11.9%) per annum, repayable on

margin securities account as set out in note 17.
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23
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BNEZRERAMENKIE
TRt AN E 5 308 R b B3
HZRNBESRB(ERBERAH)INE
WEIR 2 BRie 0 1T -
2024 2023
—E-mF —T_—_=
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
- 898
HERRE

R-T_ME=A=+—H HEAEFEA

RIATEIEEE

2024 2023
—E-_mEF —T-=
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FETT
5,215 3,851
3,301 234
8,516 4,085
fiEEE
2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FAET
1,009 1,356
R-E-_WF=ZA=+—H REEHE
MERBRETFEMNEAE120%(ZTE-_=F:

11.9%) " BIRERKEE BHHNHFE
1ITRRBSELSRFHBAEZETRAE

ZFAEIR I o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement

of financial position

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of (a)

financial position represents:

Hong Kong Profits Tax
— Provision for the year (note 6(a))
— Tax paid
— Balance of profit tax provision
relating to prior years, net

PRC Enterprise Income Tax
— Provision for the year (note 6(a))
- Tax paid
— Exchange realignment

Represented by:
Current tax recoverable
— Hong Kong Profits Tax

Current tax payable
— Hong Kong Profits Tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

BFRMEH
—FRNBE (A at6@)
—EfHEA
—BRBEFENEHR
BiBERFE

o B £ 3 P 18 B
— 4 IR (H6(2))
~EHHA
~EXBE

ATBIHEEB KRR
AJ Yg (=] B A 7 1R
—BRMNEHR

J& < BN EA B¢ 18
—BRMNEHR
—HPEEEMAFR
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25 HRMBRRRAZHAER

REEMBRRERN 2 ERHIEARE

2024 2023
—E_ME —EFE-=
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAT
- (188)
85 595
(168) 2
(83) 409
(3,270) (7,745)
2,788 5,980
5 3
(477) (1,762)
(560) (1,353)
529 936
(612) (527)
(477) (1,762)
(1,089) (2,289)
(560) (1,353)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement 25 ZREMBRIARAZFAEH &)
of financial position (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax (b) EERIE
(i)  Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised: () EFRBZEEHE(LE)
=F -
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RERE B FS AR R R TR Z%ﬁﬁ
recognised in the consolidated statement of ME(BE) BEBI KRR
financial position and the movements during the FRZEESHNOT

year are as follows:

Right-of- Lease
use assets liabilities Total
FERAEEE HEaE wmat
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET FHET
Deferred tax arising from: LN EEREL 2
EEBIE
At 1 April 2022 A ——
mA—H 1,213 (1,213) -
(Credited)/charged to RigEdh (5t A)
profit or loss kR (553) 553 =
Exchange adjustments b 5P (36) 36 =
At 31 March 2023 and R-T_=%F
1 April 2023 :H*—I——EI&
—E=F
mA—H 624 (624) -
Charged/(credited) to RiE&mP kR,
profit or loss (5t A) 1,059 (1,059) =
Exchange adjustments PE 52 (10) 10 -
At 31 March 2024 R-ZTE_WF
=A=+—H 1,673 (1,673) =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

25 Income tax in the consolidated statement
of financial position (Continuead)

(b)

Deferred tax (Continued)

(ii) Deferred tax assets/liabilities not
recognised:

As at 31 March 2024, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of HK$308,304,000
(2023: HK$294,512,000) and deductible
temporary differences of HK$68,859,000 (2023:
HK$66,135,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits, against which the assets can
be utilised, will be available in any relevant tax
jurisdiction or entity. Of the total tax losses,
HK$11,663,000 (2023: HK$18,196,000) will
expire within 5 years and the remaining tax losses
of HK$296,641,000 (2023: HK$276,316,000)
have no expiry date under the current tax
legislation. Other temporary differences are not
material.

26 Post-employment benefits

(a)

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement
plan administered by independent trustees. Under
the MPF Scheme, certain subsidiaries of the Group
and the eligible employees are each required to make
monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions
to the scheme vest immediately, there is no forfeited
contribution that may be used by the Group to reduce
the existing level of contribution.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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25 MEMBRRKRAZFER (2

(b)

EREBE ()

(i) FERZEEHELE B :

R-E-_NMFE=/=+—8H"
B A 7 fE 0] 48 B B0 7% B A
B ERETANAEARRE
AR BEMNAUBAEE HA
SEYERZRABEEE
308,304,000 L (Z T ==
F : 294,512,000/ 7T ) & A 1
T BF = 868,859,000/ 7T
— T = =%:66,135,000/%
TR ECEHEEE -FE
BB 4% H - 11,663,000 7T
— T - =4 :18,196,000/8
)R AEFRE R MHT
T TE E518296,641,00058 7T ( —
T — = % :276,316,000/8 7T )
BRERTRETEERAD - K
HEREZBEITTEK

26 BEREEA

(a)

BB E

AEERBRERFELTREEE
PSRBT B RBEN ([Z G
Fll)ENEAEERER ZBERLR
HIERTESETE ([RE2FE]) -
BESHEARABURTEAETRLZ
EREFRKGT & - RIBEBE T
g AEEETHERRARAGER
BEXEAREEBMAR Z5%
R EIEH S ARSI EHR BT
ZRBIERKER ST ABBERA
30,0007 7T ° A &t & 1F th 2 it 3k AD
HEB HMESRK 2 HRAHRAR
SEANBRDRE HFKF -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

26 Post-employment benefits (Continuea)

(a)

(b)

Retirement benefits scheme (Continued)

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes covering
its full-time PRC employees. The schemes are
administered by the relevant government authorities
in the PRC. The Group and the PRC employees are
required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as
stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and the
relevant government authorities undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately, there is no forfeited contribution that may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contribution.

Provision for LSP

Hong Kong employees that have been employed
continuously for at least five years are entitled to long
service payments in accordance with the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance under certain circumstances.
These circumstances include where an employee is
dismissed for reasons other than serious misconduct
or redundancy, that employee resigns at the age of
65 or above, or the employment contract is of fixed
term and expires without renewal. The amount of LSP
payable is determined with reference to the employee’s
final salary (capped at HK$22,500) and the years
of service, reduced by the amount of any accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s contributions to
MPF scheme (see note 26(a)), with an overall cap of
HK$390,000 per employee. Currently, the Group does
not have any separate funding arrangement in place to
meet its LSP obligation.

26

BERRERN )

(a)

(b)

|

RIKERGE (F)

AEBERFTFEZMBARTAES
HEBES 2 HEAEHIFRKGE -
ZETERTRARKTHEERE -
AEBMTEEEAZRTESREMR
AIECERFERARNZETAEDLL
1 th A 5K T A8 B8 AT 4 B R R
EAEETEMNBARC2BIRA
EBREKEBE ZRIKBMEE-
BRI RE EMEARE
A] BE A PABRMEIR B HFUKF Z #08
YA

RIRES&BE

BREEE(ERBEKN) RETHE
M BEEZEELHEFNES
EEEHESEERBES %51B
NBERERFEETATE K
HEMBERE EEFBRFHRED
65 A LS EEE X A EEH
REFNMTEEN - ENHERREH
PHEDRBEEENEREH S (LR
722,500 70) R R F B E -
WHBRAEEMBRE S EED
CEHFEEANTEMNEFTFZE (R
MizX26(a)) BHEEMR LR A
390,000/ 7T * 31 B - AN & [F I & (£
MBYHNESLHABITERRS
HE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=Ry e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

26 Post-employment benefits (Continuea)

(b)

Provision for LSP (Continued)

In June 2022,
Amendment Ordinance, which will eventually abolish

the Government gazetted the

the statutory right of an employer to reduce its LSP
payable to a Hong Kong employee by drawing on its
mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme. The
Government has subsequently announced that the
Amendment Ordinance will come into effect from
1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Separately, the
Government is also expected to introduce a subsidy
scheme to assist employers after the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism takes effect, an employer can
no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory contributions under MPF scheme
(irrespective of the contributions made before, on
or after the Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in
respect of an employee’s service from the Transition
Date. However, where an employee’s employment
commenced before the Transition Date, the employer
can continue to use the above accrued benefits to
reduce the LSP in respect of the employee’s service
up to that date; in addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately
before the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date.

The Group has accounted for the offsetting mechanism
and its abolition as disclosed in notes 2(c)(ii) and 2(s)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

26 Post-employment benefits (Continuea)

(b) Provision for LSP (Continued)

26 BERLERERN (&)

(b)

The present value of unfunded obligations and its

movements are as follows:

At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023 and
1 April 2023
Service cost

At 31 March 2024

Represented by:
Current portion
Non-current portion

REREBE (B

ABEEECZREEERAEZFHN
T

HK$'000
FET

R-ZE-_—_FWA—B - —FT-_=F
—AZ+—HERZE-_=ZFWMA—H -
PR 75 B 7K 806
R-ZE-_WNWF=A=+—H 806

LAT5IER &RR:

BN EA 2B 9 6
JEBN R EF & 800
806

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation is 20.05 years. The above expense is

recognised in administrative expense.

Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as

weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are as

follows:

Discount rate

Future salary increases

Expected investment return on
offsettable MPF accrued benefits

BRER =R
AERFEEE

AERBAMETHOMEFEHFEE A
20.05%F o Ll A ITE A X g

27
e ©

EZRERK (ANEFART) R
HRERESFMT

2024

—E-_MEF

3.75%
2.50%

AHEERES R #ENERKRE DR

2.50%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

26 Post-employment benefits (Continuea)

(b)

Provision for LSP (Continued)

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit
obligation would have increased/decreased as a result
of 1% change in the significant actuarial assumptions:

Discount rate BRI X
Future salary increases ARFLME

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016

On 24 February 2016, the Company has adopted a
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include full-time or part-time employees,
executives or officers (including executive, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors) of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
and any consultants, agents or advisers who, in the
sole opinion of the Board, have contributed to the
Company and/or such subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions
(Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme adopted on 24 February 2016
(Continued)

Share options are granted to the eligible participants
at a consideration of HK$1. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share
in the Company. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, save that no option may
be exercised more than five years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option plans of the Company at
any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option plans of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant in excess of 1% of the number of shares in issue
as at the date of grant, are subject to the Company
issuing a circular and the approval from the Company’s
shareholders in a general meeting.

The exercise price for a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option
Scheme (which shall be payable upon exercise of the
option) shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not
be less than the highest of (i) the official closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value
of a share.

27

BonEEROMNER

(a)

3

ot
No
i

R-ZE—-XRNEZA-+HBAEHZ
BRETE (&)

BRERREIBEIRTAERZ
HE-BHBRERL TRHEARERN
CEY: Sl NVNCIRS N SN 1 ¢
ZITEHBEARETSZRRTE I
BERERNREBEAFRIEITE:
BREREA B E R R BBt
FRIBRHOBRE-

RIEEREFTERAR R EMEAM
WA SIBER R BERITEZMR
BARELT 5 0 AR A 1T (0 B AT A 5%
TZRHOHESEE  THBATE
B EITRGD 230% ©

B BT A RREE R & X
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EDEERRETEZBEBRE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions

(Continued)

(b) The terms and conditions of the grants are as
follows:

27 REREER

BRRRS (&)

(b) WHEFERKMFAMT :

Number
of options Vesting conditions
BREME BEKRML
Options to directors:
RTESZERE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the
date of grant
—-RZEZ—FZATAHEH KRR A AR
Options to employees:
RTFEICERE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the
date of grant
-RZEZ—FZA+ARY EY e =Ry
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the
date of grant
-RZE_—F-_ATARY KRR A HE
Options to a consultant:
RTERZBRE:
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the
date of grant
—-RZBZ_—F_A+HED KRR L A HE
Options to other participants:*
RTHMBEEZBRE: *
— granted on 10 February 2021 750,494 Immediate from the
date of grant
—-RZZB_—F_A+HED ZEEREH B AR
— granted on 10 February 2021 1,500,988 Immediate from the
date of grant
-RZE—FZA+ARY EY s =Ry
Total share options granted 5,253,458
FIT#% ) B A i 4B 8
* The options granted to certain former employees will

be still exercisable notwithstanding their resignations or
retirements given that they had provided services to the

Group.
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Contractual
life of

options Tranche
BREZ

EHNEM R

5.0 years 1
5.04

5.0 years 1
5.04

5.0 years 2
5.0%F

5.0 years 2
5.0%F

5.0 years 1
5.0%F

5.0 years 2
5.0%

BEETHESCHBIRK ER
BECMASBERERSE  ETHRE
BB 1T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 RREERGEARRE (2
(Continued)

(¢) The number and weighted average exercise prices (c) BREZERMNEFLETEENT:
of share options are as follows:

2024 2023
—2-mE ZTZ=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
¥ g ¥13
TEE  BREHE TRE  BREHE
HKS HK$
BT B
Outstanding at the beginning of R F ] R F & & K16
the year and the end of the year 0.8700 5,253,458 0.8700 5,253,458
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ R FRA[{T{E 0.8700 5,253,458 0.8700 5,253,458
The options outstanding as at 31 March 2024 had an R -_WNF=ZA=+—H®EKT
exercise price of HK$0.8700 (2023: HK$0.8700) and FRERAE 2 1T B A0.8700%8 L (=
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.87 T =4:0.8700%7T) - INEFH
years (2023: 2.87 years). RGN FRRITFE(ZEE =
F:287F)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 BRGEERODNERRE (2

(Continued)

(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions (d)

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted was measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted on 10 February
2021 was measured by reference to valuations
performed by CHFT Advisory And Appraisal Limited,
independent professional valuer not connected to
the Group, based on the binomial lattice model. The
contractual life of the share option was used as an
input into this model.

BREZAFERRBR

ARLEREMEEIRBEZAF
BEN2EZMEBELERE A FERT
EHFARIZEZ—FATEE
HrEBREZ ATFEZ2ZEERASE
By EEE s B EEGEMES
BAFHEERARAMELH ZEER
THEHAEETERIGE - BARE
LEHNFHE AEZER 2@ A
1% o

Share options granted
on 10 February 2021
R-ZFE=--%-A+H

Significant assumptions BEARBE REZBRE
Tranche AN 1 2
Fair value at measurement date RrEH8BH 2 AFEE 0.440 0.411
Share price Rz (B HK$0.87 HK$0.87
0.877% 7T 0.87%8 7T
Exercise price TE(E HK$0.87 HK$0.87
0.87% 7T 0.87%8 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as AR (RZIEA BT
historical volatility used in the BEATIIERELIKIE)
modelling under binominal lattice
model) 67.56% 67.56%
Option life (expressed as historical EREFH (RZEXHETE
volatility used in the modelling of BRI TS ERE LR IE) 5.0 years 5.0 years
binominal lattice model) 5.0 5.0%F
Expected dividends TEHR B Nil Nil
i i
Risk free interest rate (based on EREREE (RE—REB
Generic Hong Kong Government BRBELFEREZSFER
Yield - 5Y) x) 0.42% 0.42%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

27 Equity-settled share-based transactions 27 RREERGEARRE (2

(Continued)
(d) Fair value of share options and assumptions (d)
(Continued)

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in
the grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with these share options granted.

The fair value of the share options granted to the
consultant was measured at fair value of option
granted as the participant was providing services that
are similar to those rendered by employees.

BREZQAFPERRBR (&)

BREDRE -BARBEER -
PIEXRBZELBHAFERE
¥R RZEHE - TREZEFD R
B s A I 4 B O o

ETERZBRE 2 FEEZRER
HEREZ A FERE HDE2HE
EREZRGEREBAREMEMRL -

28 Capital, reserves and dividends 28 EXR--#HERKRE

(@) Share capital (a)

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares: TR
At 1 April 2022, 31 March 2023, WR-Z - A/—H-
1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024 —Z_-_=F#=A8=+—H
of HK$0.01 each ZEZ=FWA—HE
—E-_NFE=ZA=1+—H
R mE.01E T

Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :

Ordinary shares: Limp

At 1 April 2022 of HK$0.01 each WZ-_Z - J—H
BREE0.01ET

Issue of shares (note (i) BT (B )
At 31 March 2023, 1 April 2023 RZIE-_=4F
and 31 March 2024 of HK$0.01 =H=+—H"
each “E-=FPWA—BK

—E-_WNFE=ZA=+—H
B MEE0.01B T

@S

(i) ZERERITEE

Number

of shares

BRHER
‘000 HK$’000
FR FET
40,000,000 400,000
75,049 750
3,793 38
78,842 788
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)
(@) Share capital (Continued)

(i) Authorised and issued share capital
(Continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

(i) On 11 August 2022, the Company issued
3,792,677 ordinary shares of HK$1.1 per share
as the consideration shares in acquisition of
Brilliant Step Global Limited (see note 36).

(b) Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2024 (2023:
HKS$Nil).

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium

Under the Companies Laws of the Cayman
Islands where a company issues shares at a
premium, whether for cash or otherwise, a sum
equal to the aggregate amount of the value of
the premiums on their shares shall be transferred
to share premium account. The application of
the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to
shareholders of the Company out of the share
premium account unless immediately following
the date on which the distribution or the dividend
is proposed to be paid, the Company will be in a
position to pay its debts as when they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.
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28 EXR--#HERKRE (2

(a)

(b)

(c)

B (&)

(i) ZERERITRF (%)

LERRFAEABRKRBRIEE
kBB A EERERBND
RARBARKE LR —F-FMA
ERERARBZHNBEES
BRE A -

(i) RZZE-_=—_FNA+—8"
RNRAAEEEIT3,792,677HK
EREEIAB T2 EBRE
& W B Brilliant Step Global
Limitedz X B IR 0 ( & M 5
36) °

=
i}

t

EEV TRARNBEZ _T 4
ZA=+t—HLEEZERE (=%
—=FFEBIL) -

REHERA®N
(i) RitpEE

REASHERRE LAF
PAog B BT TR AR E
ReRHEMRRA HEAK—F
HEREBN 2 EEEERARE
ZHRBBRABRNDEER B
B aBREXAERERANE
e -

PR OE BB R 0 IR ZUR AR
BHE ARARHAIREBE
BREFBERIBEERE
% BRAIAEE RO & ER
AR B BIR 7 R R B S



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares
issued by the Company and the aggregate of
the share capital and share premium of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company through
exchange of shares under a group reorganisation
scheme on 4 November 2003. Further details are
set out in the Company’s prospectus dated 10
November 2003.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
accounting policy set out in note 2(w).

Share-based payment reserve

The share-based payment reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to the
eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note
2(s)(iii).

28 EXR--#HERKRE (&)

(c)

BREMERBW (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

B A E

EHBEEEARABETEER
ZEEBRARRRER-FZF
=Ft+—-ANBZzEEEA
BRERBEOAEANRB QR
BAEBOREREREZE
HoE—TFBEARLARAA
HAR-TT=F+—-A+AHZ
BERER-

E 5

3 bt B R R E S O 2
BRAFELHAEERLE
5 o B 15 18 2 Y RE2(w) BT B 2
B

R0 11 5% 1

B o 1 5K 6 B 48 AR 1B MY &
2(s)(iii) 54 B 10 15 SRR 2 & 5
KRR TRRETE A
B2 mE ZERKMAFRT
EEEEHBEZATE.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

PRC statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing
the PRC enterprises, a PRC subsidiary of the
Group, which is a sino-foreign joint-venture
enterprise, is required to allocate at least 10% of
its after-tax profit but before dividend distribution
to the general reserve until the reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval
by the relevant authority, to offset accumulated
losses or increase capital. The appropriation
for the year ended 31 March 2024 amounted to
HK$NIl (2023: HKS$NI).

The enterprise expansion fund can only be
used to increase capital upon approval by the
relevant authority. Appropriation to enterprise
expansion fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. There was no
appropriation during the year (2023: HKS$NIil).

The staff welfare and bonus fund can only be
used for the welfare of the PRC subsidiaries’
employees. Appropriation to the staff welfare and
bonus fund is at the discretion of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiaries. For Hong Kong
reporting purposes, this appropriation is charged
to profit or loss and included in other payables
and accrued charges in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policies adopted for land and buildings held for
own use. The revaluation reserve of the Group
is distributable to the extent of HK$3,574,000
(2023: HK$3,574,000).
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(c)

REMEERBH (F)

v)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(vii) Other reserve

Other reserve represents (i) the difference
between the fair value of the consideration
received and the carrying amount of the net
assets of Beauty University Management Limited
(“BUML”) attributable to the non-controlling
interest amounted to HK$16,492,000 (2023:
HK$16,492,000); and (ii) the excess of the fair
value of consideration received for the disposal of
25% (2023: 25%) equity interest in a non-wholly
owned subsidiary over the increase in the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest amounted
to HK$11,563,000 (2023: HK$11,563,000).

Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2024, the Company'’s reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$481,999,000 (2023: HK$482,017,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes judgements to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

28 EX - -mEERKRE &)

(c)

(d)

(e)

HEEEREWN (£)
(vii) EftFE

Hi#EHBOEWRBAT
BEEERIFERERZZE
BRAEERERAR([EE
AEBEEFHEEAEME
2 Z=%816,492,0008 T (=&
— =%:16,492,000T) : &
(it HE— 2 EWB QA
25% (ZE==%F: 25%)K%
REFFTBBMRE 2 AT EB
LR IEERE=REE 2 LR
2 Z%811,563,0008 T (=&
— =% :11,563,0008 7T ) °

T 2R
RZFZNE=A=FT—H A2
RIAEDERF ARG HAE A ZFHEE
/481,999,000 T (—F — =%
482,017,000/ 7T) °

EXEH

AEEEREAZTZABERRE
AEBEFBEREZEN LWEAE

3B 7% E an B AR 75 T B X B R B K
MR Z K AR A A A BS R

B NMEELSRREHD RN
Hsstn H R A &=

AEEERLRERRS REEEE
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I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

28 Capital, reserves and dividends (Continuea)
(e) Capital management (Continued)

The capital structure of the Group consists of trade
payables, other payables and accrued charges, lease
liabilities, defined benefit plan obligations and interest-
bearing borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents
(i.e. net debt) and capital, which comprises all
components of equity.

The directors review the capital structure on an
annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of debt and cost of capital. Based
on the recommendation of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the
issue of new debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group is also exposed to equity price risk
arising from its equity investments in other entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk

management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables, loans and interest receivables,
amount due from a related party and cash and cash
equivalents.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a
concentration of credit risk as 5% (2023: 4%) and
19% (2023: 9%) of total trade receivables due from
the largest customer and five largest customers
respectively.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These take into account the customer’s past
repayment history, financial position and other factors.
Trade receivables are usually due within O to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for trade

receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,

which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the

Group’s historical credit loss experience does not

indicate significantly different loss patterns for different

customer segments, the loss allowance based on past

due status is not further distinguished between the

Group’s different customer bases.

The following tables provide information about the

Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

receivables:

Current (not past due)
Less than 1 month past due
1 to 2 months past due
More than 2 but less than
4 months past due
More than 4 but less than
12 months past due
More than 12 months
past due

BE (K@)
BEORERA
A1 =21 A
B HREE2{E A
BORAEA
BHREMEA
BHmM2(E A
BERE12M A
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Expected
loss rate
AHERE
%

8.37%
8.92%
9.38%

N/ATiE A

9.62%

100.00%

TRTAzEREAREER AT

(a) fEEmE ()
B 5 A ()

AEBERBERKARBEEER
ZERAEBERKE S RBZEER
B EDERBBREETE - R
SEBAEZEEBERERI KRS
REF DB RERTREEERN
ERBMReEzERBEB T £ —
PRAKETREFPER 2 HHE—
FED -

e HELEYY EEE-Er
S EE RO RS SR
ZER

2024
“E-mE
Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance amount

REAE BRER REFE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET FET
59,994 (5,021) 54,973
1,099 (98) 1,001
192 (18) 174

5 - 5

52 (5) 47
1,523 (1,523) 5
62,865 (6,665) 56,200




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £ TEACESREAKREER AT
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Current (not past due)
Less than 1 month past due
1 to 2 months past due
More than 2 but less than
4 months past due
More than 4 but less than
12 months past due
More than 12 months
past due

N (REH)

B MER
BH1E2{E A

BEEB2(E A
BHR4EA
AHERMEA
BHR1208A
aHEB12(EA

{E (5@7\*/)
(@ EERK (&)
FEREZE (&)
2023
ZTCZHF

Gross Net
Expected carrying Loss carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
EHEEX EHAE EREER RESAE

%

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

FET FET FET

4.71% 55,724 (2,627) 53,007
5.31% 13,626 (729) 12,903
5.79% 812 (47) 765
6.45% 31 2) 29
7.89% 355 (28) 327
100.00% 5,978 (5,978) -
76,526 (9,405) 67,121

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss

experience in current year. These rates are adjusted

to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of

economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.

EHBEREERAEEZERER
BT R FLXREIERE UK
iR 9 JFF S SRR 1E IE BRI 2 AOBAROR -
R A B 7R & B 5 R W R IR TR
BRI AR EMR RN B EZ ]
B2 Rl o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)
(a) Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of
trade receivables during the year is as follows:

At the beginning of the year REH]
Impairment loss recognised ERRRESE
Write-off 3

Exchange adjustments ME 5 38 B

At the end of the year RER

Other financial assets

The Group considers the probability of default upon
initial recognition of asset and whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset
as at the end of the reporting period with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

- internal credit rating;

- external credit rating (as far as available); and

- actual or expected significant adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
counterparties’ ability to meet its obligations

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED {65 Z#ERAER AR
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ERMTAECEREREERAF
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FERR (&)

EWES7E (&)

ﬁ@ﬁﬁmﬁuﬁz%ﬂ%%xlﬁzgﬁﬁﬁ
""""" EEmT

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
9,405 7,881
1,960 2,103
(4,405) 2)
(295) (577)
6,665 9,405
BMEHEE

AEBRVIGHEREERZEED
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BEERZEHMRBLERNZAR
ER e R EHELENNEAR
ETHER AKTZEENERSZA
BRERBZABELEEN 52
BENTHER:

- REEEFA:

- SNEBEEFA (WER) Rk

- EB BHEIKBERANER
HIEHEBBA TN E B M EHE
U TRTEENEIEHRE
j< ,,,,,,,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTZ275)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

A summary of the assumptions underpinning the

Group’s ECL model is as follows:

Category
k]|

Stage 1

E—FER

Stage 2

EFEER

Stage 3

H
[
i
o

Definition of category

BRI ZER

Exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition and that are not
credit-impaired upon origination.

BRERAREERBRRREIE M BE
R ARHBREERENRER-

Exposures where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired.

BAREAARGEERRD REBEM BR
LIREEREHRRE -

Exposures are assessed as credit-
impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred.

ERE-ERSEEMN HEENMR
RREeREEBEELER - QAR
HREERE-

20 SWMIASHAREERAY

E ‘\//K/’;E )
(@ FEERR(Z)
HEt e mEE (&)

$%l%%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%%2ﬁ
B Ul

Basis for recognition of ECL provision

BRAANFEERREZEE

Portion of the lifetime ECL associated with
the probability of default events occurring
within the next 12 months is recognised.

HREARKIEARNBEERZHEMHT A
HRBER K ATRREEERED

Lifetime expected losses (i.e. reflecting the
remaining lifetime of the financial asset)
is recognised.

HRAKARHER (AIRREBEEHRTF
H) e

Lifetime expected losses is recognised
and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost (net of provision) rather
than the gross carrying amount.
FRBEEKA (RER) (MIER@DE
B)EBERMEMERKATEREEL
SAAEME MR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Loans and interest receivables

Loans to the top borrower and top five borrowers
constituted 9% and 33% (2023: 13% and 43%) of
the Group’s loans and interest receivables balance
respectively as at 31 March 2024.

The directors consider that the credit risk arising
from the loans receivable is significantly mitigated by
the collaterals held, if required. The Group does not
provide any guarantees which would expose the Group
to credit risk.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default under
ECL model for loans and interest receivables over 90
days past due based on good repayment records for
those loan borrowers having continuous business with
the Group. They are assessed individually based on
their probability of default and exposure of default with
reference to historical credit loss experience, adjusted
by current and forward-looking factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £ TEACESREAKREER AT

of financial instruments (Continued) B&)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERK(#£)
Other financial assets (Continued) EeBEE (&)

FEWEFRFIE (&)

Loans and interest receivables (Continued)

ERERRMNE 2 EEBEEBMT

Movements in the gross amount of loans and interest
receivables are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-KR E-RR £ @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2022 W-_ZE-—FMWA—H 92,959 13,902 26,800 133,661
New loans originated HEAER 71,234 3,136 539 74,909
Transfer =B (12,252) 9,811 2,441 =
Repaid during the year EREER (103,382) (10,820) (3,328) (117,530)
Transfer as consideration of ERAEERECRE
assets acquisition (note 36) (Ht:#36) - (1,028) = (1,028)
Write-off isH - - (15,774) (15,774)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 AT -=4%
ZA=+-8k
—E-ZFMWA—H 48,559 15,001 10,678 74,238
New loans originated MEAER 55,802 945 470 57,217
Transfer EE B (19,212) 15,515 3,697 =
Repaid during the year FREER (33,887) (7,650) 611) (42,148)
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE-WE
ZA=+—-H 51,262 23,811 14,234 89,307
By class at 31 March 2024 R-B-ME
=A=+-H
RERES
- Loans receivable -ERER 50,631 23,157 13,023 86,811
- Interest receivables —EUF 2 631 654 1,211 2,496
51,262 23,811 14,234 89,307
By class at 31 March 2023 R-ZBZ=f
=A=+-H
RERES
- Loans receivable -BRER 48,536 14,939 9,997 73,472
- Interest receivables —EWHE 23 62 681 766
48,559 15,001 10,678 74,238
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RTESREREERDYF

of financial instruments (Continuea) EXE -9,
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@) FEERK (&)
Other financial assets (Continued) B2 @EE (&)
Loans and interest receivables (Continued) JEREBEHRFE (&)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL EHMEEEHREESBERERZS
allowances is as follows: SDWWT:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-K& ERR F=RR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 April 2022 R-E-_FMA—H 244 5,196 26,800 32,240
New originated WEXE 82 - - 82
Impairment loss recognised ERRREESE 90 1,580 121 1,791
Repaid during the year FEREER (140) (3,742) (2,910) (6,792)
Transfer =B 797 (2,990) 2,193 =
Impact on year ended ECLs of FRNRRERzHEE
exposures transferred between FREHEEFBRR
stages during the year ZHE (809) 96 248 (465)
Write-off bk - - (15,774) (15,774)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R-ZE-=F
ZA=Z+-Bk
“E-=#WmA—AH 264 140 10,678 11,082
New originated MEX 1,849 - - 1,849
Impairment loss recognised ERRRESE 193 5,250 294 5,737
Repaid during the year ENEEH (77) (34) (435) (546)
Transfer L3 (135) (3,554) 3,689 -
Impact on year ended ECLs of ERERBE AEE L
exposures transferred between FXREHEEFRRR
stages during the year LEE - 1,541 - 1,541
At 31 March 2024 R-ZT_MF
=A=+—H 2,094 3,343 14,226 19,663
By class at 31 March 2024 R-B-ME
=A=t+-H
RERES
- Loans receivable -ERER 2,092 3,284 13,015 18,391
- Interest receivables — YA & 2 59 1,211 1,272
2,094 3,343 14,226 19,663
By class at 31 March 2023 R-B-=f
=H=+-H
RERNES
- Loans receivable -ERER 264 139 9,997 10,400
- Interest receivables —EWF B - 1 681 682
264 140 10,678 11,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
deposits and other receivables, amount due from a
related party and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group’s other receivables as at 31 March 2024
comprise mainly amounts due from business partners
and consultants, advances to staff and trade deposits
amounting to HK$42,878,000 (2023: HK$53,937,000)
in total.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for ECLs on a timely basis. In calculating the
ECL rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category of receivables and adjusts for forward
looking macroeconomic data.

29

SMIASMAREERAT
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(A5 /

FERR (&)

Atz MEE (&)

KEBHKAGTEZ R LB EE

REBEKATECEMEREE
BERe REMEWKKIE Bl —
FHEEALTRBURBE SRR S
LB - RZZT_WF=A=+—
H AEEZHEMERREBEZES
FRRESZHERER 2 RE
METBRNZREREZ RS &
7142,878,0008 T (ZE = = F :
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RTEACEREAREER QT

of financial instruments (Continuea) 8@
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ FERR (&)
Other financial assets (Continued) HEttEe@EE (&)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued) HEEA A2 Rt i B E
(#)
An analysis of changes in the corresponding ECL EHAE—BREETHERRAEER
allowances under stage 1 is as follows: BRESSH 2 HWNOT:
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2022 R_E-__FWMA—H 10,264
Impairment loss recognised BRERRERSE 1,945
Write-off €S| (4,101)
Exchange adjustments [ A 2 (380)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 RZTEZ=F=A=+—80K
—E-=FMA—H 7,728
Impairment loss recognised ERERBESBE 1,954
Write-off 88 (14)
Exchange adjustments e H A (64)
At 31 March 2024 R-ZZE-_WME=R=+—8H 9,604
Except for the abovementioned receivables, the Group Br bt FE R IE AN RE BB 112
has assessed that the expected credit losses rate for BABHEEEBETHREHEK
other financial assets at amortised costs is immaterial T2z EMEeMEECTEBEE
under 12-month ECL method. Thus, no loss allowance BEREVTITERN-E REHRB
for other financial assets at amortised costs at the end R-WEmBRIREIEN ARG E 2 HAb
of the reporting period. SRVEEEL T E I8 B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (Continuea)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s board when
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s financial liabilities which are based on the
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if

29

&
(=]

(b)

MTAECTREREERQYF

RBESRAR

AEEBETENICEZEBEEERN
GRS ERE BRRSBHREH
RERFEEFNRNAHRRESHE
FoHEEEEBBE T EERENK
TR CAKARRESTSEHE - AE
BeBRRAEMERERDESS
FoUREEFRTERRE MR
ARG EER 2B EERKRE
TECRMBBIRAEERERE
NENMEREMRDESTE -

TRETASESHABRZHY
RZBTENIHE -REOKRMM
BReRE(ERRBAONER
(3B ERE2RBMR2BITHE
AEZMENFT) RAKEA LR

floating, based on rates current at the end of the ST ARERR:
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:
2024
“E-mE
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted oron less than
amount cash flow demand 2 years
BRRER 1ER BB1F
RHE REREAR EEX BHR2EF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAT FET
Other payables and HitnENRBEREGER
accrued charges 64,301 64,301 64,301 -
Lease liabilities HERR 8,516 8,923 5,546 3,377
Interest-bearing borrowings fEEE 1,009 1,131 1,131 =
73,826 74,355 70,978 3,377
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

29 Financial risk management and fair values

29 SRITEAECZSREAREER QYT

of financial instruments (Continued) B (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBELER (£Z)
2023
—EC-=F
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying  undiscounted or on less than
amount cash flow demand 2 years
SHRER 1ERHK HiB1E
FHE ReR2LE fEE K =R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET
Trade payables [ENESHIE 898 898 898 =
Other payables and HiERRERESER
accrued charges 106,625 106,625 106,625 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 4,085 4,192 3,956 236
Interest-bearing borrowings MEEE 1,356 1,369 1,369 =
112,964 113,084 112,848 236
(c) Interest rate risk (c) H=mEbs

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
deposits, loans receivable, lease liabilities and interest-
bearing borrowings. Deposits placed issued at variable
rates and loans receivable, bank deposits, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings at fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s
interest rate profile as monitored by management is
shown below.

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 £ TEACESREAKREER AT

of financial instruments (Continuea)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of
the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits less
interest-bearing financial liabilities or vice versa) at the

end of the reporting period.

Variable rate deposits: FRER:

Bank deposits and cash at banks IERRRARE

Net fixed rate deposits/(borrowings): & 8% /(&

Loans receivable ERER
Bank deposits BITER
Lease liabilities MERE
Interest-bearing borrowings WEEE
Total net deposits BRFBE

/?3 R

[ 435 )
(=A€7

(c) RERK (&)

FEEE

2024
“E-NE

Effective
interest rate
ERA=E

% HK$’000

FET

1.0% 82,455

7.0% - 48.0% 68,420

N/AT i A -

5.6% (8,516)

12.0% (1,009)

58,895

141,350

TRHFLAARNEERZHFEHRZEFK
FEE (ASRITEFRMESREIE
RZIVR) ZFEAE -

2023
—T-=F
Effective
interest rate

BRFIX
% HK$'000
FET
0.9% 97,021
7.0% - 48.0% 63,072
3.3% 50,000
5.0% (4,085)
11.9% (1,356)
107,631
204,652
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e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continuea)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2024, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss after
tax by HK$618,000 (2023: HK$728,000) and would
have decreased/increased the Group’s accumulated
losses by HK$618,000 (2023: HK$728,000). Other
components of equity would not be affected (2023:
HK$NIl) by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after tax
and accumulated losses assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk for at the end
of the reporting period. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting period. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2023.

(d) Foreign currency risk

The Group is not exposed to significant currency risk
as most of sales, income, purchases and expenses
are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

29 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continuea)

(e)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising
from equity investments held for trading and classified
as financial assets at FVPL (see note 17).

The Group’s listed investments are listed on both
the Main Board and GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based
on daily monitoring of the performance of individual
securities and other industry indicators, as well as the
Group'’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is diversified in
terms of industry distribution, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

As at 31 March 2024, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 5% in equity price, with all other variables
held constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s loss after tax by HK$4,073,000 (2023:
HK$4,071,000) and would have decreased/increased
the Group’s accumulated losses by HK$4,073,000
(2023: HK$4,071,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not be affected (2023:
HK$NIl).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s results after tax (and
accumulated losses) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that the
changes in the stock market index had occurred at
the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk at
the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that
the fair values of the Group’s equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock market index and that all other
variables remain constant. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2023.

29

FWMTACZERMEAREERAY

(e)

J 2 (B 45 L B

AEEEEREFERZRIER
BRAFEFHABREZEREEL
BAREZBRABREY (RHE
17) °

REBMZ ETERERBIMERK
GEMEM -BEEZXFHZEHERR
AFEFREMITEREZRRUR
REBZRBHESTRMIELEE
RE-REBEEBRBEAREEKR
BN TRITE

R-ZZE-_WE=A=+—H " f4&t
BABIE EFH T BKE%MAAE
MhEHRTE AEEBRBREER
1R 418 914,073,000 T (=&
T =% 4,071,000 ) - MAEE
Z REHEBER L 18 4,073,000
BIL (T - =4 :4,071,000%
L) cEMRAEEIBETERY

B(—T-_=F:THET)-
BREITBERARBZRMEE

B(RBRAER) REMGEAERDS
DEEHRZNEEE THER
BEmEBEHCRERMRELER
EEBREFFTEAKERZRY
REAFLAEEAZRANEREERR
ZHEEBMTA-AKBRERAEHE
BRAKREZ R FESERERBER
MERZEBEEBEMES M
EREMEBEBESTE  — T _=F
WAREEETON -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RTEACEREAREER QT

of financial instruments (Continuea) 8@
(f) Fair value measurement () 2AFEFE
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFEIFEZZHEE

Fair value hierarchy DFEER
The following table presents the fair value of THREVNARERR 2 WEARA
the Group’s financial assets at the end of the KEMEERBBY RS E
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised B8R A FEFE] AR
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined EZ=BAFEEBRETHE
in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement”. The level JEMEBEEAFE - DEAF
into which a fair value measurement is classified B ECERB2EUNTHES
is determined with reference to the observability ERBEM ABE 2 TBRRE
and significance of the inputs used in the EREEHMEE:

valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

E—REE: BERAE—RBAASE (AWRFEAEERMS LHEREEXEBBZRE
BERE)HEZATE:

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable
inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

£ _REE: EAE R ABE(AREF-A2UBERBARE) BEXYERBERT
AERG A ABEAEZATFE - TABRREARBERRTISBIEZ&H A
-

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

FE=RfhE FEREATABRRGARBAEZ R FE

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29
of financial instruments (continuea)
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value

SMIASMAREERAT

/43
(A5 /

) LDFEFEE)

(i) BAFHEHSEBZzHBEE

(Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) RNFEER(F)

The following table illustrates the fair value

TREFEAEEEMEEZ R

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial FEFTEER:
assets:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-% g 1 E=H/ At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FHET FET
Fair value measurement at R=ZE =M%
31 March 2024 =ZA=t-8Az2
AVEHE
Financial assets at FVPL: AT EABZZ
SRMEE
- Listed equity securities ~-REEZ LTRAES
in Hong Kong 97,560 - - 97,560
- Unlisted equity fund —-REBEBZELTRE
in Hong Kong e - 5,089 - 5,089
97,560 5,089 - 102,649
Fair value measurementat R=ZE-=F
31 March 2023 =A=t—-RA2
ATETE
Financial assets at FVPL: AT EGABH 2
SREE
- Listed equity securities ~-REBZ LTRAES
in Hong Kong 97,504 S S 97,504
- Unlisted convertible bonds — & & 2 3 £ a[ 4 R
in Hong Kong &% - - 5,679 5,679
- Unlisted equity fund —-REBEBZFELTRE
in Hong Kong e - 3,915 - 3,915
97,504 3,915 5,679 107,098
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 €RTESREREERAQYF

of financial instruments (Continuead) I=0€ )]
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) f 2FEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BAFEIEZLHBEE

(Continued) &)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NFEER (E)

There were no transfers between Level 1, Level HE_Z-_NF=ZA=+—H

2 and Level 3, or transfers into or out of Level 3 HEFE F—H - F_MEF

during the year ended 31 March 2024. “RoHATEEGR TEER
=R EE Ak E .

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers AEECZBRERBEERTE

between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the EBhEn sy 2RAREREH

end of the reporting period in which they occur. Bt o

Information about Level 2 fair value measurements FHE RN FEFEZEH

The fair values of the unlisted equity fund as at FETMRAREENR T -_WF

31 March 2024 and 2023 are determined with “E-=F=ZA=+—HZ

reference to the net asset value of the fund which NFELELLHMREEES

are provided by the broker. CEBEFEEE-

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BFHE=RL-FEFEHER

As at 31 March 2023, the fair value of the bonds RZEZ=F=ZRA=+—8"

as if they did not include a conversion option was BEHEANTEDNEESTEEE

determined using discounted cash flows method. BEEENBRLTIUTERS

A discount rate of 13.2% was applied. The fair MAEETUNETE - KAMITE

value measurement was negatively correlated to K E18.2% - A FAEFTEHET

the discount rate. BERBRMABR-

The fair value of the conversion option embedded AMEESFESNERRIEE

in the convertible bonds was determined using MAFEDDHRAB-ZIEAHET

Binomial Lattice model and the significant BRAET RAFEFEFRE

unobservable input used in the fair value ARERTIERGABES

measurement was the expected volatility. An TEfEE - KAMNBEHEEA

expected volatility of 46.5% was applied. The fair 46.5% - A F{EFT = HTEH K

value measurement was positively correlated to g /& 1M B R o

the expected volatility.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABTTZ275)

29 Financial risk management and fair values

of financial instruments (Continued)

(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued)

()

Financial assets measured at fair value

(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

(Continued)

The movement of the unlisted convertible
bonds and listed equity securities in fair value
measurements within Level 3 during the year

ended 31 March 2024 were as follows:

At 1 April 2022

Disposals

Realised loss recognised
in profit or loss

Fair value gain recognised
in profit or loss

At 31 March 2023 and
1 April 2023

Interest income

Interest received

Fair value loss recognised
in profit or loss

Transferred to other
receivables

At 31 March 2024

* Below HK$1,000.

WN—ZZTE=-—
mAH—H
&
REZEFERZ
IR E51E
RIEZHRERZ

B A E
RIBE P HERZ
NYEREE
O\ H Al YRR

P s
=A=+—H

29 $WMIAZSHAREERAT

(45 )

(A8

() DFPEEE)

() BRAFEFEZZHEE
(#&)
FHE=RLFEFAZHEH
(%)
HE-_ZTZ-_WNF=ZA=+—H
EFE - FZMARLETAH
BEXRLDRAZSZAT
EHERHOT :
Unlisted Listed
convertible equity
bonds securities Total
Kb i)
AR B F & A 5% et
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FETT
4,924 4,346 9,270
- (4,346) (4,346)
755 - 755
5,679 - 5,679
1,397 - 1,397
(1,100) - (1,100)
(979) - (979)
(4,997) - (4,997)

*

441,000 7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

29 Financial risk management and fair values 29 2R TACESREKREER AT

of financial instruments (Continuea) 8@
(f)  Fair value measurement (Continued) f 2DFEFEE)
(i)  Financial assets measured at fair value () BRAFEIFEZZHEE
(Continued) (#&)
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BHE=R L FEGENEF
(Continued) (&)
The fair value changes and realised loss were ANTPEEHREREED G
included in “fair value gain on financial assets AfraiEmk s BT g
at FVPL, net” and “realised (loss)/gain on AFEFAEZZERHEEL
financial assets at FVPL, net” under “revenue” AEEWRZFEIRIIEQF
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss Bt \lBEmzeREEZEH
respectively. (BB T FaEl -
(i) Fair value of financial instruments carried at (i) LHFEIFEIKRZEHT
other than fair value AL ¥FE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial 7N 5 B 2 X 7N o B 5 PR AR 51 BR
instruments carried at amortised cost are not ZeMIAREEREENC
materially different from their fair values as at 31 E_MERZT=F=H
March 2024 and 20283. =t+t—RZAFETEELRE

Ho
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

30 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 April 2022

Changes from financing cash
flows:

Capital element of lease rentals
paid

Interest element of lease rentals
paid

Proceeds from interest-bearing
borrowings

Total changes from financing cash
flows

Exchange adjustments

Other changes:
Interest on lease liabilities
(note 5(a))
Interest on borrowings (note 5(a))
Lease modifications
COVID-19-related rent concession
(note 4)

Total changes

At 31 March 2023

R-ZEBE-—_FMA—H
MERERESLD:
ENEERE RS
ERNEEHEE 2FEHS

M SR & Z SRR

MERECRELAE

B %A

Hih# g :
HEBBEZHNE
(Kiit5(a))
BEZHNE (Hits@)

HEEBN

2019 MM EmMEEES
B (HiE4)

HENEE

N-EE—-=H
=A=+—H

30

EREBELEZEBYHK

TRFARAEEcREDEL CREE
B ERASKFRACED -SREDE
EZBEBENEEREREGHLAREKR
EREFRNAEBZHEARERERT
NEREMEDELEZERE

Interest-
Lease bearing
liabilities  borrowings
HEEE MERE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T FET
(note 23) (note 24)
(Ht:#23) (Htit24)
6,593 - 6,593
(6,688) - (6,688)
(399) - (399)
- 1,329 1,329
(7,087) 1,329 (5,758)
(157) - (157)
399 - 399
- 27 27
4,923 - 4,923
(586) S (586)
4,736 27 4,763
4,085 1,356 5,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

TREBELE CREYR @)

30 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from 30
financing activities (Continueq)

Interest-
Lease bearing
liabilities  borrowings
HEEE MEEE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET FE T
(note 23) (note 24)
(#ti£23) (ftato4)
At 1 April 2023 R-ZB-=%FDMA—H 4,085 1,356 5,441
Changes from financing cash MEFRSRESE:
flows:
Capital element of lease rentals ENAERE 2 A
paid (8,201) - (8,201)
Interest element of lease rentals ENEERe 2FEES
paid (572) - (672)
Proceed from interest-bearing M EMEE 21§ RIE
borrowings - 929 929
Repayment of interest-bearing BEMEEE
borrowings - (1,329) (1,329)
Interest paid EFE - (184) (184)
Total changes from financing cash BER &R =R
flows (8,773) (584) (9,357)
Exchange adjustments BE AR (41) = (41)
Other changes: Hofth 8 B
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGZNE
(note 5(a)) (K15t5(a)) 572 - 572
Interest on borrowings (note 5(a)) EE 2B (#fit5(a)) - 237 237
Adjustment on early termination of IRF & ILTHE 2 FAEK
a lease (1,999) - (1,999)
Lease modifications MEEHR 11,714 S 11,714
New lease entered VIV ME 2,958 = 2,958
Total changes BE AT 13,245 237 13,482
At 31 March 2024 R=ZB-EF
=BA=+-—H 8,516 1,009 9,525
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

31 Banking facilities
As at 31 March 2024, the Group did not have any general

banking facilities (2023: HK$22,860,000 which were secured
by personal guarantee given by a director of a subsidiary).

As at 31 March 2023, these facilities have not been utilised.
32 Commitments

Commitments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements are

31

32

as follows:
Contracted for acquisition of property, BRI WEDE -
plant and equipment 2S5

RITEE

RZE_WNF=ZA=Z+—8B &£ H
TEAM-—RBETHRE(ZTEZ=F:
22,860,000 7T * A —EM B AR 2 —%
EEMREZEAABRERR) -

RZBEZ=F=A=+—RH ZZE®ER
A -

A

RBEHR KRBITMARAREEMBHRE
B ATENT

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET

417 417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A T251)
33 Material related party transactions and 33
balances

(@) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 7 and chief executive
officer, is as follows:

Directors X
Directors’ fee Ex0e
Discretionary bonuses BB IELL

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ & 285 & H #0178

ERBEALIRE REER

(a) FEEBEAEMS

AEBFEERABZHE (B
METHAHRBEEN TARAESEZ
REREN FITRAR 2FKIE) N
T~

Contributions to defined contribution — RE M FER KT 2 5%

retirement plan
Long service payments recognised in  Ft R E 42 5T fE R A

respect of defined benefit plans REIRG 2
Chief executive officer THAR
Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ & ~ 28 & H b 42 7
Discretionary bonuses BB IELT

Contributions to defined contribution FERFRKET S 2 H®-R

retirement plan
Long service payments recognised in Bt F 4@ Fl 5T 2 E R &
respect of defined benefit plans REIRE ©

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note
5(b)).

(b) Other related party transactions

Details of balances with related parties are disclosed in
the consolidated statement of financial position and in
note 20.
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2024 2023
—m-—mE —m-—f
aat HKS$'000
FETT FE T
S 600

81; 72;

<49 36

20 )

1,341 -
3,600 3,600

¥ 18

25 B

3,643 5618
R 4,974

FoMmma ATEIRA] (R
5(b)) °

(b) HMBEEALRS

MEAEAL ZABEBNGEAU®
AR R B B s E20% B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

34 Financial information of the Company 34

(a)

Statement of financial position

Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Tax recoverable

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accrued charges

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Defined benefit plan obligations

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

RARMBER

(a) #MHEMRRRK

2024 2023
—E_NE —ET-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
IRBEE
RHB AT Z’E 4 4
RBEE
FE UL BT BB A R FE 492,291 492,097
FERRE S REMER
RIE 1,216 1,298
A] Ug 6] #5418 - 68
BehkBELEE 241 139
493,748 493,602
FBEE
AN NG 6,090 6,096
HEMmEMRERETER 2,631 2,481
8,721 8,577
REBEERE 485,027 485,025
EEHAERABEE 485,031 485,029
kRBERE
AERATEEMS 20 =
EEFE 485,011 485,029
B #E
& A< 788 788
b 484,223 484,241
EXER 485,011 485,029

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

241



242

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

34 Financial information of the Company

(Continued)

(b)

Movements in components of equity

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual

components of equity during the year are as follows:

At 1 April 2022 R-ZZE-ZfMmAF—-H

Changes in equity for 2023: —Z-=FZEZEH .

Profit and total comprehensive R 2 B @58
income for the year

Issue of shares (note 28(a)(i) 1117 (W F28(a)i)

At 31 March 2023 and
1 April 2023

RZBZZFZA=t+-BR
“B-=FNA-H

Changes in equity for 2024: —Z-_MFEZEZEH .
Loss and total comprehensive FREERZHEEIBESE
loss for the year

At 31 March 2024 R-ZE-ME=A=1+-H

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
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34 ERTHMBER #)

(b) EEBI 2B

WA AR A F 2 (A RIS 55 B
B2 HENT

Share-based Accumulated

Share Share payment losses

capital premium reserve equity Total
B ROEE ROSHEE RitER BRARE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET FET FHET FET
750 787,794 2,224 (310,346) 480,422

= = = 435 435

38 4,134 - - 4172

788 791,928 2,224 (309,911) 485,029
- - - (18) (18)

788 791,928 2,224 (309,929) 485,011




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

35 Subsidiaries’ information 35

As at 31 March 2024, the Company had direct or indirect
interests in the following subsidiaries, which are private
limited companies or, if established/incorporated outside
Hong Kong, have substantially the same characteristics as
a Hong Kong private limited company. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated. The particulars of
these subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 are set out below:

Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital
ARER XY EETRBEREFE
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBEXFESTMAL -
Sau San Tong Holdings Inc. Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each
Bk 1,000 8 REEIETLZ
B in
Sau San Tong China Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
0 1REREEIET KRG
Smartime International Investment Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each
Limited
BA 1REREEIET KRG
Sau San Tong China Investment Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
BE 100 ERAEEIET 2 RH
Wise Fortune Holdings Corp. Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
BE 10REREEIZET RN
Sau San Tong China Development Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each
Limited
BE 10REREEIZET KRR
Gold Lane International Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
Bk 100 BRAEBEIETRH
Victory Assets Holdings Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each
Bk 100 BREBEIETRH

i B R E

Proportion of effective

ownership interest
ERBEEERLH
Direct Indirect

HE &

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

100% =

R-E-_NEZA=+—H ARREE
FEERTIME AR (BFABRAR
AR BB ASNK L A AR B
HEBLABRAAABER I EER
BOMEEEZ KRS BFTHAN
HAALBAR ZEMBARR-Z_N
FZA=Zt+—BZHBOT:

Fft #5 B 17

Principal activity

TEER

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RARR

Investment holding

REZK

Investment holding

RARR

Investment in
securities and
investment holding

RERFRRERR

Inactive
TREx

Investment holding

REZK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABT23)
35 Subsidiaries’ information (continued) 35 HMEBARER (&)
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest Principal activity
ARER XN ERTRBERAFE EREEEERLH TEEE
Direct Indirect
H#E &
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)
REEEXFESIHMAL (&)
Concept de beauté Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
0 1REREEIZTZKR TEER
Linstitut Sau San Tong de la recherche  Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
scientifique de beauté (en France) a
Limited
0 100 BREBE1ET 2 KK TEER
Bravo Media Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
0 1REREEIZTZ KR REER
Gold Platform Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
0 1REREEIET KA REER
Creative Time Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 100% - Investment holding
0 100l BREBE1ETZRH REER
Brilliant Concept Co. Ltd. Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%  Investment holding
0 1REREEIET RO REER
Bright Rainbow Investments Ltd. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each S 100%  Inactive
£ 100k BREEIETZ R TEex
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares of US$1 each S 50%  Investment holding
(“SST(SH)") (note (i) ( 1))
0 1,000k 8REEIETLZ REER
g0

Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each 51%  Investment holding

(Hangzhou) Limited (“SST(HZ)")

EB 100 BREBEIET 2 RA REZR
Sau San Tong (Shanghai) Development  Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each - 50% Inactive
Ltd. (“SST(SHD)") (note (i) ( #5())
0 10REREEIZTZ KR EEez
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(RBET25)
35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 35 WEARIER (@)
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest
ARER EEWE BRTRARRAFE ERBREERLHA
Direct Indirect
E# CF:3
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
(Continued)
REBEXFESIMAL  (8)
Sau San Tong (Beijing) Investments Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each S 100%
Limited
0 100 BREEIETZRN
Machiko Enterprises Inc. Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each S 100%
0 100 BREE1ETZRH
Sau San Tong Healthy Trim Institute Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 each - 51%
(Shenzhen) Limited (“SST(S2)")
B 100k BREEIETZ R
Yield Soar Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each - 100%
BE 1REREEIET R
Silver Ally International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% S
RHER AR DA BE 1REREEIZTZRG
Silver Shore Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% S
S 1REREEIRTZRG
Win Ease (BVI) Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% S
ERARRT BE 1REREEI1 T2 KA
Profit Hunting Development Limited Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 each 100% -
BB IREREEIE T2 RH
Sky Hero Capital Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% S
BB 10RBRE AT KA
Linkway Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% -
B 10k EREEIZT KRG
Brilliant Step Global Limited Hong Kong 50,000 shares of US$1 each - 100%
(note 36) (H17#36)
Bk 50,000 &R EE1ETZ
R in
Wisdom Link Holding Limited Hong Kong 10 shares of US$1 each 100% S
(note (iv)) (T (iv))
&7 10RGRAEBEIETZRH

Principal activity
EL:E3

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

REZK

Property holding
RENE

Investment holding
RERR

Investment in
securities

A&

Investment holding

REZK

Inactive
TmaR

Inactive
mmEE

Property holding

RENE

Investment holding

REZK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AFT251)
35 Subsidiaries’ information (continued) 35 HMEBARER (&)
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest Principal activity
ARER XN ERTRBERAFE EREEEERLH TEEE
Direct Indirect
H#E &
Incorporated in the United States of
America ("USA”):
REFZEFE ([EH])FMAT
Sau San Tong Rodeo Drive Beauty USA 1 share of US$1 each 100% - Inactive
Scientific Research Institute Limited
el 1REREEIETRH TEEx
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REEAMAL
SCO Talent Search Company Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 100% - Inactive
ERBATERERAR e 1R1B T2 KD Emex

Sau San Tong Beauty Figure Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 100%  Sale of health and
beauty products

and investment

holding
EgERRAF 00 10,0006% 10,0007 7T < & 17 HERRREFER
ARBE R
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Hong Kong 18,750 shares of HK$18,750 - 100%  Provision of beauty
Healthy Trim Institute Limited and slimming
services
Ea2REXTRRABRE DL B 18,7508% 18,7507 7T Z R 3 REFTREBRY
BRAT
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%  Provision of beauty
Healthy Trim Institute (TST) Limited HK$4,905,100 and slimming
services
EAEEEXTREABRES O e 10,000#%4,905,100% 702 RUEBRHBRS
(RPB)BERRA ghl
Sau San Tong Medical Cosmetology Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 = 100%  Provision of beauty
Healthy Trim Institute (Causeway Bay) and slimming
Limited services
EaEBEXTRREERESL BB 100%100% 7T 2 I 13 RUEEBRRBERS
(HEE)FRAA
Sau San Tong Management Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%  Provision of
management
consultancy
services
EHEERBRAT 00 100810078 7T 2 R 3 RUEEFARS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(A T25)
35 Subsidiaries’ information (continued) 35 WEARIER (@)
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest Principal activity
ARER EEWE BRTRARRAFE EREEREERLH TEEEK
Direct Indirect
E# CF:3

Incorporated in Hong Kong. (Continued)

REEAMAT (&)

SST Advertising Agency Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 S 100%  Provision of
advertising agency
services

REEERBEARAA EE 10,000/% 10,0008 7T 2 {3 RU{ESRERS

Moon Profit Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding

mBRBERRA e 1R1B T Z KD REEK

Highlight International Trading Limited ~ Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 = 100%  Sale of health and
beauty products

SAEREFERRA B 10081008 7T 2 B 17 HERRRERER

Sau San Tong Investment Holdings Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 S 75%  Property holding

Limited (“SSTIHL")
EBHFEREZRERRA & 100A% 10078 7T 2 R 13 ERRYES
(Meg2REZRKR])

Wealthy Sound Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 = 100%  Investment holding

SBERRA Bk 10,000%10,00078 7T Z X 3 RERR

Winic Management Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding

KNEBERDA Bk 1R1ETZ KD REER

Jadepower International Limited Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 S 100% Inactive

ZHERARRA N 1R T2 KD EE:3 4

BUML Hong Kong 100 shares of - 80%  Provision of a

HK$19,797,305 proprietary
internet platform
to promote and
sell slimming
beauty and health
related services
and products

Ed N BB 1008%19,797,3057% 7 2 RESHERE TS

(47 NEBREESR
FRRREREBZ
PR 7% K 2 m

Trillion Well International Finance Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding

Company Limited
ERERMBAERAA EE 1R1EBTZ KD REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

35 MBATIER (&)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest
ARER XN ERTRBERAFE BEREREERL
Direct Indirect
H#E &
Incorporated in Hong Kong: (Continuea)
REEAMAT (&)
Sun Fung Capital Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares of HK$10,000 - 100%
HERE (ZM)BRAA 0 10,0008% 10,0007 7t & 13
| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre Limited ~ Hong Kong 10,000 shares of - 100%
HK$15,010,000
EREREEFRAA 0 10,0008%15,010,000% 7 2
R in
Kowloon West Properties Development  Hong Kong 1 share of HK$1 S 100%
Limited
BA 1R1B T2 K in
| Pro Medical Skin Care Centre (Asia) Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%
Limited
Bk 1008%1007% 7T 2 B 17
Sau San Tong Healthy Care Product Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 60%
Limited (“SSTHCPL”)
B 100/ 1007% 7T 2 B fn
Sau San Tong (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%
(note (iv)) (K1iz(iv))
0 100M%1007% 7T 2 Bk 17
Sau San Tong Licensing Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 - 100%
(note (iv)) ( H1i#(iv))
0 1008210078 7T 2 B 13
Wisdom Link (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 100 shares of HK$100 S 100%
(note (iv)) ( H1#(iv))
0 100M%1007% 7T 2 B 17
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Principal activity

TEER

Provision of money
lending services

R IE R

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXARAERY

Property holding

SRR/

Inactive

LEEX

Sale of health and
beauty products

HERBREAER
Inactive

Emay

Inactive

TmEY

Inactive

EEEX



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AETZ25)
35 Subsidiaries’ information (Continued) 3B MEARER &)
Place of Particulars of issued Proportion of effective
Name of company operations and paid up capital ownership interest
NEEH EEMY BRTRMERAFEE ERBREERLHA
Direct Indirect
E# ik
Incorporated in the PRC:
R B 7 -
FERGBEEER AR (‘R4 HIL") The PRC Registered capital of = 51%
(note (iif) ( 3£ i) US$5,000,000
FE 11 & 45,000,000% 1T
—EBRIRE (RIDBERAF The PRC Registered capital of = 51%
(‘=GR (note (i) (K1) HK$3,500,000
FE #11 & 43,500,000 1T
—EREBEE (MM ARAR The PRC Registered capital of = 51%
(“—EBIMMN) (note (i) (H13Z(i)) HK$3,500,000
FE 1 & 753,500,000 T
AREER®A (R AERAF The PRC Registered capital of = 100%
(note (i) ( #1&z(i)) HK$1,000,000
FE FE & 41,000,000 1T
EaE (LB CEEREAFRALR  The PRC Registered capital of - 100%
(note (if) (#1&H(i)) RMB6,000,000
FE 1 E A AR #6,000,0007T

Principal activity

TEER

Distribution sale of
cosmetic and skin
care products

DHHEE MR EE
7 m

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXAREBRS

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXALERRY

Provision of beauty
and slimming
services

REXBRARRY

Provision of
management
consultancy
services and
investment holding

REEEBHARE R
REER
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e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

Place of Particulars of issued
Name of company operations and paid up capital
AEEH XN ERTRBERAFE
Incorporated in the PRC: (Continued)
ROFFHAT (8)
IBESEEEERAR The PRC Registered capital of
(note (ij) and (v)) ( BT&E(i) K (v)) RMB500,000
H & AR A R #500,0007T
EBREZA(LE)BRAA The PRC Registered capital of
(note (if) ( H1&t(i)) US$500,000
h i & A500,000% 7T
BERMEECEEREABRAA The PRC Registered capital of
(note (i) ( #1it(i)) RMB20,000,000
HE BRIUE VN
AR #20,000,0007T
Notes:

(i) Although the Group has only 50% ownership in SST(SHD) and
SST(SH), the directors concluded that the Group has dominant
power to direct relevant activities of SST(SHD) and SST(SH) on
the basis of the Group’s control over the boards of directors of
respective companies because of contractual arrangements with
the other shareholders of respective companies.

(if) The subsidiaries are registered in the form of wholly foreign owned
enterprises.

(iii) The subsidiary is registered in the form of Chinese-foreign equity
joint ventures.

(iv)  The subsidiary was incorporated during the year ended 31 March
2024.

(v) The subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31 March
2024,
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35 MBATIER (&)

Proportion of effective

ownership interest

Principal activity

EREERERLS FTEX
Direct Indirect
B %
- 100%  Provision of franchise
services
REMBE ERB
- 100%  Provision of beauty
and slimming
services
REXAREERY
- 100% Inactive
TmeY
Biat -

(i)

(i)

(iv)

BE AL EEH BSST(SHD)RSST(SH).Z
50% B ERNEMEEA R HMRE
ZEHNLRH MEERALEERBEE
B UERAEEEEBARESSEG
%%Z}J H A5 ESST(SHD) % SST(SH)Z 1 7#8

ZEMBRARNIIEBELEZVAERL -

ZHBRARUTIHNGELERLEZAE

ZHBRARERBEE_ZT_NE=ZA
=t+—HIEFEFEMAT
ZHBRARAERBEZE-_ZT_MNF=A
=t+—BLEFEWEH-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR RA M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AAT25)

M & RIE# (@)
TRENEWAEEREEAFLRR

@ ([l ) <M BRRIZER -
TX25zMBERB B ERN QR

35 Subsidiaries’ information (continued) 35

The following table lists out the information relating to
the subsidiaries of the Group which have material non-
controlling interest (“NCI1”). The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts before
any inter-company elimination.

WEHA 2 ©HE

2024
g 13
SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,
BUML SSTIHL RiBL -SRI —EEHNM
SST(SZ)&  SST(HZ)K
ByE HMEAR HKEBAR
EY- N REZK R#HALL -—-EBRI -—EB/TM
NCI percentage FERERBEDLL 20% 25% 49% 49% 49%
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAT FET FET FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE - 36,917 6,852 = =
Current assets MEBEE 10,046 6,450 148,079 47,851 3,586
Current liabilities MEEE (3,513) (58,404) (55,218)  (149,909) (18,508)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - (2,859) - -
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(BE)FE 6,533 (15,037) 96,854 (102,058) (14,922)
Carrying amount of NCI FiERER 2 EHE 1,307 (3,759) 45,349 (50,009) (7,311)
Revenue & - 1,100 1,015,567 = =
Profit/(loss) for the year FREH,/(BB) 3,704 (416) 7,053 (13,204) 4,556
Other comprehensive Hpzmks/ (BE)
income/(loss) - - (5,442) 3,755 187
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI NEEFERER L
w5/ (B8) 74 (104) 3,456 (6,470) 2,233
Other comprehensive NEREFERER 2 EAM
income/(loss) allocated to NCI 2 E W% /(&) - - (2,667) 1,840 91
Dividends paid to NCI EffFEERERZ RS - - - - -
Cash flows from operating RELEZBH L HRERE
activities, net FE - ] (5,171) 623 -
Cash flows from investing REREZB L HERE
activities, net 3 - - 368 - -
Cash flows from financing REBEZB RERE
activities, net FE - - (2,010) - -
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e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

35 Subsidiaries’ information (continued)

NCI percentage

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(loss)

Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI

Other comprehensive
income/(loss) allocated to NCI

Dividends paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities, net

Cash flows from investing
activities, net

Cash flows from financing
activities, net

35 MEARER (&)

2023
—E-=F
SST(SZ) SST(HZ)
and its and its
subsidiary, subsidiary,
BUML SSTIHL BHpA‘L —ESFI —EERM
SST(SZ)k.  SST(HZ) &
EgE EWBLAR EHEBELA
EF PN REER RHpA‘L —EGFI —EE&RM
FERERE D 20% 25% 49% 49% 49%
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
ERBEE - 38,424 3,070 = =
RBEE 11,082 5,355 181,089 61,962 3,666
MEAE (7,226) (58,400) (88,916) (154,571) (23,331)
ERBARE - - - = =
BE/(8E)FE 3,856 (14,621) 95,243 (92,609) (19,665)
FERERZERE 771 (3,655) 43,899 (45,379) (9,635)
g = 1,140 1,172,999 =
FREH/ (BE) 325 (373) 13,804 (15,640) 110
Hibzmiz,/ (BE)
= = (9,822) 4,157 330
DEEFFERER 2R
( B#R) 65 (93) 6,764 (7,664) 54
PEREFERER 2 HM
zmz 5/ (F#E) S = (4,813) 2,037 162
BT IR 2R E - = (24,085) = =
XE#&—S /ﬁibzfﬁﬁmhi'
P = 1) 4,470 175 =
REREERBHZRE T2
FEE S - 354 - -
REWMEETD RERE
ek - S (26,167) - -
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ININ

AR RAN S

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

36

Acquisition of assets through acquisition
of a subsidiary

On 11 August 2022, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Brilliant Step Global Limited (“Brilliant Step”),
which is principally engaged in property investment and its
major asset is an industrial property in Hong Kong, which
is held for own use and classified as property, plant and
equipment.

In the opinion of management, the acquisition was in
substance an acquisition of the property, plant and
equipment from Brilliant Step, rather than business
acquisitions and therefore was excluded from the scope of
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”. As such, the acquisition
was not disclosed as business combinations in accordance
with the requirements of HKFRS 3.

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed through this
transaction were as follows:

36 ZBRWE-—HENEARKBEE

RZEBEZZFNA+—A - X&EBEWE
Brilliant Step Global Limited ( [ Brilliant
Step | ) & #FAAE - Brilliant StepT Bt =
MERE YAHFTEEERESEBSNT
¥ME BEER U BEAWME HE
&R

BEEERA WEELDJyMBriliant Step
WY HeSREE mMIFRBES-
B I N E B S B RS E BB [ %
BetlBERN Al WETERES
BB REEAEIRNERTUREES
EX =i

RRRSHRELEERFAES BE
m

HK$ 000

FET

Property, plant and equipment Y% MR RERE 5,200

Shareholder’s loan REER (4,251)

949

Assignment of a shareholder’s loan EERRER 4,251

Total consideration BRE 5,200

Consideration satisfied by: KRERUTEZAFR :

Consideration shares of the Company RRARREIRD (K iE28(a)i))

(note 28(a)(i)) 4,172

Loans receivable (note 29(a)) FEWE K (K it29(a)) 1,028

5,200

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 Z#RAER AT

Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

253



254

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AT 25)

37 Accounting estimates and judgements

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors

used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a

significant impact on the Group’s financial position and

operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting

judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies are

described below.

(a)

(b)

Depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charge for the property, plant and
equipment after taking into account the estimated
residual value. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives are different
to previously estimated, or it will write-off technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the directors to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of these cash flows.
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37 EEHhETRH

EXEAASESABRRERAZ A
fBEt A G H AR E 2 AR R &
RKEBREATE -FO ST BEERAK
SEHAG ETHREZERELMER
HE - -EAANEE SRR ZERGH

ERE AN T o
(@ wE

(b)

AEBREZRAEANGEBERET
ME BBENRRBZEFAIERSF
HRABETEER WA RN
BERDEBUZME HERRE
ERAERFHZBERLREL
ARSMmAF REFEFRAREX
TERARRBZTHMELEEARE
1 - fis AT £ A8 4F B0 B Bl 10 25 Bl fd &t
FHOAEEERETNEER K
HiMEeBERERRHERERM LS
BRHIFRAEZEE -

BERESR

METAEBEEAREERGEECRE
BEZREELEU2ERER
EREEFEEREEHERSE
EENRHELAZBREASRER
BEZHMAXR - KNAEZFRS
MERE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(AET27)

37 Accounting estimates and judgements
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables
and loans and interest receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables and loans and interest receivables by
assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates
and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions as well as forward-looking information as at
the end of the reporting period. Where the estimation
is different from the previous estimate, such difference
will affect the carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables and loans and interest receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of
transactions is assessed periodically to the effect of all
changes in tax legislation.

37 EEHEER A )

(c)

(d)

FE W B 5 5RR K H At FEWROR A K
BURERENEERRE

AEBEEFEAREEBERLE
J& W ' 5 R IR I E A R R SR IR A &
ERERLRMNBERERG LB
KERMGFRAG BAREEER
BASBEEXREEBEESE (BE
BAERBAZRABR) REHHM KR
B HA K 38R K ] 48 72 AR 0 A B BT BE
MERAE - HEFERBEMS
g AEREESTEREKES
TR B Ho At FE U R IR A B R U B 5K
EMBZEEE EtMEERBM
ARFEHHEZRESRE-

FREH

BEMSHBBIREETRSZ
AREBRBEIET A RBRBERA 22
BELHB AEEEEFIEZS
B E  WHREHERBER
RHZBBREDANEHUAMER
BAPI R EEITRIE -
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e MR R AR MY R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(RBTE5)

38 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2024

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new or
amended standards, which are not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2024 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements. These amendments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)’ @

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)" 8

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback'’

Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements'’
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.

& As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of
the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence
of the 2020 Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these developments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them will not have a significant impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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BE-_ZFE-_NF=HA=+—HL
FECEMEERENRZIERT A
HEARZEBURELEZRE

BEZSHAVBHRRTNEAY TS
AEMAGERMEBRERE T _MOF
CAZH - HLEFEHRERARES
FAMBRRAERFRAZE THERL
(ERTHEA R FEITABREUATAIEER
SEARE

BEBGFER  BESEARBNIE
F1RIEET AR RE([ZE-FF
1BRIA] )13
EBGFER  WERBEZIRETHE
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTY

REVMERE

Particulars of investment property held as at 31 March 2024 is as

follows:

Location

1. House 49,
1 Lo Ping Road,
Casa Marina I,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

i HE

B

AR K
ZAE W
BB
4958 |

Usage
k=S

Residential
F=

R-ZFB-_MFE=ZA=+-HAFAZREVEF

(=R UNE

Percentage held by

the Group

Term

rEEFAZESL HEH

100%

Middle-term lease

hETE A
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Board of Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. MUI Wai Sum
Mr. LEI Nelson

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. AU Siu Lun

Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok Aleen
Company Secretary

Mr. CHAN Hin Hang

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee
Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. AU Siu Lun

Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok Aleen
Nomination Committee

Mr. LAU Wai Leung, Alfred

Mr. LEI Nelson

Mr. MUl Wai Sum

Mr. AU Siu Lun

Ms. TSANG Tsz Nok Aleen

Authorised Representatives

Mr. LEI Nelson
Mr. MUl Wai Sum

SAU SAN TONG HOLDINGS LIMITED &5 = RAER AT
Annual Report 2023/24 FE K&

EEg
HITES

BERLEE
FiRESLLE

B HHTES
BlERsE
B et 56
wIEHE T

REWE

BROTITRAE

BEREEERFMEES

BEREE
I I i 55 &
BIEHR L

REEES

ZERLE
FiRESLE
BEZRLE
Ik i 55
BIEHR L

RERE

FiRBELL
BEREE



CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Auditor

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Level 8

K11 ATELIER King’s Road
728 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of Business in
Hong Kong

Room 2303, 23rd Floor

China Insurance Group Building
141 Des Voeux Road Central
Central

Hong Kong

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Office in
the Cayman Islands

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

BB

ABEBSSTMEBMBRAA
B

#lm0m

REBT7285R

K11 ATELIER King’s Road

8ig

AR ER

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

RNEEREEBITELSRBE

B

IR

EmEE 14155
FREBKE
23182303 %

FERETERNBFERLE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands
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Branch Share Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong

Tricor Standard Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Principal Banker

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Kwun Tong Plaza Branch

G1 Kwun Tong Plaza

68 Hoi Yuen Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

The Bank of East Asia
iISQUARE Supreme Gold Centre
Shop UGO01, iISQUARE

63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui
Kowloon

Website
www.sst-holding.com
Stock Code

8200
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